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STATE OF CONNECTI CUT
CONNECTI CUT SI TI NG COUNCI L

Docket No. 470B
Motion to Reopen an Application from NTE Connecti cut,
LLC, for a Certificate of Environnental Conpatibility
and Public Need for the Construction, Miintenance, and
Operation of a 550- Megawatt Dual - Fuel Conbi ned Cycl e
El ectric Generating Facility and Associ ated El ectri cal
I nt erconnection Switchyard Located at 180 and 189 Lake

Road, Killingly, Connecti cut

Regul ar Hearing held at the Connecti cut
Siting Council, 10 Franklin Square, New Britain
Connecticut, Thursday, April 18, 2019, begi nning at
11: 00 a. m

Hel d Bef or e:
ROBERT SI LVESTRI, The Hearing Oficer
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Counci | Menbers:

ROBERT HANNON,
DEEP Desi gnee

LARRY LEVESQUE,
PURA Desi gnee

DANI EL P. LYNCH, JR
M CHAEL HARDER
EDWARD EDEL SON

Counci | St aff:

MELANI E BACHVAN, ESQ ,

Executive Director and Staff Attorney

M CHAEL PERRONE,
Siting Anal yst

LI SA FONTAI NE,

Fi scal Adm nistrative Oficer
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Appear anc e s:(cont'd)
For NTE Connecticut, LLC
ROBI NSON & COLE, LLP
280 Trunbull Street
Hartford, Connecticut 06103-3597
By: KENNETH C. BALDW N, ESQ
KBal dwi n@ c. com

860. 275. 8200

For Connecticut Fund for the Environnent:
CONNECTI CUT FUND FOR THE ENVI RONMENT
900 Chapel Street, Upper Mezzani ne
New Haven, Connecticut 06510
By: KATHERI NE M FI EDLER, ESQ
KFi edl er @t envi ronnent . or g

203. 787. 0646, X108

For The Sierra d ub:
S| ERRA CLUB
50 F Street NW, 8th Floor
Washi ngt on, DC 20001
By: DI ANA AGNES CSANK, ESQ.
Di ana. Csank@i erracl ub. org

202.547. 1141




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

Appear anc e s:(cont'd)
For WYNDHAM LAND TRUST, and NOT ANOTHER POANER PLANT:
Reid & Reige, P.C
1 Financial Plaza, 1st Fl oor
Hartford, Connecticut 06103
By: MARY M NTEL M LLER, ESQ
MMIler@rlawc. com
860. 240. 1059
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Good nor ni ng,
| adi es and gentlenen. This hearing is called to
order this Thursday, April 18, 2019, at 11 a.m
My nanme is Robert Silvestri, nmenber and Presiding
O ficer of the Connecticut Siting Council.

This evidentiary session is a
continuation of the public hearing held on
April 4, 2019, at the town hall neeting roomin
Killingly. It is held pursuant to the provisions
of Title 16 of the Connecticut CGeneral Statutes
and of the Uniform Adm ni strative Procedure Act
upon a notion to reopen an application from NTE,
Connecticut LLC for a certificate of environnental
conpatibility and public need for the
construction, mai ntenance and operation of a
550- negawatt dual -fuel conbi ned cycle electric
generating facility, and associated electric
i nterconnection swtchyard | ocated at 180 and 189
Lake Road in Killingly, Connecticut.

On February 14, 2019, the Council,
pursuant to a request filed by NTE Connecti cut,
LLC, and the provisions of Connecticut General
Statutes Section 4-181AB reopened the May 11,
2017, final decision rendered in this matter.

A verbatimtranscript will be made of
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this hearing and deposited with the town cl erks'
offices in Killingly, Putnam and Ponfret for the
conveni ence of the public.
And we will proceed in accordance with
t he prepared agenda, copies of which are avail abl e
near the side door. W wll proceed with the
appearance of the party, the Town of Killingly.
Att orney Bachnan, could you pl ease begin
by swearing in the wtnesses?
MARY CAL ORI O
CARL STOPPER
call ed as wtnesses, being first duly sworn
by the Executive D rector, were exam ned and

testified on their oaths as foll ows:

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ms. Cal orio and
M. Stopper, you have offered the exhibit |isted
under the hearing program as Roman nuneral 5Bl

For identification purposes, this is the
prefiled testinony dated April 11, 2019.

Is there any objection to marking this
exhibit for identification purposes only at this
time?

MR. BALDW N:. No objection.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.
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prepare or

Roman nune

clarificat

docunent ?

this exhib
know edge?

you offer

t oday?

this as a

Ms. Calorio and M. Stopper, did you
assist in the preparation of Exhibit
ral 5B17?

THE W TNESS (Cal orio): Yes, we did.

THE W TNESS (St opper): Yeah.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

Do you have any additi ons,

ions, deletions or nodifications to this

THE W TNESS ( St opper): No.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. 1Is

it true and accurate to the best of your

THE W TNESS (Stopper): Yes, it is.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. And do

this exhibit as your testinony here

THE W TNESS (St opper): Yes, we do.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And do you offer
full Exhibit?

THE WTNESS (Calorio): Yes, we do.
THE W TNESS ( St opper):  Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

Does any party object to the adm ssion

of the Town of Killingly's exhibit?
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MR. BALDW N:. No objection.

MS. CSANK: No objection.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.
Hearing none, we will begin with cross-exam nation
of the Town of Killingly by staff.

M. Perrone?

MR. PERRONE: Thank you, M. Silvestri.

Turning to the Town's April 11th prefile
on page 5, in the center of the page there's
di scussi on about slopes. And in NTE s response in
the m ddl e of the paragraph it says, the only
| ocati on where a one-to-one slope is required is a
2500 square-foot area adjacent to wetl and X

At the last hearing | had asked NTE
about that, and Ms. G esock testified that one
change that we nade is incorporating two-to-one
slopes all around the perineter of the property,
wher eas before we had a retaining wall near
wet | and X

So ny question is, with that
clarification from NTE with the two-to-one sl opes
all the way around is it still correct to say that
the Town accepts the changes made by NTE and no
further action is required?

THE W TNESS ( St opper): Yes.
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MR. PERRONE: Ckay. Mbving onto page 17
and 18 of the Town's prefile, at the bottom of
page 17, order nunber 20 where the Town requires
t he road w dening of Lake Road prior to
comrencenent of construction. And at the
begi nni ng of page 18 in NTE s response NTE gets
into how it doesn't necessarily need to occur that

way, and they would do the w dening prior to

comrencenent .
But anyway, the Town of Killingly does
not accept that response and will require that

road w dening be inplenmented prior to
construction. M question is, would it be
problematic if NTE did sone limted site work,
say, clearing prior to the wi dening of Lake Road?

THE W TNESS (Stopper): | think this
response i s predicated on the equi pnent, and the
amount of use of -- of the road there would be
prior to naking changes.

So |l think it's a question of whether
t hose activities would result in sonme, you know,
detrinment to the other, you know, to the
residents' use of the road and safety, you know,
associated with the -- wth the roadway and the --

and the project.
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That's -- that's the concern.

THE WTNESS (Calorio): Yeah, and the
Town has -- we have a neeting schedul ed with NTE
next week to further go through sone of those,
sone of those concerns.

So we recogni ze that construction can
happen in phases, and so there's timng around
that. And so we want to better understand what
limted site work m ght be done prior to that road
w deni ng so then we can, you know, coordi nate
better. So that neeting wll be happeni ng next
week.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. And noving to the
| ast page of the prefile, the additional orders of
regul ation and restriction. Towards the end,
structural plans for the noise barrier will need
to be submtted to the Town as well.

By that do you nean, draw ngs stanped by
a PE taking into account the w nd | oad?

THE WTNESS (Stopper): | think it's a
conbi nati on of the actual engineering drawi ngs in
addition to knowi ng what the type of construction
that the wall is -- is being proposed wll be, or
walls if they're going to vary along the | ength of

the property on the west side.
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And these were itens that were not
previously identified in the earlier subm ssions
and apparently was a result of a nodification to
t he planned design. It caused, you know, the need
for the sound barrier.

So the Town would like to receive
additional information to review and, you know,
under stand what i s bei ng proposed.

MR. PERRONE: Thank you. That's all |
have.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Stopper, |
just wanted to nake sure the green light is on, on
the m crophone?

THE W TNESS (Stopper): It is.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER. Ckay. G eat. |
had a little trouble hearing you. Al right.

' mgoing to continue with
cross-exam nation with council nenbers, starting
wth M. Hannon.

MR. HANNON: Thank you.

On the docunent that was submtted on
April 11, 2019, | have sort of a general question,
and sone of those have been answered. On nunber
seven where the Town comments on plans for the

install ation, sewer, water main and gas pipelines
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on Lake Road, including detailed plans for

mai nt enance and the protection of traffic shall
requi re a subm ssion of the Town for review and
approval before any site work shall comence.
This | think is alittle different tack than I
thi nk sone of other coments that are nade.

So in this respect | just want to make
sure | understand what you're saying is you would
li ke to see the plans so you can revi ew t hem and
approve them but that approval and conpletion of
construction of those utility upgrades is not
going to prevent the project going forward from
construction, because | think there are a couple
of other comments that have nmade in here where
you're saying if, for exanple, the gas line --

t hat shoul d be approved and installed prior to
starting construction here, and the sane thing
w th the water connecti on.

And I'mjust having a hard tine, one,
figuring out when you are saying you have to have
that stuff reviewed and built before starting
construction, versus this where | think you're
just saying, on this one we want to see it before
you start.

THE W TNESS (Stopper): In which? Could
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you clarify for me what page that's on?

MR. HANNON: Eight of 34. It's at the
bottom of 8 of 34, and NTE cane back with this
response.

And the Town's response was, given the
critical nature of these approvals and the
operation of the plant, the Town of Killingly does
not accept NTE s appeal to waive any conditions
required to conply with the nunicipal orders to
regul ate and restrict.

So | just want to nake sure. So for the
work in this case that is related to inprovenents
to the roadway, your goal is to see the plans to
make sure they're consistent with what the Town
wants. So that does not in any way tie into the
construction of the facility?

THE W TNESS (Calorio): Correct. W

wanted to -- we want to make sure that we see the
full plans and the full -- the stanped plan so we
under stand what the proposal is. It doesn't

necessarily need to be fully constructed prior to.
MR. HANNON: Ckay. And of course, right

now | think it's been highlighted -- | thought

that there were two ot her conponents. One was

dealing wth the gas |ine upgrade and the water
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syst em upgr ade.

The comments fromthe Town was that it
was the Town's position that those needed to be
approved and constructed prior to any construction
taki ng place at the site.

Is that the Town's position?

THE W TNESS (Stopper): | believe the
intent is that there woul d be approval of those
additions that are necessary to serve the
facility, and that all of the approvals necessary
to -- to construct those, the gas main and the
wat er nmai n extensi ons or expansions would be in
hand before actual physical construction could
begi n.

So that, understand that there are no
ot her hi nderances, you know, that would inpede the
project fromnoving forward if there was sone
| ater change in the permtting or the approvals
necessary to construct those things that are vital
to the plant's operation.

MR, HANNON: Because | think one of the
i ssues that | have with that position is -- at
least it's ny recollection at the | ocal |evel,

li ke for exanple, planning and zoni ng woul d not be

allowed to condition approval s based on ot her
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entities that planning and zoni ng does not have
any control over.

So this is where |I'mjust having a hard
time squaring away this in nmy head, is because |
think you' re asking for sone approvals and sone of
the construction to be done through the Depart nent
of Public Health, the Departnent of Energy and
Envi ronnental Protection, which really don't
refl ect on the Council or the |ocals.

So that's where I'"'mhaving a little bit
of difficulty, sort of, reconciling those two
di fferent positions.

THE WTNESS (Calorio): And that's part
of what our nmeeting with NTE is going to be next
week, is really kind of stepping through what
constructi on conponents they're | ooking at novi ng
forward on that may -- we need to iron out that
conflict to make sure that we fully understand
that the approval processes are bei ng naintained
and finalized appropriately at all the | evels.

MR. HANNON: And then | believe also in
here there's sone | anguage about NTE havi ng agreed
to put up a bond for decomm ssi oni ng.

I's that your recollection al so?

THE W TNESS ( St opper): Yes.
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THE WTNESS (Cal orio): Yes.

MR. HANNON: And at what stage of the
process do you anticipate that bond bei ng posted?
Prior to start of construction? After conpletion
of construction? Any idea on that?

THE W TNESS (Stopper): Prior to start
of constructi on.

MR. HANNON: Ckay. So then taking that
alittle bit forward.

If for exanple the project were approved
by the Siting Council, but sonething cane
up either wiwth the Departnent of Energy and
Envi ronnental Protection as it relates to the gas
line, or if it was sonmething to do with the water
system t hrough public health, if one of those
entities did not authorize that construction which
may prohibit the plant fromgetting up and
operational, is the bond that would be in pl ace
for decomm ssioning -- if they can't get up and
runni ng because they can't get the conponents that
they need, | nmean, is that sonething that offers a
little bit of flexibility with the Town rat her
t han havi ng some of those conponents built and
operational before the Town signs off?

THE WTNESS (Calorio): Sure. That
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could afford sone flexibility on the Town.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you,
M . Hannon.

We'll continue with M. Harder.

MR. HARDER: No questions. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Levesque?

MR, LEVESQUE: As naybe it hasn't
happened yet, but has the Town reviewed the wei ght
limts of the Town's own bridges conpared to sone
of the heavy equi pnent conponents that they have
to bring in?

THE WTNESS (Calorio): Not that |I'm
aware of at this point.

MR, LEVESQUE: Is that sonething that
they usually consult you with? That say, you know
their heavi est overweight trailers, whether
there's a safe and adequate route to get there?

THE WTNESS (Calorio): That's usually
managed through the transit -- or the -- the
transportation.

MR LEVESQUE: The DOT heavy haul er?

THE WTNESS (Cal orio): The DOT heavy
hauler. So they would have all of those rates,
and then for a |large piece of equipnent |ike that

or a very heavy | oad they have to get the
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preaut hori zation to -- to go travel certain
roadways and -- and certain bridges. So all of
that is usually mapped out through DOT.

MR LEVESQUE: Have you ever done a
maj or project, consulted with themto, you know, a
current registration of bridges you own if there's
any on your route throughout their --

THE WTNESS (Calorio): | don't know
specifically which route and which bridges would
necessarily be inpacted, but we do have -- we do
have the ratings of all of the bridges. So we are
awar e of which ones m ght be a concern.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Your town engi neer
woul d be the best one for themto consult wth?

THE W TNESS (Cal orio): Correct.

Exactly.
MR, LEVESQUE: Thank you very nuch.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.
I have a quick question for you --
actually two parts. | believe it was on

March 22nd that Killingly H gh School had to close
due to sone type of a water problenf

THE WTNESS (Calorio): So the Killingly
Hi gh School is a well system They are not

connected to a public water system or the
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Connecticut Water system It's a well system

There they tested high on -- on a
bacterial conponent part of their treatnent
facility. They had to run a separate chl orination
process in order to be able to reopen school. So
t hat i ndependent -- they're a separate i ndependent
water treatnent facility.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  You actually
answered the second part of the question which is,
is it the sane water source as --

THE WTNESS (Calorio): It's not.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Thank you
very mnmuch.

THE WTNESS (Calorio): Separate water
sour ce.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Does any ot her
Counci | nenmbers or staff have any ot her questions

bef ore we nobve on?

(No response.)

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Attorney
Bal dwi n?
MR. BALDW N Thank you, M. Silvestri.

Just a clarification. Is the Town
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famliar with the Siting Council's devel opnent and
managenent plan process?

THE W TNESS (Stopper): Yes, |'maware
of it.

MR- BALDWN  So you're aware that
after, assumng the Siting Council approves the
application and the applicant would be pulling
toget her essentially construction plans for the
facility, and that those plans woul d be delivered
to the Town for additional review and conment
prior to their final approval by the Siting
Counci | ?

THE W TNESS ( St opper): Yes.

MR. BALDW N. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you,

Att or ney Bal dwi n.

G oup parties, | have Not Another
Power pl ant, the Sierra O ub, and Wndham Land
trust. Do you have any questions for the Town of
Killingly?

M5. MLLER  Wndham Land Trust and Not
Anot her Power pl ant does not have any questions for
t he Town.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

The Sierra C ub?
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MS. CSANK: Your Honor, just one
question if | nmay?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Cone forward,
pl ease.

MS. CSANK: Good norning. Do you recall
di scussing a wall that is part of the project a
little bit earlier?

THE WTNESS (Calorio): Wiich wall?

MS. CSANK: The noise barrier wall.

THE W TNESS (Cal orio): The sound
barrier, yes.

MS. CSANK: Does that wall serve any
ot her purpose besides the sound barrier that you
know of ?

THE W TNESS (Calorio): Not that we're
aware of. W just noticed themon the plans, and
that's why we're asking NTE for further
information on it.

MS. CSANK: So it doesn't serve any
safety function, for exanple, that you know of ?

THE W TNESS (Cal orio): MNone that we're
awar e of.

M5. CSANK: And it wasn't anal yzed for
safety inplications by the Town?

THE WTNESS (Calorio): No. Again, this
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was sonet hing that we noticed on the nore recent
subm ssi on.

M5. CSANK: And in ternms of the safety
of the pipeline, the gas |line, has that been
anal yzed by the Town?

THE W TNESS (St opper): No.

MS. CSANK: Thank you.

No further questions.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

And al so Connecticut Fund for the
Envi ronnent, do you have any questions for the
Town of Killingly?

MS. FI EDLER  No questi ons.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Very good. Thank
you.

W will continue with the appearance of
the applicant. And Attorney Baldwin, we'll give
you a few mnutes to get organi zed.

MR BALDW N: Thank you.

(Pause.)

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yes, Attorney

Bal dw n?

VMR. BALDW N: M. Silvestri, | would
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just point out for the purposes of the record that
our witness panel remains the sane. | would
rem nd our witnesses that they are sworn in, in
this docket. So they're still under oath.

TI M EVES,

CHRI S R E G A,

LYNN GRESOCK

PAUL J. Hl B B AR D,

NORM THI BEAULT,

SCOTT HE SKET H,
recall ed as wi tnesses, being previously sworn
by the Executive D rector, were exam ned and

testified under oath as foll ows:

MR. BALDW N We have two additiona
exhibits that were submtted on April 11th that
we'd like to get at least a portion of our wtness
panel to verify today.

They include the slide presentation that
Ms. Gresock used at the start of the public
session back in Killingly on the 4th of April.

And the second are responses to the Siting
Council's late-file exhibit request that were made
in a conmbination during the hearing and then

i mMmedi ately follow ng the hearing. Those were
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al so dated April 11lth, and we offer those for
identification purposes subject to verification.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER°  And these are
exhi bits marked as Roman nuneral two, item B,
nunbers ten and el even on the hearing program
Correct?

MR. BALDWN:. Yes, sir.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

MR BALDWN If | could ask at |east a
portion of our w tness panel, did you prepare or
assist in the preparation of those itenms listed in
t he hearing program under Roman 2B, itens 10 and
11?7 M. Rega?

THE W TNESS (Rega): Yes, | did.

MR BALDWN M. G esock?

THE W TNESS (G esock): Yes.

MR BALDW N: M. Eves?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes?

MR BALDW N: M. Hesket h?

THE W TNESS (Hesketh): Yes.

MR, BALDWN. And do you have any
corrections, nodifications or anmendnents to offer
to any of those exhibits? M. Rega?

THE WTNESS (Rega): | do not.

MR BALDWN M. G esock?
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THE W TNESS ( Gresock): No.

MR BALDW N: M. Eves?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

MR BALDW N: M. Hesket h?

THE W TNESS (Hesketh): No.

MR BALDWN And is the information
contained in those two new exhibits true and
accurate to the best of your know edge? M. Rega?

THE WTNESS (Rega): Yes, it is.

MR BALDWN M. G esock?

THE W TNESS (G esock): Yes.

MR BALDW N: M. Eves?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

MR BALDW N: M. Hesket h.

THE W TNESS (Hesketh): Yes.

MR, BALDWN. And do you adopt the
information in those exhibits as your testinony in
this proceeding, M. Rega?

THE W TNESS (Rega): | do.

MR BALDWN M. Gesock?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): | do.

MR BALDW N: M. Eves?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

MR. BALDWN:. And M. Hesketh?

THE W TNESS (Hesketh): Yes.
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MR BALDWN | offer themas ful
exhi bits.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER. Does any party
object to the adm ssion of the applicant's new
exhi bi ts?

MS. FI EDLER  No objection.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Heari ng none, the
exhibits are adm tted.

We'll continue with cross-exam nation of
t he applicant by M. Perrone.

VMR. PERRONE: Thank you, M. Silvestri.

Turning to the late-file exhibits, 'l
start wth nunber one. In the response NTE notes
that they have their April 8th letter to DPH and
DPH and nenti oned they would communi cate directly
with the Council.

My question is, have you heard anything
else fromDPH since that filing of the April 8th
letter?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

MR. PERRONE: Late-file Exhibit Nunmber 4
where we have the capacity factor of the duct
burner. M question on that, can the duct burner
itself ranp, or is it basically full on or ful

of f?
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THE W TNESS (Rega): The burner can
ramp.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. Next, a public
benefit-type question. |I'mgoing to refer to a
section of the 2019 regional electricity outl ook.

MR, BALDWN: Excuse nme, M. Perrone?
Is that one of the -- just to clarify -- the
adm ni strative notice itens?

I just want to make sure the w tnesses

have it in front of thembefore we -- if you have
a copy we'll take that, but otherw se, we can pull
it up.

MR. PERRONE: | do have a copy.

Ckay. On page 32 -- 1'll read the

section. New Engl and has adequate capacity
resources to neet the projected denmand, however as
nore limted energy resources are devel oped and
traditional generation resources retire the grid
may not be able to supply enough energy to neet
el ectric denand.

The 1SOfirst identified this issue as a
w ntertinme fuel security problem but the broader
i ssue of a year-round energy security will need to
be addressed as the operational dynam cs of the

hybrid grid take hol d.
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So ny question is, given the concerns
about energy rather than capacity, how could KEC
fit into this and potentially address that issue?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): The -- the
section that you're referring to, | think it's
important first to notice that it's focused on the
energy security problem

And the reason 1SO here refers to the
fact that it has sufficient capacity is because in
each subsequent forward capacity market event, or
each forward capacity year they have obtai ned
sufficient resources to neet the capacity -- the
resource adequacy requirenent. So that's in
effect the first thing they're saying here is, we
have sufficient capacity resources.

The focus of the docunment itself is --
or the content you're referring to is on
specifically the energy security problem So on
the first part KEC does contribute to neeting the
capacity requirenent, the resource adequacy
requi rement, because it has been granted a
capacity supply obligation.

On energy security, in ny testinony I
try to identify several ways in which | believe

KEC w || help address the energy security problem
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for the region prinmarily being a resource that has
fuel security through a long-termfirm
transportation contract for natural gas as well as
dual -fuel capability. And that's the sort of fuel
security that 1SOis referring to as bei ng what
the region needs to neet that, that need.

MR. PERRONE: So | understand that
addresses the wintertine part, but they al so
menti on a broader issue of year-round energy
security. Wuld it contribute to energy security
on a year-round basis?

THE WTNESS (H bbard): The -- it's not
particularly clear exactly what they nean by a
year-round energy security issue. | think what --
what they are probably referring to here is
essentially the sane issue, but it being a
year-round i ssue as opposed to just a wintertine
i ssue and the need for having sufficient resources
that can generate energy in all nonths of the
year.

In the past 1SO has referred, certainly
not as much as they have to the winter security
i ssue, but to the potential for gas-related
conti ngenci es.

For exanple, the | oss of the pipeline or
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mai nt enance of a nmajor pipeline in the sumer
potentially raising the sane sort of fuel

secure -- energy security issues that they worry
about with respect to the winter. And so that nay
be specifically what they're referring to here.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay.

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): And the sane --
the sane thing holds, M. Perrone, that -- that
ultimately KEC s firmtransportati on contract is a
365-day per year firmcontract. And the dual -fuel
capability including storage capacity, as well as
repl eni shnent capacity would still be there and be
able to nake those contri butions.

MR. BALDW N  For ny own selfish
purposes, | just want to confirmthat we're
tal ki ng about admi nistrative notice item nunber
457?

MR. PERRONE: Absolutely. Yes.

Movi ng onto page 38 of that docunent --

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): M. Perrone,
apol ogi ze. May | just supplenent what | said
bef or e?

MR PERRONE: Sur e.

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): The one thing

didn't nention is what -- one of the things that
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ISOis also referring to here is the integration
of vari abl e resources whereas that happens over

tinme as the systemis decarboni zed that vast

amount of variable resources -- and in here
they're |l ooking out in the future -- are not as --
and they can be as sure. |It's the sane sort of

fuel security issue that they're concerned about
W th resources that rely upon fuel being delivered
just in tinme.

So to the extent that the | evel of
vari abl e resources integration happens that could
present fuel security. That could also contribute
to fuel security issues throughout the year
w t hout havi ng sufficient resources avail abl e that
do have fuel security in place through all nonths
of the year.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Hi bbard, could
you explain briefly decarboni zed?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | -- | think
there's -- there's certainly a recognition in this
docunent, and | think a general recognition
t hroughout the New Engl and states at | east at the
regional |level that the energy systens we rely on
w || be decarboni zi ng over the next several

decades, and that it's that transition.
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How t hat transition happens is
critically inportant both to neet the various
states' goals of reducing carbon em ssions from
all energy sectors by, for exanple, by 80 percent
by 2050. And it's that -- how that transition
happens out over the next several decades wll be
extrenely inportant for consuners and for
reliability.

But | -- | do think that there's a
common understanding at this point that that is
the path that we're on.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  So could | say
t hat decar boni zed woul d contain or include both --
coal, oil and natural gas?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): WwWell, I --
woul d actually take a step back. | think in order

to neet the specific policies and goals that the

states are pronmulgating, and wll continue to
pronul gate, in ny opinion, going forward -- really
the nost -- there are -- | think of it as three

maj or steps.

One is, we have to electrify
transportation. W have to electrify buil dings,
the buil ding sector, heating. So that's -- we

won't neet -- the New England states wll not neet
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their -- their decarbonization goals w thout doing
that. And that is sort of -- step nunber one can
achi eve nmaj or anounts of carbon reductions.

Step two is that obviously nassively
i ncreases demand on the electric system and so
critically inmportant in continuing that phase of
decar boni zation is, nunber one, integrating a | ot
nore renewabl es than are even currently planned as
is discussed here in this docunent, but also
decreasing the carbon intensity of the fossil fuel
generation that will have to remain in place for
at | east sone nunber of decades to support that
| evel of integration, but also to reach the goals
out in 2050.

It's not, you know, in ny view de --
reduci ng the carbon intensity of the generation
that we need to have in place includes -- wll
eventually lead to the retirenent of all the coal
and oil resources, but also wll include
increasing the efficiency of generating
electricity with natural gas.

I think all of those are going to be
critical elenents of neeting the various states
decar boni zati on goal s over the next severa

decades.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

M. Perrone, please continue?

MR PERRONE: Sur e.

Turning to page 36, it notes that the
Mystic generation station units, they'll be
retained. Qher resources seeking to retire wll
be eval uated under new provisions to determ ne
whet her a fuel security reliability need exists.

But the last part, the 1SOs ability to
retain resources for fuel security wll expire
after the 2024/ 2025 period. And with the
expiration of that and the inability to retain
resources for fuel security could KEC hel p address
that issue?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | absolutely
bel i eve KEC hel ps address this issue.

The -- the expiration at -- in '24 and
25 is, | believe, here specifically referencing
the fact that FERC s approval of the Mystic
decision and 1SO s fuel security analysis is
predi cated on them shifting to maki ng whol esal e
mar ket changes that woul d acconplish the sane
obj ective w thout, you know, w thout having to
force ratepayers to pay cost of service contracts

for existing units, and as in this case keeping
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uneconom c units in operation beyond their point
of econom c retirenent.

So that was FERC s requirenent for
approving -- not requirenent. That was a
provi sion that FERC expects of |1SO New England in
order to allow for this retention of these units
to be in place and to be tenporary.

The goal there is to devel op
mar ket - based nechani sns that will provide that
sane | evel of fuel security. Those nmechanisns are
essentially the nechanisns that will provide
addi tional revenue for units that can contri bute
to maintaining that fuel security.

And in all of these market nechani sns
that 1 SO New Engl and i s working on KEC woul d
qualify to earn revenues under them because they
have a firmtransportation contract for natural
gas. That is what is specifically different from
all of the other gas-fired generators that
woul dn't necessarily qualify unless they entered
into a simlar firmtransportati on contract.

So KEC with the conbinati on of the
dual -fuel capability as well, | think with those
two facets they will absolutely be able to

contribute to naintaining this | evel of fuel
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security.

MR. PERRONE: Now | would |like to get
into the potential plant retirenents. |Is it
correct to say that MIIstone and Seabr ook Nucl ear
Power pl ants recently received |l ong-term contracts
to sell their output to local utilities?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | am aware of
M Il stone, yeah -- yes, at |east sone portion of
their capacity. M understanding, it has recently
been | ocked up for a | ong-term period through
st at e- based contracts.

MR. PERRONE: In your opinion, as a
result of those contracts would that keep both
those plants operational for the foreseeable
future?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): For at |east the
term of those contracts, that would be ny
expectati on.

I -- | should say, M. Perrone, |I'm
not -- | believe that to be true for MIIstone. |
don't personally know the size of the -- of what
was signed up for Seabrook. So | -- and that
woul d be -- that would be an inportant thing for
nme to cone to that concl usion.

But obviously if they've entered into a
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commtment for even a snmall portion of their
capacity, their expectation would be that

they'Il -- they'Il be in operation for the term of
t hat contract.

MR PERRONE: Next | would like to get
into what 1SO lists as the at-risk units, and on
page 18 it has approximately 5,000 nmegawatts.

And goi ng back to page 32 there's a
table in the center of that page, protected
changes in key New Engl and power resources and
energy efficiency. And each fuel source has two
scenari os, the through 2018 and 2027. And in it,
in these scenarios it's showng retired and
at-risk by 2027.

I n your opinion, or based on any
anal yses that you have seen do you agree wi th 2027
as an estinated date by which the at-risk and
retired units would be offline?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | -- | would
want to | ook at this to see what's behind each of
the nunbers in each of these fuel categories.
Qbvi ously having -- having said that, | think I
probably woul d not give a very specific answer
about exactly which units in what portion of oil,

coal and natural gas units wll retire by 2027.
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That's sonething that certainly could be estimted
and nodel ed.

| think of it alittle nore generically.
| think the whol e purpose of the whol esal e markets
istolead to that transition. And you know,
particularly with respect to the oil and coal
units, they' re not economc now and it's hard to
i magi ne they can continue to operate going forward
for very | ong.

There i s obviously sone option val ue
w th keepi ng them around and operating them when
prices are high. But you know, if you think of
it, as soon as they have to spend, nake a
significant capital investnent for a boiler tube
repl acement, or for anything then it becones
increasingly difficult to support continuing to
take on a capacity supply obligation, because just
the revenues aren't there to support it.

So you know, ny viewis that we don't
know if it's next year or the year after, or five
years from now, but virtually all of the coal and
oil units wll retire because they're sinmply
uneconom c.

| al so believe that these forces and the

progress that's been made in generation efficiency
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for natural gas-fired units -- and the sane
chal | enges economcally nean there will be a fair
anmount of gas-fired generation that exists on the
systemnow that will retire as well that's ol der
and | ess efficient.

So 1 SO s focus here -- because the
question is on fuel security -- is on oil and
coal, but I think froma market perspective |
woul dn't stop there. | think at |east at sone

poi nt over the next ten years it won't just be oil

and coal . It wwll be the nore efficient -- ol der
and dirtier gas-fired units wll begin to retire
as wel | .

MR. PERRONE: You nean, sone of the
ol der steam units?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yeah.

MR, PERRONE: And a coupl e ot her
questions on plant operation. 1Is it correct to
say that KEC can only burn ULSD when gas is not
avai | abl e?

I n other words, you don't have the
option to run on ULSD purely for economcs. |Is
that right?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes, that's

correct. That's a condition of our air permt.
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MR. PERRONE: And if the gas side of the
pl ant was shut down for nmintenance purposes coul d
you run on ULSD?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

MR PERRONE: All set on that topic.
|'mgoing to go back to the nunicipal regul ate and
restrict topic we were discussing earlier.

Turning to page 9 of the Town's prefile.
And that is | WAC nunber seven.

NTE notes that it would obtain all
necessary permtting for water, sewer, natura
gas, but the permtting would run concurrently
wth the construction.

My question is, hypothetically, if NTE
were required to secure those permts before
commencenent of construction of KEC how woul d t hat
i mpact your construction schedul e?

THE WTNESS (Eves): And | believe the
permts you' re tal ki ng about here are the Yankee
Gas permts and the water conpany?

MR, PERRONE: Yes.

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yeah. GCkay. So
t he wat er conpany al ready has their diversion
permt. They still have to do a little additional

work on where they're going to |l ay the pipes.
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But you know, as we responded to the DPH
concerns the construction will be done in, you
know, in a phased process. Qur expectation is
that we're going to be in a position to start
construction with the approval here early this
fall.

Wth any kind of restriction that would
force that construction to start later -- would be
an inpact on our ability to get online to neet
that, our capacity supply obligation.

MR. PERRONE: Turning to page 12, this
is nore a potential clarification of the NTE
response. Nunber twelve of the Town's prefile,
PZC nunber seven, water supply inprovenents shal
receive the permtting before commencenent of
construction, and water mains shall also receive
their permtting prior to commencenent of
construction of construction.

But in NTE' s response, NTE says NTE does
not believe that the water system i nprovenents
need to be conpl eted before commencenent. Does
NTE have any potential changes to that response?

My reading of it, the Town was asking
about permtting before construction, and the

response seens to point nore towards conpl etion
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before construction?

THE WTNESS (Eves): Yes, | would say in
rereading that it appears that the planning and
zoni ng comrent nunber seven is referring to
permtting. And -- and we're clearly saying that
we don't believe the inprovenents need to be done
before we start construction.

But when | | ook at the Connecticut Water
Conpany and Yankee Gas, | nean, we -- we're nerely
custoners of theirs. | nean, we're going to be
bi g customers. They've got -- they've got an
obligation to serve us and we have contracts.

We can, you know, we can be -- we can

nmoni tor and see what they're doing, but as

their -- as their permtting goes, we don't really
have, you know, authority or -- over their
permtting. | think it could be -- it could be
probl ematic for us -- for us to have an

obligation that our suppliers have their permts
in place before we start construction.

We' ve got no control over that process,
but we do have -- in the agreenents that we've
signed wth Connecticut Water and with Yankee Gas
we have dates that they are obligated to have

that, that those systens are online to support
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our -- support our project.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Eves, | have a
foll owup on that.

What's the default if they don't satisfy
t hose dates?

THE WTNESS (Eves): | would have to
| ook at those, back again at those contracts, but
we do have default provisions in both contracts.

MR. PERRONE: Mbving onto the end of the
Town prefile at the very | ast page, 34, there's
addi ti onal orders of regulation and restriction.

Coul d NTE respond to the Town's
addi tional orders of regulation and restriction?

THE W TNESS (Eves): And you're talKking
about nunber one here on the |ast page?

MR PERRONE: Absol utely.

THE W TNESS (Eves): R ght. Yes, and
woul d say | ooking at that, as the town nanager
menti oned, we do have a neeting set up to sit down
and actually go through all of these.

And -- and as we have already had a
prelimnary review we don't see any -- any issue
on any of these that we don't believe that we can
resol ve together. So we're going to be getting

started on that on Wednesday, or | would say
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getting into detail on Wdnesday on that.

As far as this order here, you know,
they ask us -- part of this is to say, do sone
alternative noise analysis and that is no probl em
for us. | nmean, we will be doing that regardl ess,
but we're good wth that.

And did you want to answer?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): Yeah, | just
wanted to say that the sound barrier that's
reflected in the application are one sol ution, and
it's always a standard practice for the design
engineers in final design to optimze. The sound
walls may ultimately be proposed or not proposed,
may have slightly different dinensions.

There is a lot of flexibility to be able
to design themin a way that neets |oca
pref erences, and we woul d expect that that
i nformati on would be provided as part of a D and M
filing such that that information would be --
woul d be shared prior to construction.

MR. PERRONE: So these dinensions we
have here are prelimnary?

THE W TNESS (G esock): These di nensi ons
are reflecting the conpliance assessnent in this

anal ysis and report, and any tweak to the design
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wll be required to continue to neet those
conpliance |l evels, but may result in sone slightly
different mtigation solutions.

MR. PERRONE: And just addi ng onto what
you had nentioned, if in the end the alternative
ends up being the noise barrier, could you include
the final structural plans stanped by a PE and
certifying code conpliance, and include that in
the Dand P plan if this project is approved?

THE W TNESS (Rega): Yes, we should
certainly be able to do that.

MR. PERRONE: One second.

This is regardi ng the backup generator.
| understand the energency generator engine is
1380 kW and finding of fact 262 said that the
generator is 1500 KW presunably the electrical
out put .

Wul d that nunber need to be revised?
If the engine is 1380 would the el ectrical output
be sonewhat | ess than that?

THE WTNESS (Rega): | don't have the
reference in front of ne, but certainly if the
mechani cal horsepower was for this 1380, then the
el ectrical would be sonewhat |ess than that based

on the generator efficiency.
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MR, BALDWN. M. Perrone, |'msorry.
What finding of fact nunber were you referring to?

MR PERRONE: 262.

MR. BALDW N. Thank you.

MR PERRONE: At the last hearing | had
asked about the gray water alternative, and |
understand the testi nony was, you know, goi ng
forward with the potable water is the plan.

In the findings of fact 492 to 494
originally there were |listed sone drawbacks or
di sadvantages to the gray water alternative. Do
t hose drawbacks still stand?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes. Yes.

MR. PERRONE: Next, | would |like to get
into ULSD deliveries. | know we've covered part
of that in the late file, but |ooking at figure
two, in the ECSP CC, right next to the oil tank
are their -- basically three stations where you
can unl oad ULSD.

THE WTNESS (Rega): That's correct.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. And | understand
based on the calculations it was approxi mately
three trucks per hour. Can an individual truck
unl oad in an hour's tine?

THE W TNESS (Rega): An individual truck
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can unload in |less than one hour. | don't have
t he exact nunber here, but -- but it's certainly
| ess than an hour. So it was -- it was

approxi mately 40 m nutes, | believe.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. That's fine.

Turning to response to Counci l
i nterrogatory nunber 45, set 2, that was the
investigation into farm and soils. | understand
NTE s soil scientist investigated the area where
t he proposed project overlaps wth mapped
agricultural soils, and they found that the soils
are not typical of those.

Based on such results would the proposed
project affect prine farm and soils or inportant
agricultural soils?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): It would not.

MR PERRONE: Al right. | just have a
few other clarifications.

M. Rega, at the last hearing | asked
you a few questions on hydrogen storage and
repl eni shnent of hydrogen, and you had nenti oned
t he hydrogen needs to be repl eni shed because
there's sone snmall | eakages fromthe seals, and
you al so nenti oned duri ng outages.

My question is, how woul d out ages affect
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hydr ogen | oss?

THE WTNESS (Rega): It -- it wouldn't
be every outage, but if there were an out age
having to do with mai ntenance on a particul ar
generator -- obviously that generator, in order to
be nade safe the hydrogen would have to be
evacuat ed out of that generator.

But again, that that's only for a
generator outage -- the generator nmintenance.

' msorry.

MR. PERRONE: Mving onto ammoni a. |
under st and ammoni a woul d be used for em ssions
control. Wuld you have to use the ammoni a duri ng
only ULSD operations, or also natural gas?

THE W TNESS (Rega): Natural gas as
wel | .

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. Roughly how often

woul d you need deliveries of ammoni a?

THE WTNESS (Rega): | don't have that
nunber. | would expect it to be approximtely --
well, I'd rather not give you an approxi nate
nunber. If | could get back to you with that

number ?
MR. PERRONE: That's okay. That's fine.

And lastly, at the last hearing there
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was di scussi on about reduci ng greenhouse gas

em ssions, nanely CO2. And there was testinony
that there's sone technol ogy changes in terns of
treatnent of em ssions and in the conbustion
process itself that are very close in the narket.

My question is, could you tell us
about -- tell us nore about which technol ogi es
could potentially reduce CO2 eni ssions w thout
usi ng carbon capture?

THE W TNESS (Eves): The -- the ones
that are the closest are -- is in the conbustion
t echnol ogy and the conbustion turbines. And what
the manufacturers continue to work on is howto
control the flane in the conbustor to keep the
tenperature at -- at a level that does not
produce -- produce those gases.

So as you know, working with the
M t subi shi nachi nes here, as they conme up with the
new technol ogy to control those em ssions we'l|l
i mpl enent t hose.

MR, PERRONE: So your M tsubishi CTG
could potentially be upgraded |ater to include
t hose features?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes. Yes. | nean,

of course, depending on what the -- if they -- if
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t hey have an upgrade for this class of nachine,
which is very likely that they will, we can
i npl erent t hat.

MR. PERRONE: Thank you. That's all |
have.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you,

M. Perrone.

M. Eves, | just wanted to stay on that
question for a second. Back in ny old chem stry
days | would renenber conpl ete conbustion woul d go
to CO2. And if you're not going to CO2 it would
probably go to CO carbon nonoxi de.

Is that kind of the trend, to go away
fromCO2 to CO and then try to capture the CO?

THE WTNESS (Rega): Yeah -- |I'm
certainly not aware of that trend. W obviously
do have an oxidation catal yst included which
reduces COin the unit, but I'mnot aware of a
trend to go fromCO2 to CO Certainly any -- any
I nmprovenents in efficiency would reduce
CO2 efficiency of the unit.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. And M.
Rega, | want to stay with you for one mnute or
so.

You nentioned before 40 m nutes to
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unl oad one truck. Does that include safety
checks, chocki ng, paperwork, the whole bit?

THE W TNESS (Rega): Yes, it does.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: In addition to
of fl oadi ng the truck?

THE WTNESS (Rega): That's correct.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. I'd
i ke nowto turn now to Council nenber M. Harder
for continued questi ons.

VR. HARDER: Thank you, M. Silvestri.

I just have a followp on one issue.
Actually M. Perrone's |last question deals with it
and that's the i ssue of the greenhouse gas
em ssi ons.

The conversation we had -- and | think
in the back and forth a m nute ago you alluded to
a pretty strong comm tnent the conpany made this
session in Killingly to conpletely elimnate
em ssions by 2050, | guess it is. And you had
indicated it would be through a conbi nati on of
treatnment and -- of the em ssions and the
conbusti on process.

And | guess beyond what you j ust
i ndicated, especially as it relates to treatnent,

but anything you nay not have nentioned a m nute
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ago, could you at |east give us wthout getting
too technical, you know, an indication of what you
beli eve are those technol ogies that you descri bed
as very close in the market?

THE W TNESS (Eves): As we | ook at what
has happened with conbusti on turbi nes over the
past 20 years there's been trenendous
advancenents. Wen -- when we | ook to the -- in
em ssions profiles, as we | ook to the future we
woul d expect those changes to -- those type of
techni cal changes to continue to inprove, plus
i nprovenents in the efficiency of the catalysts.

So | would think as we | ook to the
future, the near-termfuture we're | ooking at
those things. There's a lot of other work going
on with regard to the control, the control of
carbon that | think are further out in time.

But for the next, say, ten years as we
| ook at the ability of this, to neet the
comm tnent that we've nmade to reduce that
gr eenhouse gas we feel pretty confident that --
that the technology in the machine is going to
change to allow us to stay within those, within
t hose comm t nents.

And as, you know, as Paul tal ked earlier
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about new technol ogy comng into the market as new
technol ogy cones in, no matter what the technol ogy
is, the ol der technology runs fewer hours.

So as we |l ook at the capacity factor of

this machi ne, you know, when we get out 15, 20

years, our capacity factor wll start decreasing
as well. So as our capacity factor decreases we
wll also emt |less, |ess carbon.

MR, HARDER: You nean, it will be just
be running | ess?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Exactly.

MR. HARDER: And does what you just said
apply equally to treatnent technol ogies? Not the
capacity factor point, but you know, the other
technol ogi es that are comng in the future that
may be in the very near future?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Wuld we -- is your
question if a treatnment technol ogy cones al ong
will we -- will we apply that to our unit,

i mpl enent that at our facility?

MR, HARDER: Yes, that's one question.

THE W TNESS (Eves): And again, it -- it
depends what the technology is. Theoretically,
carbon capture, it's sonewhat avail abl e today, but

it's outrageously expensive. |It's not proven.
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I would say when commerci al technol ogi es
becone available we will absolutely apply those.
MR HARDER: | think -- at |east the

i npression | had was when you nade the comment out

it Killingly, | have the inpression that there are
a lot of technologies | think that -- and | wote
it down -- the words you used were, all kinds of

technol ogies that are very close in the narket.

You know, and | thought by that you
meant both treatnent and, you know, conbustion
technologies. So that, that's why |I'm wonderi ng,
are there any that are in the very near future? |
think you had said before that as those
t echnol ogi es becone avail able, your commtnent to
i mpl enent them which | assunme neans you're not
going to wait until, you know, 20 years down the
r oad.

But you know, that's what |I'mgetting
at .

THE W TNESS (Eves): Correct. And yes,
as they becone available we will inplenent them
M t subi shi has ongoi ng devel opnents right now t hat
t hey' ve made. They haven't nmade firm commitnments,
but they've told us they have a conbusti on turbine

that wll -- wll -- that we'll be able to apply
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to these units -- to this unit that wll reduce
t he car bon.

I can't explain what that change is that
t hey' re working on, but they've got active
prograns in developnent and in testing to achi eve
t hese obj ecti ves.

MR HARDER: Ckay. This is the | ast
question | have.

Based on what you know about those
t echnol ogi es that are com ng down the road, is
t here anything about the site, any limtations on
the site in terns of the size of the site, or
trucks submtting to sensitive receptors, you
know, residential situations or anything that
woul d nmake it nore difficult to inplenent those
t echnol ogi es?

Wul d you need three nore acres to put
in, you know, a treatnment facility, sonething |ike
t hat ?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Wen | answered the
question -- you said there's technol ogi es com ng,
| was thinking primarily about that comm tnents
that Mtsubishi has nade. And there's no
limtations. That -- that site provides no

l[imtations that would i npede us from addi ng those
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advancenents to our machi ne.

So | would -- the answer to your
question is, fromny perspective | don't see that
site limting the technol ogi es that we can apply
to reduce our carbon.

MR. HARDER: Ckay. Thank you.

Thank you, M. Silvestri.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you,

M. Harder.

M. Eves, just to follow up on ny part,
you mentioned you anticipate running less in the
future. Could you explain why?

THE W TNESS (Eves): You know, as -- as
Paul was di scussi ng here, you know, one of the
attractive things of Killingly is our energy
costs. So as -- and the energy cost is driven by
efficiency. Em ssions are by efficiency. And in
this conpetitive market of producing this
equi pment efficiency is the -- is the big driver.

And as we |l ook into the future, you
know, we | ook 20 years down the road | can -- you
know, | ooking at ny past years | could say
machi nes are going to definitely be nore efficient
20 years from now than they are today.

The em ssions profile is going to be
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different 20 years down the road. It's going to
be different than it is today, and they're goi ng
to be better.

And as those nore efficient nmachines
cone online it wll provide a |lower energy cost to
the ratepayers and as that -- over tinme as that
happens our machi ne would run | ess.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Any anti ci pati on
as to when you m ght be on the downsi de?

THE W TNESS (Eves): | nean, that's a
t ough question, but | would say 20 -- 20 years is
probably, you know, a pretty good nunber.
Sonewhere in the, you know, | don't know. Ten to
20 years maybe it starts dropping off.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

I want to turn nowto M. Levesque.

MR, LEVESQUE: As the sol ar panels
becone nore efficient you m ght have sone unused
non-wet | and, especially |ike south of Lake Road.

Woul d you consider using that area for
some solar installation, or even if you didn't do
it yourself, lease it to another operator?

THE W TNESS (Eves): So our site is
roughly 75 acres; 65 acres on the north side of

Lake Road, 10 acres on the south side. A third of
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our site, of the facility site is basically | ow
It has wetl ands and sone other habitat in there
that we are going to turn into a perpetual
conservation easenent. So we really couldn't put
anyt hi ng there.

When you ook at -- at the ten-acre site
on the south side of Lake Road, Eversource, to put
their substation in is going to substantially take
up that piece of land. And again, you know, the
rule of thunmb right now for solar is you need --
think the nunber is ten acres for a negawatt. So
we don't really have --

MR LEVESQUE: | neant, a very snall
anount .

THE W TNESS (Eves): Ckay.

MR LEVESQUE: And because it's next to
the road where this, the electric lines, are
any -- alittle here and a little there adds up?

THE WTNESS (Eves): |If it nakes sense
to put alittle in for, whatever reason, whether
it's working with the | ocal schools or -- or
what ever, that woul d be sonmething we definitely
woul d be -- woul d be open to.

But there's not really a whole |ot of

roomthere, but | nean, If we're talking a few




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

59

kilowatts | think we could probably do sonet hi ng.

MR, LEVESQUE: Yeah. | figure it's
better than a coupl e rooftops.

Thank you very nmuch. That's all.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

M. Hannon?

MR. HANNON: Thank you.

I want to go back and clarify sonething
that was put in the record back on April 4th, on
page 69 of the transcripts | was aski ng about the
concrete Stornteptors that were in the design and
how many were going to be |located on the site.

And the response, and | -- pardon ne if
| m spronounce the nane -- is M. Thi beaul t?

THE W TNESS ( Thi beault): Thi beault.

MR. HANNON:  Thi beault. You said, one?

THE W TNESS ( Thi beault): Correct.

MR. HANNON: Based on the response that

your organi zation provided to the Town -- you're
stating -- and this is on page 7 of 34, the top of
t he page, the drainage design revised -- the

stormmat er pol lution prevention plan has been
nodi fied to create three separate discharge points
W th hydrodynam c separators at each di scharge.

So | just want to nmake sure that that is
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in fact the accurate answer, and what was provi ded
as part of the testinony the last tine was
i naccur at e?

THE W TNESS (Thi beault): R ght. W --
we did discuss the -- the possibility for adding
t hose additi onal hydrodynam c separators through
the other two di scharge points. Yes, so that that
woul d be an accurate statenent.

MR, HANNON: Thank you.

A coupl e of questions | have are going
to be difficult if not inpossible to answer, but |
would just like to get your opinion if | can.

For dealing wth the water connecti on,
what do you anticipate the timng for is obtaining
the permtting, and how long it would take to
actually construct? And | know you're not doi ng
it, sothat's why | think it's a difficult
question to answer.

THE W TNESS (Eves): The -- the
di scussions that we've had with the Connecti cut
Wat er Conpany, the agreenments we have is that they
wi |l have the | ocal connection which is, | think,
about a thousand feet down Lake Road. They w ||
have done after 90 days after notice to proceed,

and we woul d expect to give themnotice to proceed




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

61

when we achi eve financial cl osing.

And to do the interconnection between
the Crystal and Plainfield systens, their contract
has them conpleting that within 16 nonths after
notice to proceed, which is well within the tine
that we would need the full quantity of water for
startup activities.

MR. HANNON: Ckay. And then the sane
basi c question as it relates to the upgradi ng of
t he natural gas pipeline?

THE W TNESS (Eves): W are stil
working on the -- the contract with -- wth
Yankee. They're going to put -- replace an
existing line which is either 4 or 6 inches, wth
a 16-inch line through an existing right-of-way.

And we are | ooking on -- at a schedul e
wth themifor themto have that |ine conplete.
And |'d have to go back and | ook at the schedul e,
but it's -- it's three to six nonths before we
woul d need gas to really get into the startup

activities.

Do -- do you renenber the dates, Chris?
THE WTNESS (Rega): | don't have them
here. | can find them

THE W TNESS (Eves): W can get the --
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we can get the dates, but we -- the agreenent that
we have that we're working on with Yankee, the

di scussi ons we've had, that we've got the

engi neering agreenents in place, that they're
doi ng t he desi gn work.

So under that we're working on a
schedul e that we'll have that, that conpleted in
time to support it with a nargin of a few nont hs
to support our startup activities.

MR. HANNON: And then one of the issues
which -- and | don't know how this will play into
the permtting end of things, but if | renenber
correctly |I believe sonewhere in the docunents the
gas line -- | think it's a six-inch pipe right
now -- was put in, I want to say, in the 1960s.
And the only reason |I'm saying that is because
that predates EPA and it predates DEP. So
al t hough Eversource may have a right-of-way there,
it's still fairly virgin territory.

So |''mnot sure what you may or nmay not
run into, unlike sone other areas where there has
been work conducted in a right-of-way. There may
be sonething nore recent as to what you m ght find
out there.

So a coupl e other questions. Follow ng
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up on a question that was asked earlier, again on
page 12 of 34. This is PZC nunber 7.

I guess, you know, again the question |
have is in dealing with any type of delays. So
that | believe if this plant goes forward | think
you have a 2022 deadline in which you're supposed
to be up and operational ?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes, under the CSO
we're required to be ready to go June 1, 2022.

MR HANNON: So if sone of these issues
where pernmts are needed before actually doing
site work and things of that nature, | can only
assune that that would del ay construction.

What is the inpact if you are not able
to start up the production on June of 20227

THE W TNESS (Eves): Under the capacity
supply obligation we have -- we have an obligation
to provide power. So if there was -- an
obligation to provide energy.

So if there was an energy energency, an
energy shortage and we had a CSO and we were
unabl e to provide that energy we would pay a hefty
penalty. So if it's -- yeah, if we're not ready
to go there we'll have to be -- we'll have to nake

sone ot her arrangenents to find sone unsold
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capacity or whatever to back up, back up our
conmm tnents here.

MR. HANNON: On page 17 of 34, PZC
nunber 19, the Town is tal ki ng about mai ntai ni ng
the authority to direct the owner applicant to

cure any deficiencies in worknmanshi p, which |

don't have an issue with that. But than they go
on to say, nonconpliance will result in road
construction project shutdown until neasures to
correct the issue to the Town of Killingly's

sati sfacti on.

So | guess, what is the conpany's take
on the Town havi ng aut horization whether it's for
the road construction or other things on site to
have the authority to issue, in essence, a
cease- and- desi st order?

THE W TNESS (Eves): And that is one of
the issues that we've been talking to the Town
about, because that's problematic for us. Wat we
have been discussing is to cone up with a
procedure that if there's an issue, that we work
t hrough the issue.

We resolve the issue, and if it turns
out that there's a problemthat is a safety issue

for the citizens, that they would have -- if we
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don't resolve it in a tinmely manner, which is a
procedure that we will work with the Town on, they
w |l have the right to, for that portion of the
project that is unsafe |ike the road, have the
right to shut that down.

MR. BALDWN. M. Hannon, if | could?
Just because it kind of delves into the legalities
here for the nonent.

One of the other concerns | think we
have is whether the Town, in fact, has the
authority to do anything to shut down the project
on the site. That authority, as far as |I'm
concerned, legally sits with this Council.

Now i f they're tal ki ng about road
i mprovenents, town road i nprovenents, that's a
different issue and that's, | think, the issue
that we're trying to resolve with the Town in our
meeti ngs next week.

Certainly if they are town road
I nprovenents that need to be we have to deal with
certain issues that have arisen. That's sonething
we wll deal with the Town with, but | don't
bel i eve the Town has any authority to shut down
any operations at the facility. That is sonething

the Siting Council would only have the authority
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to do.

MR. HANNON: | guess one of the concerns
| would have, just in general -- and | don't nean
any offense to any of the attorneys sitting in
this building, but you can put a couple of them or
nore than that in a roomand bring up a subject
matter, and you're going to have that nmany
di ff erent opinions.

Because part of the reason |I'm worrying
about this is because you have a third-party, an
i ndependent third-party reviewi ng things. People
don't always see eye to eye to get to the sane
poi nt .

So I"'mjust trying to figure out how
that type of an issue gets resolved so that people
are actually able to sit down, conmuni cate, and
figure out howto deal with a particul ar probl em
|'ve just seen too nany differences of opinions.
So --

MR BALDWN And | think we agree with
that, which is why we're starting to think about
establishing with the Town support a procedure in
dealing with those issues so that we know goi ng
in, and that the Town knows going in what the

steps wll be going in.
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If there's a problemwe know how we're
going to handle it so that's it resol ves quickly.
It's not to NTE' s best interests or the Town's
best interests to not deal with problens as they
arise during construction. W can't elimnate all
probl ens, but we can certainly dedi cate oursel ves
to dealing with themin an efficient and
appropri ate manner.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Attorney Bal dw n,
woul d that al so be part of your discussions next
week?

MR BALDW N: It wll be.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

MR. HANNON: And then the other -- |
guess the last question | have is on page 20 of 34
dealing with PZC nunmber 27. And part of it goes
along with the idea of requiring daily
i nspections. And | guess NTE' s position is that
daily nmeetings nay not be required, or necessary.

So is that al so one of those issues that
you're going to try to work to a resolution with
t he Town?

MR BALDWN It is. | would al so point
out that the Siting Council in ny experience has,

and has exercised the authority to require
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i nspectors for various things related to
construction projects for all sorts of things,
stormrat er, environnental inspections, species
determ nations during construction activity to
make sure that the Council's orders are adhered
to. We fully expect that those types of
conditions would follow suit here in this

pr oceedi ng.

As to how often those inspections need
to be, we would do whatever the Council requires
us to do. W have to, but we plan on talking to
the Town a little bit nore about the inspection
I Sssue.

I think the Town said in their response,
sonmetinmes you may not need daily inspections.
Sonetinmes you mght, and | think that's something
that we will work with themon, we will work with
the Council on to make sure that we do what is
necessary in order to nake this project as
successful as possible.

MR, HANNON: Thank you.

I do not have any ot her questions.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you,

M. Hannon.

I want to turn the cl ock back two weeks,
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and | had brought us up to the five o' cl ock break
last tinme we net, and want to continue with sone
of the line of questioning that | had from back
then. So if it's alittle junpy, bear with ne on
it.

All right. [If I go back to the air
permt and that 50 percent transient operation
restriction that's there, let's envision an
el ectrical demand situation. Demand is down.
Prices are down. |SO requests that you ranp down
to 30 percent | oad.

Woul d you have to shut down in a case
i ke that?

THE W TNESS (Rega): W would have to
shut down. And if we're tal king 30 percent of gas
turbine |oad, then certainly. | would have to do
the cal cul ations to see.

30 percent of plant | oad, you know,
there's sonme things we can do. |If it's sort of an
energency condition we can take sone of the | oad
off of the steam turbine through bypassi ng of
st eam

It's not how we like to operate. It's
not an efficient way to operate, but if it was an

energency condition to operate we could get down
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there. But yeah, a real air-permt restrictionis
50 percent of gas turbine |oad only.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Ckay. Thank you.

And | believe -- M. Hibbard, | believe
" mreferencing your prefiled testinony starting
on page 6. You had nentioned a firmdelivered
natural gas contract and dual -fuel capability.

And then further on, on page 9
specifically you stated that KEC would be able to
al wvays -- and |' m enphasi zi ng al ways -- burn
natural gas given its long-termfirm natural gas
transportation supply contract. And that it's
stated that it would also provide flexibility to
support that delivery of natural gas for heating
to critical public institutions, residences,
busi nesses, et cetera.

And | think we touched base on that,
that you can get a sufficient anount of gas for
your purposes and there would still be gas in that
pi peline for hospitals, residents, et cetera. |Is
that correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Yeah. That's --
that's correct. The firmtransportati on contracts
that the -- that Killingly has is in addition to

and beyond what the local distribution conpanies
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have in place to neet all of their denands.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. | just
wanted to verify that, because we did touch base
on that last tine.

Is the gas contract take for pay?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No. No. W -- we
pay for what we take.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Ckay. Thank you.

All right. This is going to be rather
l engthy, and if you turn to page 15 of the
prefiled testinony and you have 2017/ 2018 w nter
circunstances. All right?

I tend to follow I SO system prices, and
I'mgoing to offer you a snapshot of what occurred
on January 6th of 2018, as | lean into ny
questions. So if you bear with nme?

5:25 p.m, January 6, 2018. The system
was at 20,446 negawatts. | gauged the tenperature
i n Handen, Connecticut at 10 degrees Fahrenheit
and it was mnus 2 degrees Fahrenheit in Priscilla
Lane.

The price was $221.51 per negawatt hour.
Fuel m x had 4 percent coal, 35 percent oil
19 percent nuclear, 23 percent natural gas and

then whatever little bal ance was there was nmade up
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of hydros and renewabl es.

Now if |I look at that 23 percent natural
gas portion it represented 4,262 negawatts versus
capacity of what | saw, 18,175 at that time. So
basically |l ess than 25 percent of natural gas is
bei ng used, and the rest is going sonepl ace ot her
than to powerplants. And again, you have sim|lar
data in that footnote nunber 18 on that page.

So leading up to it, the question |I have
is, if KEC is approved and constructed how woul d
its operation change that fuel mx, either what |
just presented to you or what you have in the fuel
note, and the percentages under the assunption
t hat coal goes away but oil remains?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Sure, | think --
and setting aside for the mnute the coal going
away question, | -- what KEC would do to that fuel
mx is it would increase natural gas-fired
generation by a hundred percent of the capacity of
the unit, and it would reduce oil generation, nobst
i kely.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: How about
pricew se?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Pricew se,

don't -- you know, any -- any additional gas
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comng into the region could have an effect on the
overall price of Natural gas.

G ven the quantity of the gas fl ow ng
into the regi on under those conditions | don't
know if it will be a neasurable change in the
price of natural gas or not.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Ckay. And you
don't foresee any constraints on the Al gonquin
Pi pel i ne?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No. They --
what makes this -- what makes this conplex | think
for you all to think through is that the gas
that's comng into New Engl and fromthe West from
the shal e gas region has to go through New YorKk.

And what we know is that the gas that
flows through on the coldest wnter days is
essentially the anount of gas that LDCs and
potentially others are purchasing and have firm
gas transportation contracts for.

And what this does is it increases that
quantity of firmtransportation of gas on the
col dest wi nter days com ng i nto New Engl and.
There's no reason to believe that if that contract
is not in place that quantity of gas woul dn't be

absorbed i n New YorKk.
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Con Ed has issued a noratorium
National Gid in New York is tal king about a
nor at ori um on gas service to their |ocal gas
conpani es and custoners. And natural gas power
generation in New York al so plays an inportant
role in reliability there under wnter conditions.

So what this increnentally does for the
New Engl and region is it just increases the
guar ant eed anount of gas that's flowing into New
Engl and on those col dest w nter days.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Al l right. Let ne
turn to 2019 towards the end of January this year.
And | believe it was January 21st that Al gonquin
experienced sone type of problemin Rhode I sl and.

What | have found from a Hear st
Medi aNews article from January 25th, a spokesman
commented -- and I'll quote, in our initial
analysis it indicates that the prinmary causes of
the | oss of natural gas service were an unusually
hi gh demand for natural gas on the Al gonquin
Pi peline due to cold tenperatures that exceeded
t he system supply capability coupled with an
equi pnent functi on which tenporarily restricted
avai | abl e natural gas supplies, end quote.

So the question | have for you, is that
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t he sane Al gonquin Pipeline that woul d supply
natural gas to KEC?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): That -- ny
understanding is that's fairly far east from where
KEC woul d be, is the -- is the first part of the
answer to that question. Gobviously if it's the
Al gonquin Pipeline it's the same Al gonquin
Pi pel i ne.

But | -- | hesitate to read too nuch
into this at this point in time, because |'ve
heard anecdotally all sorts of things that
potentially went on to cause that | oss of pressure
in their system

And it was a | oss of pressure that
effective distribution |evel custoners, not -- not
interstate pipeline custoners at the city gate or
at powerplants. So | think -- | think I'd be
careful to characterize exactly why that |ass of
pressure happened on the far eastern end of New
Engl and' s gas pipeline system

It wasn't necessarily related to a
restriction on pipeline capacity flow ng from west
to east. It could have been sonething el se
happeni ng at the east end of the gas pipeline

system i n New Engl and.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  When you nmenti oned
distribution, that it could be a distribution
i ssue, would you be getting natural gas from a
transm ssion |ine as opposed to distribution?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yeah.

THE WTNESS (Eves): [I'Ill just make a
clarification on that. So Algonquin is a
transm ssion line. Yankee is a distribution
company.

So the two-mile |ateral between
Al gonquin and our facility will be under Yankee's
term nol ogy, a distribution |ine.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Under stood. Thank
you.

Now i s the Al gonquin Pipeline that woul d
supply KEC, is that the sane pipeline that
supplies the Lake Road generating facility?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): | don't know the
answer to that. M guess is yes, but --

THE WTNESS (Eves): Yes, and it's the
same pi peline.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Ckay. But Lake
Road woul d probably get it froma different
di stribution source?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That's correct.
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And | don't -- | don't know for sure, but | think
they nay take it direct from Yankee -- direct from
Al gonqui n.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: ' m not sure

either, which is why |I'm posing the question.

What |'mtrying to get at though is, is it

possi ble that if sonething happens to the

Al gonquin line that curtails the fl ow of natural
gas, that it could affect both KEC and Lake Road?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): There's, you
know, this is -- and a |lot of effort has been
focused in the New Engl and region on trying to
figure, think through this difficult chall enge
that we have with gas supply during the col dest
w nt er days.

And that's nost of the focus in what you
see |1 SO New Engl and spending their tine on in
trying to design market rules to address and
keeping units up for reliability reasons as a
result. They -- they separately have nentioned in
the past, although it's not at the forefront of
their mnd, the possibility that the | oss of any
one pi peline com ng into New Engl and coul d be
catastrophic fromthe standpoint of having

sufficient gas even to run the 4,000 negawatts
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that you nmenti oned exi sted on January 18 2018, |

t hi nk.

So that's -- that's what, you know,
that's a gas pipeline continency that -- that they
think about. It's never happened, but it's not --

it's one of those situations where in ny testinony
where | say, even under a gas system energency KEC
woul d be operating and provi ding power to keep the
lights on, that's when they would click on oil to
be operating and to be putting power onto the
grid. And that's really the role of the backup
oil.

QG herwse that it's -- soit's in
addition to increasing the anount of gas coni ng
into the region on the coldest winter days. |If
there were sone sort of a disastrous event on one
of the pipelines they would be able to continue to
provi de power.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. You gave ne
a great segue into oil, which is where |I was goi ng
next. And I'll go back to what was submtted to
us recently, that it would be three tanker trucks
now per hour.

M. Rega, if | ook at math, again you

woul d agree with ne 7,700 gall ons per tanker
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truck. If | do the math on that | conme up wth
23,100 gal l ons per hour on three trucks, but
you're still burning 23,594 gallons. So you still
can't keep up?

THE WTNESS (Rega): Well, we -- yeah,
we can certainly keep up, but the, you know,
because the -- well, | think on average we're at
about three trucks an hour. There nay be sone
roundi ng errors in there.

I nean, that is an average nunber that
we | ook at through the course of the day. | nean,

it could be 3.1 trucks an hour if we do the nath,

but you know, it's -- unless |I'mnot foll ow ng
your -- your question.
THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  No. |'m just

trying to see if the tank is, again sized well
enough or if three trucks are going to do the job.
You know, what | kind of get out of
that, i1f you' re doing three tankers you m ght have
to cut load little bit and not run a hundred
percent on oil.
THE WTNESS (Rega): No. W -- we would
not have to cut load. W can certainly service
wWwth those three stations. Again, it doesn't take

a full hour to unload a truck. W have sone
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flexibility there to -- to unload even nore than
three trucks an hour if we had to.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  If you go back to

your 40 mnutes then I'll agree with you. |If you
stay with the hour, | don't.

THE WTNESS (Rega): |I'msorry. It
takes approximately 40 mnutes. | would have to

confirmthat nunber to unl oad one truck.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Yeah. But again,
what you sent to us recently was three trucks an
hour .

THE WTNESS (Rega): |Is the average to
keep up with consunpti on.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  So again, if
you're doing three trucks in 40 mnutes then |'1|
agree with you that could nmaintain sufficient oil,
that you can run a hundred percent on oil.

THE WTNESS (Rega): That -- that is
correct. Yeah. I'msorry if | wasn't clear in
the response. Again, the three trucks an hour is
just to keep up with consunption. That's not --
we do have nore capacity in the unloading stations
and because of the 40-m nute unload tine we could
upl oad nore than three trucks per hour if we had

to.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  What do you think
of putting a fourth unloading station in?

THE W TNESS (Rega): W don't believe we
need a fourth one.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Ckay. Let nme go
back to the hypothetical natural gas interruption
on Al gonquin that's going to knock out both KEC
and Lake Road.

All right. Both are going to fire up on
oil. Lake Road has, | believe, an 840, 000-gal |l on
tank for ULSD, and they have 5 trucks unl oadi ng.
All right. So they would need 143 trucks per day
to continue their operation.

At three trucks per hour, if we stay
wth the three trucks, | cal culate that KEC woul d
need 72 trucks per day to continue operating. Al
right? |If you add that up, I'"'mcomng up with 217
trucks per day for two facilities.

Could an oil termnal and traffic
provide -- to have 215 trucks deliver oil to both
facilities? It seens |like an awful |ot.

THE WTNESS (Rega): | -- | don't know
at this point whether we'd be sourcing our ULSD
fromthe sane, fromthe sane source as Lake Road.

| -- 1 don't know their --
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah, that was the
related question | had. D d you pick an oil
term nal yet that would supply ULSD?

THE W TNESS (Rega): W have not yet.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: But again, |
al ways | ook at contingency planning, and if
natural gas is gone, sonebody has got to rely on
oil. If you've got to rely on oil the nunbers |I'm
seeing are 215 trucks per day for two facilities
to keep the lights on, and I don't know if that's
f easi bl e.

That's why | posed the question.

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): If | could junp
in, M. Silvestri?

And this may not directly answer your
question, but there are two thoughts | have on
this one. One is, you know, obviously this has
been a concern of I1SO s even w thout a major
pi pel i ne di srupti on.

You know t here, there have been --
there's sone concern that if in a situation where
we're constantly relying on repl eni shnent of all
the oil tanks in the region and the weat her was
particularly bad, or for sone other reason it nade

the delivery of fuel oil difficult, that's a
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reliability risk to the region.

And when | think of the firmnatural gas
contract that Killingly has, that's sonething that
is incredibly inportant in that context, because
when you think of the last cold snap the control
roomat | SO New Engl and' s bi ggest concern was
they were running out of oil in the region
collectively. And so having an additi onal
gas-fired generator that wasn't burning oil and
was burning under a firmcontract would be
i ncredi bly hel pful.

In the -- | think in the context that
you're presenting, |oss of a major pipeline and
sone chal | enges associated wth repl eni shnent of
fuel there are going to be a | ot of things going
on in the region to try to keep the |lights on,

i ncl udi ng energency governnent actions and
everyt hi ng el se.

So you're sort of painting the nightnare
scenario for | SO New Engl and and sonet hi ng t hat
has kept themup at night in the past.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | ' ve gone t hrough
some nightmares in ny past history, including
bringing back old oil-fired cyclone units to try

to make up for when the NRC closed down all the
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nucl ear powerplants. So yeah, that's where |'m
comng from Ckay. Let ne nove on.

On March 12th of this year |1SO issued a
press rel ease about New Engl and's whol esal e
electricity prices in 2018 being hi gher than they
were in 2017. Are you famliar wth that press
rel ease?

THE WTNESS (H bbard): I'mfamliar
wth them nentioning -- them describing this, and
| don't know what the specific press rel ease is.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: I'"ll try to help
you a little bit. One comment that | SO nade
concerned the extrene cold weather, again back in
July of 2018. And that denand increased for
natural gas for heating | eading to spiking prices,
both for natural gas and electricity as we kind of
di scussed earlier.

In your response to interrogatory nunber
20 you anticipate an overall reduction of $215
mllion or perhaps nore per year to whol esal e
electric costs. And if KEC is constructed and
operati onal what m ght KEC s inpact be to
w ntertinme whol esale electricity prices?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): So this is

referencing the -- the study that was done
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previously and the estinates therein. So this
wasn't -- this wasn't an estimate for the year
that you're questioning, and it wasn't an estimate
that | conpl et ed.

I -- I don't know whet her or not KEC s
operation wll necessarily drag down natural gas
prices in the region. | don't -- | don't know
that that woul d be the case. For the reasons we
were tal king about earlier, the nore you have gas
comng into the region the nore of a price
suppression affect it will have in nost days of
t he year.

Under these w nter conditions obviously
the spot price for natural gas gets extrenely
high, and -- and will continue to do so. And
that's really what was driving | SO s press
rel ease, that the overall average annual price of
electricity went up because of natural gas. But
that's really driven by what is the duration of
the severe cold events in each year. That's what
ultimately drives whether or not the price of
electricity is alittle bit higher or |ower than
t he previous year.

Overall the existence of gas-fired

generation in New Engl and has just dramatically




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

86

pl unmet ed the cost of electricity. And the -- the
avai lability of shale gas has dramatically dropped
the price of natural gas and electricity in the
region even if during sone -- sone weeks in the

W nter nonths you see these significant spikes in
the prices.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah, 1 know. |
bel i eve yesterday or the day before prices were,
li ke, 17, 18, 19 doll ars.

| want to get away fromnatural gas. |
want to get away fromoil. Al right. 1I1'd like
to nove to your response to interrogatory numnber
five, and this concerns the sul fur hexafl uoride
gas, SF6, and also with interrogatory nunber 35
concerni ng greenhouse gas eni ssi ons.

We tal ked about how you're | ooking at
2050 to possibly effectively elimnate GHG
em ssions, but you plan to enploy SF6 in vari ous
breakers. Now CO2, carbon di oxi de has a gl obal
warm ng potential of 1, but SF6 is up at 23, 500.
All right. And breakers tend to |eak.

The question | have for you, have you
considered elimnating the use of SF6 in the
breakers and opt for an alternative such as

dry-air vacuum t echnol ogy?
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THE WTNESS (Rega): | would have to
check to see whether that alternative was
explored. Certainly, SF6 breakers are, you know,
the standard. | think both is used by Eversource
and i n powerpl ants.

["'mnot -- I'"mnot famliar wth the
technol ogy that you nentioned, and |I'm not aware
that we have explored that, that alternative,
whet her it's available for our sized powerpl ant or
not. That's certainly sonething that -- that |
can take a |l ook at and get back to you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  For a reference,
M. Rega, it's actively up and running i n Gernany,
France, Switzerland. There's 550 units in North
Anerica since 2007 when they started this.

And if you look at the California Ar
Resource Board, or what they call CARB, there's a
| ot of phase-out dates that are there to really
get rid of the SF6 and go do sonething else. So
to give you a little bit of background.

THE W TNESS (Rega): GCkay. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  If | have you turn
to interrogatory nunber 32, it states that NTE was
able to achieve significant decreases in the

| evel s of wastewater discharge to the town sewer
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system when runni ng on ULSD.

How do you figure that these decreases
wer e acconpli shed, and what were the proposed and
after rates, if you will?

THE WTNESS (Rega): So we -- we
nodi fi ed the desi gn sonewhat where when we are
firing on ULSD, instead of sizing our nornal
de-m n systemfor the increased usage up to the
ULSD, water consunption is a |ot higher than on
natural gas for water injection reasons. |nstead
of oversizing our water treatnent system which
has a certain anount of waste associated wth it
as it operates, we went to a design where we woul d
just bring in nobile demneralization trailers.

And -- and so therefore those could be
used again just for the ULSD firing cases, and
they have very little wastewater associated with
those trailers.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And woul d you
require a discharge permt from Connecti cut DEEP?

THE W TNESS (G esock): Yes. Yes,
that's currently under review.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  To go to the
Killingly wastewater treatnent plant?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): Correct.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Okay. Staying on
the water aspect, ny understanding is that there
is a powerplant currently under construction in
New York state that | think they call the Cricket
Val |l ey Energy Center. Ballpark, 1,100 or so
megawatts that's com ng onli ne.

They're i ncorporating a zero-liquid
di scharge system and they're incorporating a
rooftop rainfall capture systemto provide a
suppl enent al supply of water.

Wiy not try and incorporate sone of
t hose concepts i nto KEC?

THE WTNESS (Rega): Certainly
zero-liquid discharge is sonething that sone
pl ants have had to do under necessity for certain
si tuati ons.

It is -- it's a very expensive
technol ogy and there are issues with reliability
in a systemlike that. Those would be really the
two primary reasons, not to -- not to include them
her e.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  So cost and
reliability?

THE WTNESS (Rega): | would say

primarily, yes. Yes, there may be sone space
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requirements as well that may be problematic.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah, that | don't
know. | just |ooked at it and said, wow. That's
a really neat thing.

Al right. Last question | have for you
goes back to the hydrogen storage that M. Perrone
was tal king about earlier. Does the anount of
hydrogen that you're proposing trigger any, what |
call CFAS, which I think is the Chemcal Facility
Antiterrori sm Standards or sonething |ike that?
Anything there that's required for what you're
proposi ng for hydrogen storage?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): W know that the
volune is bel ow the ri sk-nmanagenent threshol ds
established by U S. EPA

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  So i f anyt hi ng,
you probably adhere to OSHA standards for genera
duty?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): That that's
correct.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

I think I covered ny questions and woul d
like to turn to M. Lynch to see if he has any at
this point.

MR, LYNCH. | do have two foll ow up
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questions fromthe past, Chairnman, but before I
know I want to nmake a comment.

We on the Council are not allowed to
interact with the public during the public
session, and there was a gentleman there -- |
think he was a professor at Qui nebaug, you know,
Community Coll ege who referenced this proceedi ng
in terns of Nazi GCermany.

And | don't know if he was referring to
you, the applicant, or us the Council, but I
t hought the comment was uncalled for and | just
wanted to nmake that statenent.

If it was reflective on the applicant, |

apol ogi ze for that. |If it was reflective on us,
the Council, we can deal with it. But | just
wanted to -- that upset nme, and we couldn't -- |

coul dn't say anything that night, but now that I
can | wll.

And just a couple of foll owup
questions. Again, a lot of it refers back to sone
of the coments in the public session. And the
uni on representati ves had a coupl e peopl e out that
night and they referred to a fewtines a PLA a
proj ect | abor agreenent.

Is a project | abor agreenent in place
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wth your facility?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Not -- not today.

MR LYNCH Is it something you're
pl anni ng on doing? Yeah -- let ne put it this
way. Are you negotiating with the unions for
t hat ?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Wen we -- when we
started this, this process we did put an agreenent
in place with the unions that said, this would be
a union job. So we've nmade a conmitnent to the
unions that it will be a union job.

However, at that point we had not
sel ected our EPC contractor, and different
contractors have different ways of -- of working
wth the unions. And we didn't want to tie the
hands of our EP -- potential EPC contractors.

W're very close to selecting our EPC
contractor. W have -- we would expect that it's
going to be a PLA, but they wll have to negotiate
that with the unions.

And anot her comm tnent we've nade with
the unions is once we select that EPC contractor
we will bring in the EPC contractor. W will sit
down with the EPC contractor and the union folks

that we've been working with to get those -- get
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t hose di scussions started.

MR. LYNCH. Thank you. | just wanted to
get that on the record, because the union
representative inferred that was al ready in pl ace.

The next question | have regards the
power pl ant that's being proposed in Rhode |sland,
and | asked if they have been accepted at the
auction and you told ne that they weren't.

My question would be -- the auction
cones up again, would they be eligible? And could
they submt to the auction for the | SO auction?

THE WTNESS (Eves): So that in order to
participate in the auction there's -- there's a
| ong period beforehand that new resources have to
go through to get approved.

And when you go through this process
they look at -- they look at all your costs. They
| ook at your revenues. They |ook at your -- the
status of your permts, they | ook at your
construction schedul e.

And then | SO makes a determ nation, are
you approved? They'll set your m ninmum offer
price and they' |l make a deci sion whet her they
approve you to participate in the auction based on

the likelihood that you could actually get to the
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finish line, and in the case that we chatted about
earlier -- and our case is June 1st of 2022.

So the powerplant over in Rhode Island
will have to submt to that same process for both
units, and they're currently having sone issues
over there getting -- getting through all of the
regul atory processes.

And that's why, in ny opinion, the Rhode
Island review -- I'msorry. |SO New Engl and
pul | ed back that capacity supply obligation
because it | ooked li ke they were not going to get
to the finish line. They were not going to be
able to build this plant and get online by the
conm t ment peri od.

Can the powerpl ant in Rhode |Island apply
to 1 SO New Engl and to get approval for either one
or both of those two units? Yeah, sure they can,
but what's -- and |'msure they wll at some point

intinm, but if you |ook at what's happened over

there recently with that facility, | think it's
probably unlikely that we'll -- that | SO New
Engl and will see themapply to participate in the

next aucti on.
MR. LYNCH. Thank you for giving ne an

insight into how the | SO oper at es.
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My | ast question is also a foll owp, and
| renmenber asking how you were going to purge the
pi pel i ne, and you made the comrent that you
weren't going to use natural gas.

But in ny notes | didn't put down
anyt hing for how you were going to purge the |ine,
what process you were going to use.

THE W TNESS (Rega): Qur ABC contractor
woul d |likely use air, conpressed air to clean.
Conpressed air.

MR LYNCH Al right. Thank you.

That's all, M. Chairman.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M.
Lynch.

Do any ot her council menbers or staff

have any ot her additional questions?

(No response.)

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Great. Hearing
none, we're at a good breakpoint, | think, for
l unch. Why don't we break for |unch and cone back
at 1:45, and when we cone back we'll continue wth
cross-exam nation fromthe group parties and

parti es.
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Thank you.

(Wher eupon, a recess was taken from

12:48 p.m to 1:45 p.m)

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Good afternoon,
| adies and gentlenen. | would like to call the
hearing back to order at approximately 1:45 this
afternoon. We will continue with
cross-exam nati on of the applicant by Connecti cut
Fund for the Environnent, by Attorney Fiedler.

MS. FIEDLER  Thank you. M nane is
Kat herine Fiedler. | aman attorney for
Connecticut Fund for the Environnent. |'m going
to start ny questioning with the issue of air
pol | uti on.

My first question is, is it correct that
the proposed M tsubishi nodel will result in
hi gher annual em ssions than the previously
proposed Si enens nodel for several pollutants,
i ncludi ng vol atil e organi ¢ conpounds, carbon
nonoxi de, | ead, sulfuric acid, carbon dioxide and
ammoni a?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): Because of the

addi tional capacity there are several pollutants
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that have the potential to emt values that are
hi gher, although all of the nodel ed i npacts are
| oner across the board.

MS. FIEDLER  Ckay. So | understand
that it's due to the higher output on the
capacity, but overall the annual em ssion rates
w |l be higher for these pollutants. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): The additional
hi gher -- the higher firing rates influence that,
yes.

MS. FIEDLER Ckay. |Is it fair to say
that these are additional pollutants that wll be
experienced by nei ghboring communities on top of
their current baseline air quality?

THE W TNESS (G esock): The project wll
be a new, a new source, yes.

M5. FIEDLER Is it also fair to say
that these pollutants would not result in the
operation of solar or wind energy facilities if
they were sited in the area?

THE WTNESS (Gresock): I'msorry. |
don't understand the question.

MS. FIEDLER | guess |I'masking if
these pollutants would result fromsolar or w nd

if they were put in, in the sane regi on?
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THE W TNESS (Gresock): So solar and
w nd do not result in air em ssions, yes.

MS. FlI EDLER: I n DEEP' s Novenber 7,
2016, letter on page 2 -- sorry for going so far
back in the record -- DEEP states, quote, a
bl anket statenent asserting inprovenent in |ocal
or regional air quality arising fromthe operation
of the Killingly Energy Center is premature. Do
you agree with this statenment?

MR, LYNCH: Excuse ne, Ms. Fiedler?
Coul d speak up? Your voice is fading as you --
conti nue your questioning.

MS. FIEDLER Wuld you like ne to
repeat that question?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Pl ease.

MS. FlI EDLER: I n DEEP' s Novenber 7,
2016, letter on page 2 DEEP states, quote, a
bl anket statenent asserting inprovenment in |ocal
or regional air quality arising fromthe operation

of the Killingly Energy Center is premature, end

quot e.

Do you agree with this statenent?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): | don't have a
position on that statenent. Since that tinme DEEP

has issued the air permt for the project.
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MS. FIEDLER  NTE asserts that KEC woul d
facilitate the retirenent of older, |ess clean
energy producing facilities, inproving |ocal and
regional air quality. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Yeah, the
operation of this facility is likely to put
further econom c pressure on the |ess efficient
and nore expensive units that are operating on the
system

MS. FIEDLER Are you able to identify
wth certainty the specific facilities that would
retire if KECis granted the certificate?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | would
characterize themas any facility that has higher
vari abl e operating costs than KEC, which woul d be
virtually every fossil generating facility on the
system

MS. FIEDLER WII any of these retired
or potentially retiring facilities inprove the air
quality of Killingly itself?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): It's -- it's
possi ble. There are a nunber of facilities
t hat woul d be economically at risk that exist in
Connecticut. And so part of the airshed affected

by em ssions fromthose facilities could include
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Killingly.

MS. FIEDLER  Could you just el aborate
on the | ocations of where those are in
Connecticut, potentially the retiring facilities?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): There are -- it
woul d 1 nclude virtually any coal, oil or gas-fired
facility that currently exists in Connecticut. It
woul d be, you know, in ny viewit would be
potentially further at risk by the operation of
Killingly.

MS. FIEDLER  Has NTE obtai ned offsets
for nitrogen oxides at this point?

THE W TNESS (G esock): Yes.

MS. FIEDLER And what are the sources
of these offsets?

THE WTNESS (Gresock): It's specified
in the air permt. Hold on. I'mjust pulling
t hat up.

The offset sources are specified as
112. 64 tons fromthe G enwood conbustion turbine
facility, and 50.36 tons from National Gid for
our Rockaway power station.

MS. FIEDLER  Can you just tell ne where
t hese sources are | ocated?

THE W TNESS (G esock): They're in New
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Yor k.

MS. FIEDLER Do you know how far away
t hese sources are fromKillingly?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): | don't have
that information.

MS. FIEDLER Ckay. The Tetra Tech
envi ronnent al overview on pages 10 and 11 lists
the permt limts for the operation of the
M t subi shi CTG

What are the actual projected em ssion
rates for its operation as conpared to these
permt limts? |In other words, do you project KEC
to operate at or near these permt limts, or at a
margi n | ower ?

THE W TNESS (G esock): These refl ect
guaranteed enm ssion rates. Frequently facilities
are able to operate at -- at |ower |evels, but
these are the rates that the vendor is
guar ant eei ng.

MS. FIEDLER And there's nothing to
stop KEC fromoperating all the way up to those
l[imts enunerated in the permt. Correct?

THE W TNESS (G esock): And DEEF s
eval uati on has determ ned that those are

accept abl e.
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MS. FIEDLER On page 9 of that sane
Tetra Tech environnental overview it states that
the startup VOC and CO em ssions for ULSD for the
M t subi shi nodel are much higher than those for
the Sienmens CTG Is this correct?

THE W TNESS (G esock): They are higher.

MS. FIEDLER.  And M tsubi shi was
selected in part for its ability to rapidly switch
bet ween natural gas and ULSD. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): That is right.

MS. FI EDLER  Understanding that the air
permt delineates |limted circunstances for which
ULSD may be used, how often is it estinated that
KEC will swtch fromnatural gas to ULSD?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): Well, ULSD is
limted in use to 720 hours. W won't know how
frequently that will occur in actuality until the
need arises, but there are very specific
limtations in the permt, as -- as we discussed
earlier, that relate to the capability of gas to
be avail able to the site.

MS. FIEDLER  Turning to the Novenber
15, 2016, transcript on page 372, lines 1 through
4. M. Bradley testified that ULSD woul d be

needed for only very few hours per year, but you
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just stated that the limt could be up to 720.
Coul d you expl ain the discrepancy between those
t wo?

THE W TNESS (G esock): That is the
maxi mum on an annual basis allowed by the air
permt, and it is sonmething that could occur. |
beli eve we do not expect that it would occur
that -- that often.

MS. FIEDLER  Ckay. And | have one
clarifying question on this topic. | apologize if
| mssed this clarification before.

Conparing table 1 on page 9 of the Tetra
Tech environnmental overview and the first table on
page 6 of permt for the Mtsubishi CTG For
car bon nonoxi de emi ssions fromthe startup of ULSD
the Tetra Tech report states 11, 004 pounds per
hour while the permt states 1,004 pounds per
hour. Can you clarify which nunber is correct?

THE WTNESS (G esock): I'msorry. Wat
was the second reference?

M5. FIEDLER It is the first table on
pages 6 for the permt for the Mtsubishi nodel.

THE W TNESS (Gresock): The 1,004 is the
correct nunber. That's a typo.

MS. FI EDLER  Thank you.
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Are the pollutants that will be emtted
by the facility associated with potential health
probl ems in nei ghboring communities?

THE W TNESS (G esock): The Nati onal
Anbient Air Quality Standards have been

established to protect the public fromhealth

probl ens.

MS5. FIEDLER 1'd like to turn to that
analysis. | believe it's in volune three of the
application. |It's likely you don't have to pul

that up. So if you do, we can get to that.

So two pollutants in that anal ysis,
ni trogen di oxi de and 24-hour particul ate
matter ceded significant inpact |evels and
therefore required cunul ative i npact nodeling.

Is that correct?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): That's correct.

MS. FIEDLER Can you explain how this
cunul ati ve i npact anal ysis considers health
I npacts?

THE W TNESS (G esock): National Anbi ent
Alr Quality Standards have been established that
protect public health, but the threshold to
determ ne what pollutants should be subject to

addi tional cumul ative i1 npact assessnent are a
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very, very snall fraction of that, of that
Nati onal Anbient Air Quality Standard.

For projects that exceed the -- the
threshold to require that, that cunul ative
nodeling in addition to nodeling the source
there's a cunul ative nodeling that takes into
account the source, takes into account the anbi ent
background air-quality data, and al so specifically
takes into account other sources that are |ocated
in the area.

So even though those other existing
sources are already accounted for in the anbient
air quality data, it's specifically intended to
overstate and be very conservative in terns of how
it looks at that cunul ative effect.

The cumul ati ve nodeling is conpared to
the National Anmbient Air Quality Standard, and
al so conpare -- conpared to the PSD increnents to
make sure that air quality is not being adversely
af f ect ed.

MS. FIEDLER. And how are the sources
selected for inclusion in the nodeling?

THE W TNESS (G esock): The sources were
selected in consultation with Connecti cut DEEP,

and they included sources that were |l ocated in
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Connecti cut and Rhode |sland, and Massachusetts.
And so there was coordination as well wth those
regul atory bodi es.

MS. FIEDLER Was the Frito-Lay facility
i ncluded in this nodeling?

THE WTNESS (Gresock): It was not.

MS. FIEDLER Can you explain why this
facility was excl uded?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): It would have
been excl uded based upon the |limted em ssions
fromthat source that woul d have contri buted.

MS. FI EDLER  Does that source em't
ni trogen di oxi de and particul ate matter?

THE WTNESS (Gesock): | -- | have not
| ooked at that source.

MS. FIEDLER  Ckay. Was this anbient
air-quality analysis specific to the Si enens nodel
that was included in the application?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): The one you're
referenci ng was specific to Sienens, but
subsequent to that tinme additional nodeling has
been conpl eted that reflects the current scenario
which is the basis of the current permt.

MS. FIEDLER  And under the current

scenari o, under the new nodel did any ot her




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

107

pol l utants exceed the significant inpact |evels
and require inmpact nodeling?

THE W TNESS (G esock): They were the
sarne.

MS. FIEDLER: Did NTE conduct any ot her
cunul ati ve i npact anal yses beyond t hose required
to obtain the air permts that assessed the health
i npacts and addi ti onal burden on nei ghboring
comruni ti es?

THE W TNESS (G esock): W did not.

M5. FIEDLER | would like to turn to
the Town of Killingly's prefiled testinony on
page 26. | think it's order nunber 43.

The conmm ssioner requested that the
Siting Council review and consi der, quote,
addi ti onal analysis regarding effective em ssions
on nearby sensitive receptors, end quote,

i ncl udi ng an eval uation through the Connecti cut
Departnent of Heal th.

The conmm ssion al so noted that the Town
is concerned with health inpacts on children and
the el derly because of schools and el dercare
facilities located within a two to three-mle
radi us of the proposed facility.

Can you sunmari ze NTE's response to this
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or der?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): W do not
beli eve that additional health studies are
warranted in this case. The project has had its
em ssi ons thoroughly eval uated by Connecti cut DEEP
who i s responsi ble for upholding air-quality
st andar ds.

The inpacts of the project as currently
proposed are |lower than the original Sienens
configuration that was approved by Connecti cut
DEEP. And the inpacts that are resulting fromthe
project's nmaxi muminpacts are -- are really
relatively low. For exanple, the -- there they're
even below that .2 m crogram per cubic neter
significant inpact |evel thresholds.

Those nmaxi mum i npacts, as you' ve seen
fromthe isopleth drawi ng are | ocated very, very
close to the facility. The nodel ed i npacts drop
off considerably nore fromthat point.

And certainly part of what DEEP
considers in -- and what the U S. EPA consider in
devel oping their prograns and guidelines is
protection of public health. That's -- that's a
huge basis and it's pretty clear to see that

t hrough i nplenentation of the Cean Air Act over
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the years air-quality inprovenents have occurred
in this area.

MS. FIEDLER  What was the Town's
response to your response to that order?

THE W TNESS (G esock): So we have been
provided a formal response to that, to that order.

MS. FIEDLER Is this a topic of
di scussion for your neeting wth the Town next
week?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): | assune it wll
be di scussed, yes.

MS. FIEDLER |I'mgoing to turn to the
gr eenhouse gas reducti on program NTE has
devel oped a greenhouse gas reduction program for
KEC that woul d have the facility elimnate its gas
em ssions by 2050. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): G eenhouse gas,
yes.

MS. FIEDLER Can you expl ain any
m | eposts or interimdeadlines set to ensure
progress for achieving this goal ?

THE W TNESS (Eves): And we tal ked about
this before. So we have made a comm t nent based
actually working wwth the Sierra Cub. W

cooperated very tightly with the Sierra Cub in
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comng up with this greenhouse gas reduction
pr ogram

So we've nade a commtnent to |ine up
wth the State of Connecticut. W understand and
support the -- the big carbon reducti on goals here
in the State. So we've cone up wth a program
that will allow us to reduce those carbon
em ssions. W're confident that we can do it
t hrough technol ogy, but in the event we can't do
it through technology we do have the ability to
buy carbon offsets.

We' ve put together a plan in the
voluntary programworking with the Sierra C ub
that had ten years at the current | evel and then
it began to drop off after that, and then we had a
year - by-year goal fromthere through 2050.

MS. FIEDLER  And you stated earlier
today that those technol ogies are close to market,
but we do not have those technol ogies currently
avai |l able. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That's correct.

MS. FIEDLER. And | believe you al so
stated that it's very likely that these
t echnol ogi es woul d be available for this class of

machi ne. Is that al so correct?
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THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

MS. FIEDLER So it is not certain that
t hose technol ogies are currently being devel oped
for this?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That's correct.

MS. FIEDLER Can these technol ogies --

THE WTNESS (Eves): I|I'msorry. D d you
say, it's not certain that they wll be avail abl e?
O it's not certain that they're being devel oped?

They are in devel opnent -- they're
not -- they are in devel opnent, but until they're
done bei ng devel oped it's not sure whether they're
going to be actually sonething that can
t echnol ogi cal |l y be added.

MS. FIEDLER. And can this technol ogy be
used in ol der gas plants that KEC ains to repl ace?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Typically these
conbustion technol ogies applied to very specific
cl asses of machines. Wuld there be other
technol ogi es that could go into older units and
reduce their em ssions? Potentially.

MS. FI EDLER. Does this greenhouse gas
em ssions reduction programrequire the reduction
of nmet hane | eakage fromthe extraction and

delivery of gas used for the operation of KEC?
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THE W TNESS (Eves): Qur greenhouse gas
programrelates to the em ssions fromthe
facility.

MS. FIEDLER |Is NTE i nvesting any
financial or human capital to the devel opnent of
t hese technol ogies that will be necessary to
achi eve these goal s?

THE W TNESS (Eves): W' re buying the
equi pnent .

MS. FIEDLER  And how i s NTE budgeti ng
for the inplenentati on of these technol ogi es?

THE WTNESS (Eves): | would -- | would

say the sanme way, you know, we budget for

everything looking to the future. That wll be
taken care of as -- as technol ogi es becone
avai lable. W will look at -- we'll | ook at them

in the year that they're avail abl e and budget for
them at that tine.

MS. FIEDLER  And | understand that
t hese technol ogies are not on the market, so you
m ght not be able to answer this question. But do
you have an understandi ng of the costs of
i mpl enenti ng these technol ogi es?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Not today.

MS. FIEDLER In prior testinony -- |I'm
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goi ng back again to 2016. On Novenber 15, 2016,
on page 523, lines 1 through 7, M. Eves, you
testified that the actual life of the facility is
around 30 years, yet it could be extended to 50
years Wi th appropriate upgrades.

Is this correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

MS. FIEDLER NTE ains to elimnate
gr eenhouse gas eni ssions around 30 years into the
life of the facility, or around the end of its
useful life w thout better upgrades.

Can you explain howthis lifespan w |
not i npact the decisions to invest in greenhouse
gas reduci ng technol ogi es when ot her significant
i nvestments will need to be nade concurrently to
sinply keep the facility in operation?

THE W TNESS (Eves): As we -- as we run
the facility over, you know, the next 30 or 50
years we w Il do mai ntenance on that facility
every year as upgrades are avail able, put themin
during -- during those, those peri ods.

As -- as these upgrades becone avail abl e
and they give us benefits in efficiency and out put
in emssions, we -- we wll inplenent themthrough

t he budgets that we set year by year for the
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facility.

MS. FI EDLER: In response to
i nterrogatory nunber 35, on page 16 of the Siting
Council's interrogatories, step 1, NTE stated that
this programis voluntary. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

MS. FIEDLER  Are there any consequences
to NTEif it does not achieve this goal?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Not under the
programthat we've put together, however it's a
comm tnent that we've made. | think we're the
only one in the industry that has nmade -- that has
made such a commtnent. W're going to stand
behi nd this conm tnent.

And | think by not living to this
conmm t nent woul d be, you know, woul d, you know,
it's not sonething we are considering. You know,
we're making a commtnent that we are -- we'l
abi de by.

MS. FIEDLER |Is this commtnent
included in either of the air permts obtained for
the facility?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

Do you want to add nore to that?

We actually -- we tal ked with DEEP about
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including it in the air permt, and they said this
is -- this is not the kind of programthat they
woul d include in the air permt. And actually one
of the Sierra Cub folks were involved in those
conversations as well.

MS. FIEDLER | understand that NTE has
several other facilities. Are there simlar
em ssi ons reduction conm tnents for those
facilities as well?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

MS. FIEDLER  Connecti cut Cener al
Statutes Section 16-50P, subsection A-1, grants
the Siting Council the authority to grant a
certificate upon such terms, conditions,
limtations or nodifications of the construction
or operation of the facility as the Council may
deem appropri at e.

WII NTE ask the Siting Council to
condition the certificate on conpliance with these
gr eenhouse gas reducti on goal s?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Sure. | nean, I|'ll
reiterate ny position. Because of Connecticut's
programto reduce carbon em ssions we have nade a
voluntary commtnment that we fully intend to Ilive

by and we would -- we have no objection to that
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bei ng included as a condition of our certificate.
MS. FIEDLER Al right. |I'mswtching

gears now to water. In the diversion permt

obt ai ned by Connecticut Water Conpany attachnent

one of NTE s responses to interveners

interrogatories, on page 5 the permt reads that

DEEP has the right to restrict the diversion if

t he Conm ssioner determ nes, quote, a decl ared

| ocal, regional or statew de drought advisory

wat ch, warni ng or energency whi ch necessitates

curtail nent of nonessential water uses, end quote.
Can you explain how this would affect

the operations of KECif this diversion were to be

restricted?

THE W TNESS (Eves): |If it happened to
be one of those periods of -- of tine when we were
required to be burning oil, which we think as we
previously tal ked about will be very limted, and

they could not provide the quantity of water
because of such a curtailnent, then it woul d cause
us to reduce | oad.

We do however have plenty of storage
on-site of dem neralized water. So dependi ng on
the duration of the curtailnent it may have an

inpact. It may not. Sure, one-day curtail nent
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woul d not have an inpact on our ability to
oper at e.

THE W TNESS (Rega): Water even perhaps
up to two days.

MS. FIEDLER Do you have storage on
site for two days of water usage?

THE W TNESS (Rega): Approxinmately, yes.

MS. FI EDLER  Ckay. Thank you.

And | understand that the use of the

di esel source is nost likely to occur during
extrene cold weather. |Is this correct?
THE WTNESS (Eves): | would say yes.

MS. FIEDLER O it's possible that this
fuel source could occur, the need for this fuel
source could occur at any tine. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That is correct.

MS. FIEDLER  Can you expl ain how
Connecti cut Water Conpany's anal ysis of adequate
margi n of safety considered concurrent drought and
a diesel use, and its correspondi ng water need?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No, | can -- |
cannot explain that. | do know that they ran the
anal yses, but | cannot explain how that was done
or what they consi dered.

MS. FIEDLER Ckay. In appendix H 1 on
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page 1 of the July 29, 2016, correspondence from
Connecti cut Water conpany, M. Radke wites,
quot e, because supply availability of any system
is finite an annual review of Connecticut Water's
ability to serve the project wll need to be
conducted on the one-year anniversary date of this
| etter and every year thereafter until the project
is conplete, end quote.

To your know edge, has this annual

revi ew been conduct ed?

THE W TNESS (Eves): | know that they've
done a lot of analysis. |I'mlooking at their
system and -- and figuring out how they provide

this water to us with the appropriate nargi n of
safety

Specifically that analysis? | can't
tell you.

MS. FIEDLER Ckay. | was going to ask,
who was this provided to and what formit's in,
but it sounds |like you don't know.

Shoul d the annual review in the future
determ ne that Connecticut Water can no | onger
serve the project, can you explain how that would
I npact the operation of the facility?

THE WTNESS (Eves): | think that that
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scenario is very unlikely, but if we don't have
wat er we can't operate.

THE WTNESS (Gresock): If -- if that
was i n appendix H 1 of the original application
t hat correspondence woul d have been prior to the
agreenents that have been entered into at this
poi nt .

So |'"msure that the agreenents have a
termto them and anal ysis has been done in order
for themto nmake that comm tnent.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: I'mgoing to
interrupt you for one second. M. Lynch has a
questi on.

MR LYNCH. | think this cane up before,
but in the event that Connecticut Water Conpany is
purchased by anot her water conpany does your
contract still stay in agreenent?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes. Yeah, it --
it would transfer to the new owner.

MR LYNCH So it follows your contract.
Thank you.

Thank you, Ms. Fiedler.

THE W TNESS (Eves): And | would like to
add, | nean, Connecticut \Water Conpany has several

well fields that are not fully devel oped. So they
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have -- they have a significant quantity of water
that's still available on permtted well fields
t hat have not yet been devel oped.

MS. FIEDLER In NTE s Late-File Exhibit
Nunber 2 submitted on April 11, 2019, NTE reports
t hat Connecti cut Water Conpany's updated water
supply plan did not include any projections
associated with KEC as of May 2018.

Is this correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That is correct,
however their cal culations were very conservative
and | have actually -- I'"msure | have --

Do you have that, Chris? The letter

from--

I know they -- they've done very
conservative estinates. | believe it's -- of
course, | would have to check to confirm but I

bel i eve that Put nam has, you know, they've got a
significant quantity of water allocated to Putnam
who does not typically -- | nean, they're taking
about 10 percent of that val ue.

So after they've done a very
conservative cal culation -- and then they | ook at
the other margins in their system They have

confirmed to us in witing that they can provide
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that water and still achieve the nargin of
safeties that they're required to provide.

MS. FIEDLER And to confirm that water
supply does cover a five-year planning period?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Hang on just a

mnute. | know |l've got it here.
So, yes. | -- 1 amnot aware of their
pl anni ng peri od, but our -- but our service

contract with Connecticut Water covers a 20-year
period with extensions.

MS. FIEDLER Ckay. | think that's the
| ast question | have.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you,
Attorney Fiedler.

I'd like to have the group parties cone
up, including Attorney Mntel.

MS. CSANK:  Your Honor, at the
appropriate tine I would |ike to request a very
brief break. | think it will help streamine
questions based upon the answers just provided to
Ms. Fiedler.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  What woul d be an
appropriate tine?

MS. CSANK: Well if your Honor wants

to -- | wasn't sure if there was any ot her
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procedural matters we were about to address, but
now woul d be a good tine. And if we nay ask for
10 m nutes, that would be very hel pful ?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: How about five?

MS. CSANK: Respectfully in order to use
the restroom and stream i ne the questions, ten
m nutes woul d be nore apt.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  We' Il adj ourn for
ten m nutes.

MS. CSANK: Thank you, sir.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

(Wher eupon, a recess was taken from 2: 14

p.m to 2:24 p.m)

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Attorney Bal dw n,
is your panel all set?

MR. BALDWN W are. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Thank you. Al

right. W'Ill call this hearing back to order and
we W ll begin with cross-exam nati on by the group
parties.

You have one m crophone. So dependi ng
upon who m ght be speaking, just orient it in the

appropri ate manner.
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MS. CSANK: Yes, sir.

This is D ana Csank, spelled C-s-a-n-Kk,
for Sierra CAQub. Good afternoon. For the clarity
of the record I'd |like to go over sone key terns
that 1'Il be using in ny examn nation.

| believe the project has been referred

to throughout this proceeding as KEC. Unless I

say otherwise | will be referring to KEC when
say the plant, or the project -- if that's clear?
And simlarly, when | say you, | nean,

t he conpany, the applicant.

| heard the term"ratepayers"” used this
afternoon. | prefer to use custoners, or the
public. So those should be understood to be
synonynous.

And | also heard the term "natural gas"
used t hroughout this proceeding, and I will not be
using that termfor the nost part. | wll be
sinply saying gas, and as appropriate shal e gas
and ot her variations on that.

One nore request just for expedi ency of
t he exam nation. Many of ny questions wll call
for a yes or no, or I don't know answer. |If you
woul d pl ease start with a yes, no, or | don't know

before explaining as needed? | think that wl|
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expedite the exam nati on.

MR BALDWN We will do our best, but a
| ot of questions that are often posed as yes or no
requi re an explanation. So we'll do our best.

M5. CSANK: Thank you. That's all | can
ask.

Sol'dlike to begin with a question, or
aline rather, for M. H bbard. And pl ease give
me the signal if I'"'mnot sufficiently audible. |
like to turn to the witness when |I ask them
questions, but | realize that poses a chall enge
wWth this setup.

THE REPORTER: |'m not havi ng any
difficulty hearing you.

M5, CSANK: G eat.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: If you're
unconfortable, if you want to switch and go in the
m ddl e t hen you' ve got a perfect angle.

MS. CSANK: Let ne do that.

M. Hi bbard, generally speaking it is
your testinony that there is a need for the
project. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): There is a need
for the project, yes.

MS. CSANK: And is that based on any
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I ndependent anal ysis by any agenci es bel ow?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): It's based upon
extensi ve anal ysis by the i ndependent system
operator in adm nistration of a forward capacity
mar ket that is used to acquire resources needed to
mai ntain the reliability standards.

MS. CSANK: Any ot her agenci es besi des
t he | SO?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | believe nost
state public utility comm ssions are pretty
actively involved in all of the vetting of the
vari ous nodels and anal yses that are used to
establish the install capability responsibility,
which is ultimately what determ nes which
resources are selected to neet the reliability
needs.

And | should nmention that the
reliability needs thensel ves are an indication of
enforceabl e federal standards that are overseen by
FERC and then adm ni stered by NERC, and the NPCC
and | SO.

M5. CSANK: Ckay. That was a robust
answer. Thank you. | believe that the call of ny
question was sinply whether other agencies were

i nvolved in the need determ nation specifically
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for this project. And is the answer, yes? No? |
don't know?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Can you j ust
expl ai n what you nean by agenci es?

M5. CSANK: CGovernnent entities, let's
say.

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yeah, so -- and
my answer is, at least in ny experience as a
comm ssioner in Massachusetts and what | observed
of all the states is they are very active
participants in all of the various pieces of
anal yses that lead to I SO, through its own
conpr ehensi ve nodeling, indicating what is needed
to nmeet the federally enforceable reliability
st andar ds.

Soinny -- in ny view there are an
awful | ot of agencies that are part of the process
that | eads to when the forward capacity narket is
actually adm nistered. The resources that are
obt ai ned are the resources that are needed for
reliability.

MS. CSANK: Thank you. And we'll get
into that process that the | SO uses and what the
CSO neans -- and I wll try to avoid acronyns as

much as possi ble so that we're speaking in English
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w th each other.

But in terns of just to clarify for the
record what | think we just established is that
there is no other process besides this system
oper ator process through which the conpany has
obtai ned a capacity service obligation that
revi ews need.

I's that correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): No. Again --
and I'"'mnot trying to be difficult. | actually
think that the process that sets the reliability
needs which is the basis for securing resources to
meet that reliability need is extensively overseen
by the federal governnment, by the FERC, the
Federal Energy Regul atory Conm ssi on.

The | evel of resources procured to neet
reliability needs both stens fromrequired steps
that the system operator in New Engl and nust take
to identify what the quantity of need is, and
then -- no. Just let ne finish the answer.

And t hen FERC approves that quantity,
and then ultimately FERC sanctions the outcone.
Sol -- 1 think there's extensive federal
oversight of the process that |eads to the

determ nati on of resources that are needed to neet
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federal reliability standards.

There's no state agency process |I'm
aware of that |1SO needs to go through in order to
get approval of those things, but all of the New
Engl and states are extrenely active in all of the
processes. And generally as agencies submt
comments to FERC often with respect to whether or
not they believe the ICRis the correct nunmber and
various things |like that.

Sol -- 1 just don't want to | eave the
i npressi on that governnent agencies are not
actively involved in the process that |eads to the
sel ection of resources needed for reliability.

MS. CSANK: [|If I may just help us
understand, again this -- this detailed recitation
by you, what we've established on the record is
that there's one conpl ex process whereby you
obt ai ned the capacity service obligation for this
project. Correct? Yes, no, | don't know?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): There is a
process that |eads to a determ nation of what
resources need to be available to neet federally
enforceable reliability standards. The end result
of that are capacity supply obligations.

The end result of that whol e process is
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a set of existing and new resources wth capacity
supply obligations. Those resources need to
perform pursuant to those obligations to nmaintain
that level of reliability.

M5. CSANK: Sir, forgive nme, but |
really do think -- maybe it's because |'m not as
experienced as you, but it would really help ne if
you answer the call of nmy question. You didn't
say yes, no, | don't know. You el aborated on this
pr ocess.

And if | would just beg your i ndul gence
and ask the reporter, sir, would you pl ease read
back that question?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Wl |, actually Iet
me interject on this one. | think you're going to
find as we tal k about electricity in general that
it's a very, very conplex process and sone things
you're not going to get a straight yes, no or
maybe-type of answer w thout an expl anation goi ng
forward.

So I'm hearing the explanation com ng
through and | really think it does answer your
question, that perhaps you m ght want to rephrase
it slightly to get to what you're | ooking for.

But overall | think you' re going to get
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yes, no, but there's going to be sone type of
expl anation or other words that are going to go
along with it to try to explain that answer,
because as he stated and the applicant stated, it
is conpl ex.

M5. CSANK: Granted, Your Honor. \Wat
I'"'msinply trying to establish -- and in ny
experience, hunbly it works rather well is if
right after | ask the question if the w tness
says, yes, no, | don't know, and then expl ains,
the record reads nuch cl earer and everyone can
proceed clearly.

G herwi se | have to keep tripping over
nyself to repeatedly go at it in different ways
until | get a yes, no, or, | don't know -- because
t he expl anation tends to be rather |ong.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: It could be I ong
but I think you' re getting your answer -- but
| et's continue.

MS. CSANK: All right.

Sir, besides the capacity supply
obligation and vari ous processes that you've
identified that wind up into it, is there any
ot her need anal ysis perfornmed by a third-party

other than the applicant that's in the record
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t oday?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Not that | have
seen. | nean, | -- so with that -- so the
answer -- so the answer -- the answer is, no, |

have not seen anything in the record other than
what the applicant has identified as obtaining a
CSOto neet the reliability need in the New

Engl and regi on.

| personally testified that there are
also other reliability benefits, but in terns of
the determ nation of need that is limted to this
process we have been di scussing, the applicant
obtai ning a capacity supply obligation through
this process -- that we have di scussed.

M5. CSANK: What is a reliability supply
benefit?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | am not
famliar with the term

MS. CSANK: | believe you just used it,
sir.

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): There -- | said
there are other reliability benefits associ ated
wth the facility.

MS. CSANK: And how woul d you defi ne

reliability benefits for the record?
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THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | would define
them as characteristics of the operation of the
power pl ant, of the KEC powerplant that help neet
various elenents of that related to power system
reliability in New Engl and.

M5. CSANK: So is there a standard
met hodol ogy that you're applying that's docunent ed
in the record for identifying such benefits?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): There are a
nunber of docunents in the record that describe
the reliability benefits of various sources of
power, and those are what |I'mreferring to.

The provision of ancillary services, the
ability to help the system operator neet
variations in | oad on a second- by-second,
hour - by- hour, day-by-day basis. You know, the --
as we discussed prettily extensively, the ability
of the unit to increase the |level of fuel security
in the region, the -- being a generating resource
| ocated close to | oad hel ps provi de vol tage
support .

These are all things that docunents in
the record from | SO New Engl and and from NERC, the
Nort heast Electric Reliability Council identify as

reliability benefits of various generating
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sour ces.
And that's what I|"'mreferring to when |
say, reliability benefit. | do want to be clear
that when | say, need, it's related to their
acqui sition of capacity supply obligation through
the forward capacity narket.
MS. CSANK: Pl ease explain that |ast
statenent. Wiy is that significant in this case?
THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): That's what
we' ve been discussing up to this point, that KEC
obtai ni ng a capacity supply obligation neans that
the unit is needed to neet the power system
reliability, and neet reliability in a way that's
consi stent with what the system operator has done

pursuant to federal reliability standards.

M5. CSANK: Ckay. And when you referred

to these various docunents in the record that
identify all these various reliability benefits,
are any of those specifically evaluating the
project and its ability to deliver such benefits?
THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No. | -- what
said was that the -- those docunents identify
characteristics of powerplants that are inportant
for maintai ning power systemreliability, and KEC

actually has nost of those characteristics.
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MS. CSANK: And it's not your testinony,
but it's the only possible option for Connecti cut
to achi eve such benefits. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | don't believe
| have cl ai ned that.

MS. CSANK: And how would you know if it
were the only such option?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): If there wasn't
a single other entity on the planet offering to
buil d the powerplants to neet the need that has
been identified, than it would be the only one.
But that's -- | don't know if that hel ps answer
t he questi on.

MS. CSANK: Do you recall a conversation
we were having earlier this norning, not ne, but
ot hers on this panel concerning the possibility of
a delay and the inplications for the conmpany's
capacity supply obligation?

Do you recall that conversation?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): | -- | recall a
di scussi on about -- yes. | recall a discussion
about -- | don't recall which, but things possibly

del ayi ng the operation of the facility.
MS. CSANK: And maybe this is the

correct tinme to say it -- and certainly if M.
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Eves would |like to address this |ine, but
basically ny line is this.

If there were such a del ay that
prevented for whatever reason the applicant from
having in service the project by June of 2022, do
you have any analysis that indicates there would
not be other supply options that could be procured
on a short-term basi s?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): To the contrary,
| believe Killingly has an obligation to nake sure
that its capacity supply obligation is net. So if
for sone reason there was a del ay they woul d be
obligated to participate in -- in subsequent
annual auctions to replace the capacity that it
ot herwi se woul d provi de.

MS5. CSANK: And as we sit here today the
applicant is confident that it can neet that
contingency and satisfy that, that obligation that
it has?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Well, they --
there is established -- there are established
regi onal market rules that govern how that's done.
So they don't have an alternative.

They woul d have to -- if they have a

capacity supply obligation, if the plant is not
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avai l able there are steps that they have to take
pursuant to regional market rules to nake sure
there's -- there are other resources to neet that
capacity supply obligation.

The second part of the answer is that
there's a whol e regi onal narket process to make
sure that those resources cone forward. It's not
that Killingly would have to go out and find a
specific resource. They would participate in an
auction process that would ultimately identify the
resource that replaces the CSO

MS. CSANK: So let's say, in a
hypot heti cal case where this project is denied,
then it sounds as though you could go to the
mar ket and there would be capacity, and there
woul d be resources.

And they woul d be available to neet this
identified need, a need identified to be clear,
not in this year, but in the past and there's
going to be subsequent updates to the analysis
that the system operator perforned. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): |1'mnot quite
sure | understand the question. There's a
process --

MS. CSANK: Let nme break it down because
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that was -- strike that question. That was an
unfair question.

So you're with ne with the predicate
here that we have a denial of the project. Yes?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No, | don't
think the Council has rul ed yet.

MS. CSANK: That's why it's a
hypothetical. | believe there's a |l ot of
specul ation that we've heard today. So if you
woul d just indulge ne in alittle bit nore
specul ati on.

In this scenario where the project were
denied there is no analysis in the record that you
know of. Correct? That indicates that the
conpany could not go out to the market and find
short-termresources to neet that obligation.
Correct?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): | haven't -- I'm
not aware of anything in the record that suggests
that what the outcone would be if the project was
deni ed.

M5. CSANK: And for what ternf? |Is there
no shortage of other options on the market?

THE WTNESS (H bbard): |'mnot sure

under st and t he questi on.
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MS. CSANK: So how | ong could we go on
W t hout the project and still neet the capacity

supply obligation that the conpany has? Do you

know?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): I'msorry.
l'"'m-- and again, I'"'mnot trying to be difficult.
| still don't quite understand the question that

you' re aski ng.

M5. CSANK: So there's a certain supply
obligation the conpany has incurred. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): It was -- it has
a capacity supply obligation because it cleared
this capacity narket.

MS. CSANK: And what that neans is
whet her or not the project is built that
obligation has to be fulfilled. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): They're the only
ones with their capacity supply obligation.
The -- there is a process that happens annually as
part of the regional market to find the resources
that are needed to neet the identified reliability
need.

M5. CSANK: And what's the ternf Just
pl ease rem nd us of the obligation that the

conpany currently has?
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THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): They have a
capacity supply -- supply obligation.

M5. CSANK: O how many years?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): OCh, seven years.

MS. CSANK: Thank you. And so as we sit
here today do you know whether it can neet that
obligation every year of those seven years w t hout
the project?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | -- are you
aski ng whet her or not they could neet that for
seven years w thout the project?

MS. CSANK:  Yes.

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | would assune
so. | would assune that that -- that would be
their obligation pursuant to market rules.

M5. CSANK: So that's an assunption.

You haven't perforned any anal ysis?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | have not
perfornmed any anal ysis that goes out for the seven
years subsequent to '22/'23 to determ ne what
woul d happen under vari ous scenari 0os, no.

MS. CSANK: The conpany never asked you
to anal yze that, in other words?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): That that's

not -- they had not asked ne to do exactly what |
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just said, no.

MS. CSANK: Thank you. And then an
anal ysis can be done, though. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): You woul d have
to explain a little bit nore exactly what anal ysis
you have in mnd, but --

MS. CSANK: Sir, you're the expert. So
you know, please illumnate us if such analysis is
f easi bl e.

MR BALDWN | think the appropriate
thing, M. Chairman, is that she asked the
question and we gave the answer.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah, and I'm
trying to figure out nyself what the exact

question is that you're trying to pose.

It sounds like -- but | don't want to
put words in your nouth. It sounds like you're
asking themif they're going to fulfill the

contract if the Council denies this application.

M5. CSANK: Yes, your Honor.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER  Try to phrase it
that way and maybe it will make sense.

M5. CSANK: Sir, you have a contract to
supply a certain anmount to the market. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): As a result of
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the forward capacity market NTE currently is
obligated to neet their capacity supply obligation
in 2022/ 2023.

M5. CSANK: And what is the size of that
capacity obligation?

THE W TNESS (Eves): 631 negawatts in
t he summerti ne.

M5. CSANK: And so in winter is there a
di fference?

THE W TNESS (Eves): You know, we'l
produce nore power in the winter. Qur conmtnent
iIs a 631 negawatts.

MS. CSANK: Thank you. And so ny
question is sinply, what kind of analysis can be
performed to verify whether in each year of the
contract the conpany can fulfill the contract if
the Council were to deny the project as proposed?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): The -- the
conpany is obligated to participate in subsequent
auctions. If for sone reason, if -- if the
Counci | denies the conpany's application they wll
have to participate in those subsequent auctions
to make sure that the capacity, the full capacity
supply obligation is addressed.

MS. CSANK: Besi des the auction, is
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there any other analysis that can be perforned to
verify that the conpany can fulfill its capacity
supply obligation for the termof the obligation?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Not that I'm
awar e of.

MS. CSANK: And since you're not aware
of any such analysis, you certainly didn't perform
such analysis. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | think as
previously said, | was not asked to perform
analysis |like that.

MS. CSANK: Do you think it's prudent to
enter a contract w thout having anal ysis perforned
to reasonably assure the contracting parties that
they can fulfill their obligations?

MR BALDWN  Objection. M. Hibbard is
not in a position to answer for the conpany, nor
do | think it's an appropriate questi on.

The record is clear in this case,

M. Silvestri. The CSO has been issued. W can
tal k specul atively about all these other

hypot heticals, but | don't think it's appropriate
in these circunstances to be going down those
roads. The record is what it is.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah, |'IIl agree




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

143

that the record is what it is. [|'d like to nove
on, on this one and get onto nore concrete if we
can.

M5. CSANK: Certainly, your Honor.

If I may just very briefly address
di sti ngui shed counsel's comrent ?

The capacity supply obligation is
squarely before you in this matter, and ne sinply
probing the inplications of that is, | would
submt and strenuously maintain is highly rel evant
to the decision here, and | should be allowed to

ask questi ons.

So to the extent that |'munable to do
so further I wll at this tine | aunch an
objection. However, | will proceed to a slightly

different but related line with respect to the
various reliability benefits that M. H bbard has
identified that, if I'"mcorrect -- understandi ng
correctly are he is distinguished fromthe
capacity supply obligation and the, quote,
unquote, need that that represents. Correct?
These are different things, the
reliability benefits and the capacity supply
obl i gati on?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): The -- what
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referred to as additional reliability benefits
wer e above and beyond what the capacity supply
obligation is, which is essentially neet sumer
peak demand with 631 negawatts of capacity from
the facility.

MS. CSANK: And we can agree that other
resources, including other gas conbi ned cycle
units can provide such benefits. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): The -- so the
one-word answer is yes, but the explanation is
t hat on an annual basis the end result of the
forward capacity market process is the
identification of the | east cost set of resources
that in total neet the entire region's installed
need, their reliability need, net |ICR

And there are nmany ot her resources other
than this facility that participate in that
auction process, and a subset of which is sel ected
to be -- and granted capacity supply obligations
in order to neet that need.

MS. CSANK: Ckay. And just to be clear,
if for some reason the conditions inposed upon
this project were to reduce its capacity output,
it would still be able to provide such benefits.

Correct?
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MR. BALDW N Conditions inposed by
whont?

M5. CSANK: By this Council.

VMR, BALDW N: So the question is, if
this Council were to inpose capacity limts --

MS. CSANK: May | clarify? 1'Il strike
my question and go at it anot her way.

If the Council were to condition its
approval in such a manner that the capacity out put
of the project were reduced, would the project
still be able to provide these reliability
benefits that you have identified, sir?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): |If the -- if the
unit for one reason or another had avail abl e
capacity less than the 631 negawatts, nunber one,
the difference would have to be nade up. |
just -- | want to give a conplete answer.

The difference for the CSO purpose woul d
have to be nmade up in the sane way we were
previously discussing, in the forward capacity
mar ket auctions. The renmaining portion that the
facility is able to operate would still be able to
provide all of the reliability benefits that I
identified.

MS. CSANK: Thank you. And wouldn't the
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sane be true if the conditional approval by the
Council were to delay the construction of the
project, all else being equal?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | think as we've
di scussed, the conpany's obligation is very
explicit. It's in "22/'23. It needs to be -- it
has a capacity supply obligation for
631 negawatts. |If it's not avail able on June 1,
*22/' 23 then all of our previous
di scussi on appli es.

M5. CSANK: So sir, | just think it wll
be clear for the record -- |I'm not asking about
the capacity supply obligation. At the beginning
of this line we established that the additi onal
reliability benefits are additional above and
beyond the cost of supply obligation.

So if you would just bear with ne and
answer the call of the question | think we'll get
through it faster.

And so ny question was sinply this. |If
t he conditi onal approval by this Council were to
result in a delay of the in-service date of the
project, would the project still be able to
deliver reliability benefits to the people of

Connecti cut ?
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THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): At the tinme it
commenced operation, yes, but not in the period of
time between when they wish to go online and when
they do go online. |If it's not operating it can't
provide those reliability benefits.

MS. CSANK: Thank you, sir.

And as we sit here today, nothing in the
record says that there is a reliability shortfal
in Connecticut. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): There is nothing
in the record that explicitly says there's a
reliability shortfall in Connecticut, however the
reliability need in Connecticut is a function of
what happens in regi onal nmarket processes, and
that's what we've been di scussi ng.

M5. CSANK: And so is there anything in
the record that says as we sit here today, a
reliability shortfall existing or projected in the
regi onal nmarket?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): The --

M5. CSANK: Yes? No? | don't know,
sir?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Well, it doesn't
lend itself to a yes, no, | don't know answer. |

do know | would answer and | -- just for the
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benefit of the Council | think it's the -- the
process that | eads to capacity supply obligations
being i ssued for the full range of powerplants in
the region that neet that need is the process that
determ nes what resources are going to neet
federally enforceable reliability standards three
years out.

And so you can't point to any particul ar
state within the region and say, there's a need in
this state but not a need in another state. That
each state relies upon the generating facilities
that participate in the forward capacity narket
t hroughout the entire region. So reliability in
Connecticut is dependent upon generation in
Connecti cut and throughout the entire region.

Simlarly generation in Connecticut
provides reliability benefits to other states in
New Engl and. That's just the structure of our
tightly integrated power grid in a tightly
I nt egrated power narket.

Sol -- 1 just want to be cl ear that
when you speak about a reliability need within
Connecticut, it's nore conplex than -- than
| ooki ng specifically at one state.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Lynch has a
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foll owup question for you.

MR LYNCH M. Hi bbard, follow ng up on
what you just said -- all powerplants throughout
New Engl and are running, and is there any
l'i kel'i hood that the 1 SO would call for a dispatch
| ess than 330 -- | nean, 631 negawatts from your
power pl ant ?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): The -- the
answer is -- the answer is that, yes, at -- in any
gi ven hour throughout the year any powerplant in
the region could be operating at full capacity or
sonething less than full capacity.

What the 1SO calls for is based upon
hourly econom c dispatch. So it really depends on
how do you m ni m ze the hour-to-hour cost to
consuners, to ratepayers and to consuners.

MR. LYNCH. So peak tines you could be
running at full capacity, and in | ess peak tines
you could be running it | ess?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yeah, and you
know, ny expectation is this facility being nore
efficient than nost other fossil generating
facilities in the region because it will have a
really high capacity factor.

MR LYNCH. So that |eads ne to ny next
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question. Does the 1SO provide a priority of
di spatch?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): The 1SO
determ nes what units operate in each hour based
on an increasing variable cost curve.

Soit's literally based upon how much
does it cost to generate a negawatt hour. So
yeah, it's an increasing supply curve.

MR. LYNCH. Thank you very nuch.

Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

Pl ease conti nue.

MS. CSANK: Thank you.

Since we're tal king about dispatch, now
is probably a good tinme to return to a question
fromthis norning about decarbonization and the
vari ous nethods to achi eve decarboni zation. And |
believe in the context of that conversation
certain bolt-on technol ogi es were di scussed.

M. Eves, do you recall that?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

MS5. CSANK: And for the clarity of the
record could you pl ease define bolt-on
t echnol ogi es as you under stand t henf

THE W TNESS (Eves): That would be a
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technol ogy that can be added to an existing
machi ne without -- that could -- I'Il just |eave
it at that. 1It's a technology that coul d be added
to an existing machi ne.

M5. CSANK: So it's within the fence
line of the facility. 1It's on the site that we're
di scussing. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

MS. CSANK: As opposed to neasures
beyond the fence line that also mght also result
in em ssions reductions. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Wen | speak of
bolt-on, yes, it would be in, inside the fence
i ne.

M5. CSANK: And so I'Il link this up to
di spatch in a nonent, but to be clear | think
Ms. Gresock identified for us that, for exanple,
resources such as solar and w nd, and certainly
ot hers do not produce em ssions when they are
operating and produci ng power supply.

Is that correct?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): That's correct.

M5. CSANK: And also | think it would be
better for the record to just establish that

approxi mately 80 percent of the cost of buil ding




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

152

and operating a gas plant are fuel costs.

Correct?

THE WTNESS (Eves): | think that's a
difficult question. Building -- yeah, there's no
gas cost at all included in building the -- the
facility. | would say operating the facility, the

gas costs are a significant contribution to the
cost s.

MS5. CSANK: Do you have any qualified
analysis to present to the Council ?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Not right now. |
don't have that.

MS. CSANK: So subject to check, would
you accept that in other gas plant matters states
have consistently found that about 80 percent of
construction and operating costs of such

facilities are fuel costs.

THE WTNESS (Eves): |'msorry, but
can't -- | can't -- | nmean, | would have to | ook
it up, but I -- 1 can't.

M5. CSANK:  You don't know. Is that
correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): | don't know.
Yeah, there you go. Yeah.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: If I could
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interject on that? | believe that M. Eves said
the gas cost doesn't factor in on construction.

MS. CSANK: Right. And so --

THE W TNESS (Eves): That's correct.

MS5. CSANK: -- what | was suggesti ng was
that the denom nator would be the construction and
operation costs conbined. And I was searching for
the nunerator, if they knewit. And I think the
record will show that they do not know it.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  And we'll leave it
at that.

MS. CSANK: Thank you, sir.

And just to be clear, resources such as
renewabl e resources, solar and w nd do not have
fuel costs. Correct? Yes, no, don't know?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No, they do have
fuel costs, because we need power 24 hours a day.
And when the -- when the solar is not operating,
when there's no wi nd, when there's no sun that
power has got to cone from sonewhere. And that,
that power is going to come fromsone facility
t hat uses fuel.

I woul d say during the hours of the day
that solar is operating there's no fuel associ ated

wth it, but if you | ook at that power over a
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24-hour period there's going to be fuel required
to back up, to provide the power that that sol ar
facility would provide.

M5. CSANK: Sir, do you have any witten
analysis that says -- well, first of all, the cal
of nmy question was sinply when solar and w nd
operate do they have a fuel cost? And | believe
t he answer is, no.

Is that correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): | don't think that
was your question, but yeah, when sol -- when
solar and w nd operate there are no fuel costs
associ ated wth those resources.

MS. CSANK: And what is your basis for
suggesting to the Council that fossil-fuel ed
resources nust be conbined with solar in order to
reliably serve custoners?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Because the sun
doesn't shine at night and the wind doesn't bl ow
all the time. | nean, we have to get that power
from sonmewher e

Battery technology is a long way off on
the horizon. Soneday nmaybe it will be here, but
there, | nmean, those variable resources have to be

backed up. That's -- and that's, you know, Pau
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tal ks about reliability benefits. That's one of

the huge reliability benefits of this machine, is
its flexibility to be able to provide power when

t he vari abl e resources are unavail abl e.

M5. CSANK: Sir, are you aware that
there are jurisdictions that have conpletely
phased out their fossil fuels and supply their
custonmers with affordable, reliable and adequate
ener gy?

MR BALDW N  Objection. Relevance? |Is
there a questi on.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Il would stay with
the project itself wth your questions, please.

MS. CSANK: Yes, your Honor. | believe
that this line of questioning is highly rel evant
to the earlier questioning concerning
decar boni zati on and the nethods to achi eve the
State's decarboni zati on goal s.

And so | was sinply exploring the
feasibility of other nethods that may be avail abl e
i ndeed to this applicant of advancing those policy
obj ectives of the State.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: ' m not sure where
you' re goi ng, but please pose your next question.

MS. CSANK: |If | can have just a tiny




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

156

bit of latitude to ask a couple nore questions and
we can nove on?

So in a dispatch stack isn't it true
t hat renewabl e energies tend to be di spatched
earlier than fossil-fuel ed energies?

THE WTNESS (H bbard): | think the
answer to that is, yes, npbst renewabl e resources
woul d be di spatched before gas-fired resources
wth the potential exception of biomass resources.
We consi der that renewabl e.

M5. CSANK: [|'ll put that aside for now
as --

THE W TNESS (Eves): WMaybe | coul d add
sonet hi ng. Renewabl e resources are not
di spatched. | nean, you can't turn a renewabl e on
and of f when you want to turn it on and off.

D spatch neans that you can turn the power
production facility on when you need it.

When renewabl es produce, their power
goes to the grid. VWen renewabl es don't produce
you need to dispatch a unit that you're capabl e of
turning on and off to neet the power needs.

M5. CSANK: Sir, | don't think we need
to get into the details. But thank you for that,

but | don't think we need to get into the details
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of dispatchability of solar, and sol ar conbi ned
W th storage technol ogi es.

In any event, the next question that |
had was going to tie back to a conversation that
we had this norning concerning the feasibility of
addi ng solar to the site.

Do you recall that?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

M5. CSANK: And so sticking with that
scenario, if the conpany were to di scover that
sonme anount of solar could be added to the site,
would it not limt in sone material way the
di spatch of the unit when the solar is supplying
grid?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | think the
answer to that question would be no, because what
that solar would do is it would limt the
operation of sone unit, but it would limt the
operation of a unit that's out on the margin. So
that's not likely to be this facility in many
hours of the year.

It's nore likely to be one of the |ess
efficient older facilities, whether it's
gas-fired, oil or otherwwse. So it's correct |

believe that if solar were added, it would [imt
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t he operation of other fossil-fuel ed resources,
but not likely this one.

M5. CSANK: So let's just put aside your
claimthat it wouldn't be the marginal unit and
fast-forward to a tinme when it is, just so that
the record is clear about this dynamc. At that
time that additional solar would, in fact, curb
the em ssions fromthis very project.

Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): If this facility
were on the margin then every additional negawatt
hour of solar would back a megawatt hour off of
that facility.

MS. CSANK:  And so could we call that a
beyond the fence |line neasure for further reducing
t he em ssions of the project?

THE WTNESS (H bbard): | -- any -- any
i nvestnment that would -- that would cause this
project to operate | ess and al |l ow anot her resource
to operate that didn't produce any em ssi ons woul d
be an exanpl e of sonething that woul d reduce the
em ssi ons associ ated with the operation of the
facility.

MS. CSANK: And M. Eves, when you were

di scussing potential future controls -- and |
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bel i eve you expl ained that what you were referring
to was exclusively the controls, bolt-on controls
t hat are under devel opnment by M tsubi shi

Is that correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

MS. CSANK: And so you haven't anal yzed
the feasibility at this tine or sone future tine
of these other types of em ssions reductions
met hods. Correct? M. G esock?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): | think there
are a range of options that could be feasible in
the future, and they're not sinply limted to
t echnol ogy changes at the facility. | think there
are a lot of ways for the project to neet its
conmmi t nent .

M5. CSANK: Ckay. Well, let's tease
that apart a little bit. So | believe in talking
to Ms. Fiedler, M. Eves, you identified a
w | lingness by the conpany to make its greenhouse
gas comm tnent binding in sone manner.

Is that correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

MS. CSANK: And specifically you
identified requesting that that be nade a

condition of approval. Correct?
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THE WTNESS (Eves): | didn't request
that. | did say we would be perfectly willing to
accept that as a condition of our certification.

M5. CSANK: WIIl you go one step further
and request that it be a condition of
certification?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Sure. |If you'd
li ke to make that a condition of our certification
we will gladly accept.

M5. CSANK: And just so that the record
is clear, it's the conpany's position that there
are a variety of technol ogies including sone in
devel opnent that would bolt on or be beyond the
fence line that enable it to neet its conmtnent.

Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That's correct.

M5. CSANK: And the emi ssions we're
really tal king about here are exclusively those
fromthe stack of the plant. Correct? O stacks?

THE WTNESS (Eves): Yes, | believe
we' re tal ki ng about CO2.

M5. CSANK: Not just CO2. | nean, to be
clear this is gas that will be extracted and
transported to the site. Correct?

THE WTNESS (G esock): This, this is
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based upon the project's direct inpacts only.

MS. CSANK: And so indirect inpacts by
contrast would be eni ssions that occur upstream
such as at the extraction stage of the gas and the
transportation of that gas. Correct?

THE HEARI NG OFFICER | want to take a
step backwar d.

M. Eves, just to go back on what you're
voluntarily proposing, the voluntary proposal was
for carbon dioxide only. 1Is that correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

Then your conti nued question was?

MS. CSANK: | was sinply trying to nmake
clear for the record that there are em ssions
upstreamthat are often referred to, by
environnental regulators, as indirect inpacts.

And those include -- and I'"msorry to go
on so long -- the em ssions fromextraction and
transportation of gas to the project.

THE W TNESS (Gresock): So the -- the
commtnent is based solely on the carbon dioxide
equi val ent values that were reflected in the
project's air permt.

MS. CSANK: And you agree that there are
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i nmpacts fromthose extra em ssions that | just
descri bed. Correct?

THE W TNESS (G esock): | have no
position on that.

MS. CSANK: You have not perforned any
anal ysis on those extra em ssi ons?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): | have not.

MS. CSANK: Do you know if it's feasible
to quantify those extra em ssions?

THE W TNESS (G esock): | have not
consi dered it.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  |'' m not sure how
you're exactly relevant to what the applicant is
proposing to do when this |atest |ine of
questioning is for everything that's beyond their
control and well offsite.

MS. CSANK: Your Honor, the project
is the but-for cause of 30 to 50 years of
additional gas sufficient to operate the plant.

And so you know, if you'll allow ne a
little bit of leeway I'lIl get to the potenti al
significance of all of that gas and the em ssions
that are upstream

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Proceed, but with

cauti on.
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MS. CSANK: Thank you, your Honor.

Woul d you pl ease answer the | ast
question of m ne?

MR, BALDWN. Could you repeat that

questi on, pl ease?

[ Reporter reads back question.]

THE W TNESS (H bbard): So maybe | can
jump in, and | think what you're asking is for
every nol ecul e of gas burned at the plant, is
t here | eakage associated with the production and
transport? |s there nethane | eakage associ at ed
wth the production and transport of the gas
that's ultimately consunmed at the powerplant? And
can that be quantified?

And | think, you know, there's
W despread literature with estimates of what those
potential additional em ssions are associated with
transport. And | don't think there's agreenent
yet on how to quantify that, but people have tried
to quantify it and have cone to different answers.

| do think an inportant point here is,
to the extent that this facility burning natural

gas di spl aces generation from other fossil fuel
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generated facilities, it's also displacing the
| eakage in upstream em ssions associated with the
transport of those fuels.

So |l -- 1 think that would be an
important thing to take into account if that -- if
you were trying to estimate that.

MS. CSANK: So you yourself have not
perforned any such anal ysis. Have you, for the
pur pose of this matter?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | have not.

MS. CSANK: And subject to check, since
you have identified efforts to cal cul ate those
upstream em ssions, those indirect inpacts,
subj ect to check, would you agree that the upper
reaches of that range are enissions that are
conparable in nass to the em ssions fromthe
direct inpacts, i.e., the stack emn ssions?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): That's certainly
not ny i npression.

MS. CSANK: Wiy not ?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | -- | have
| ooked at sone of these studies in the past. |
couldn't tell you here exactly what |'ve read, but
|*' mnot under the -- | don't have, sitting here,

the i npression that the gl obal warm ng i npact of
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upstream em ssions is equal to the stack inpacts
of CQO2.

M5. CSANK: Sir, are you an expert in
this subject?

MR BALDW N M. Chairman, he was asked
t he questi on.

THE HEARING OFFICER: | really think the
question was answered before. And, M. Hi bbard,
when you asked hima question did he do any types
of studies upstream his answer was no.

So any type of conparison that he can
possi bly give you out of that woul dn't exist,
because he did not do these studies upstream So
wth the answer of no, I'd really |like to nove on.

MS. CSANK: Yes, your Honor, but | do
think if you'll just -- | beg your indul gence.

He then offered this Council and
inmpression and | think it's very inportant for the
record to understand the basis for his inpression,
and the evidentiary basis for that inpression
since it is at this point just bald testinony.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: But | don't see an
i mpressi on bei ng the study.

MS. CSANK: Right, sir. But he did

of fer a conclusion, a factual concl usi on based on
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that inpression. | just want to nake it crystal
clear where he's getting that inpression fromso
t hat your Honor can give it its due weight, or
ot herwi se we nove to strike it fromthe record.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  But again, if he
noved to give you an answer out of it, he's giving
you an opinion. And if you try to ask hi mwhat
hi s background is, or what his authority is to do
that | don't see howit relates if he's trying to
gi ve you an opi ni on.

| woul d nove on.

MS. CSANK: Yes, sir.

If I may just ask himfor that
i npression, which | understood to be sonething
slightly different than what he said he didn't do
an anal ysi s on.

And so | just want to make sure that
that inpression also is not undergirded by any
anal ysis specific to this project?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Specific to this
project? No.

M5. CSANK: Thank you, sir.

Before we went down this path together |
believe we were tal king about -- or you were

identifying for us the integrated nature of the
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mar ket, and how this project is inportant to
understand in the context of that narket.

Do you recall that?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | do recal
di scussing the integrated nature of the power
systemin New Engl and and the whol esale nmarkets in
New Engl and.

M5. CSANK: |Is the state of New York's
energy resources -- those are connected to the New
Engl and market. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): There are
[imted transm ssion interconnecti ons between New
Engl and and New York over which power flows, and
there are al so market transactions between the two
regi ons.

M5. CSANK: And so New York resources
can supply Connecticut custoners. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): To the extent
that resources in New York are not needed in New
York for power system or policy reasons.

And there's a market opportunity to sell
t hose resources into New Engl and, and there's
sufficient trend -- transm ssion capacity to
deliver that energy into the region. Then those

resources could participate in the New Engl and
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mar ket , yes.

M5. CSANK: So | believe when we were
earlier discussing the Al gonquin Pipeline one of
the clainmed benefits of this project is that it
increases firmsupply to New Engl and as opposed to
New Yor k.

Do you recall that?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | do recall.

MS. CSANK: So can you pl ease explain to
us why that would be an actual benefit to
Connecti cut ?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Well you know,
as we were discussing, Connecticut is part of the
New Engl and region. And one of the reliability
ri sks in New Engl and that's been di scussed
extensively in this docket is the ability to keep
the lights on during very cold winter conditions.

This facility, through its firm
transportation contract, likely increases the fl ow
of gas into New Engl and under the col dest weat her
conditions in the winter. And as a result of that
it hel ps address the fuel security risks that have
been identified by I SO and gover nnent agenci es,
and that have been the subject of the -- of a |ot

of di scussion here in these proceedi ngs.
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MS. CSANK: Wiy do you say likely?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Because it's --
it's not sonething that where you can point to a
specific quantity of gas in every hour that flows
across the border associated with this contract.
It's really a comment on the col dest w nter days,
how does it potentially affect the flow of gas
i nto New Engl and.

MS. CSANK: Have you performed any
analysis to quantify the supply risk? 1In other
words, of supply, of gas supply not being
avai l able for the plant to operate?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yes.

MS. CSANK: You've quantified that?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Yes -- no, I'm
sorry. Let nme take it back. | have -- | have on
several projects evaluated the fuel security risks
associated with operation of the power systemin
New England. |'malso currently undertaking a
simlar study for the New York | SO

I have not specifically tried to
quantify the fuel security and risk in New Engl and
as a function of the operation of this project.

M5. CSANK: So | believe there was

di scussi on of conti ngency planni ng and what woul d
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happen if there were a disruption, a pipeline
failure. Do you recall that?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | -- 1 recal
t he di scussion this norning associated with that
hypot heti cal , yes.

M5. CSANK: And in that discussion
ei ther you or one of your co-panelists said that
the firmgas supply contract was, quote,
incredibly inportant to avoid the, quote,
ni ght mare scenari o.

Do you recall that?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | personally
believe that the firmsupply transportation
natural gas supply contract that this facility has
included is incredibly inportant for fuel security
here in New Engl and.

MS. CSANK: Well, maybe we can better
understand. What does this contract do exactly?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): It gives the
project the right to the transportati on of natural
gas 365 days a year.

M5. CSANK: And | think we tal ked about
how t hat gas woul d cone down the Al gonquin
transm ssion line across this two-m |l e | adder.

And all that is operated by Vernont Yankee.
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Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | don't think
the gas systemis that -- that easy to -- to make
a direct connection of exactly where the nol ecul es
are coming from and where they get delivered to
t he burner tip.

MS. CSANK: So do you have a contract
wth the entire pipeline systen?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): It's a contract
wth -- with another entity to transport that
volume of gas on a daily basis to the powerplant.

MS. CSANK: Who's the counterparty?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | believe in
this case it's Enera.

M5. CSANK: And Enera, for the benefit
of the record, is spelled E-me-r-a. It's a
Canadi an conpany. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yes. There,
they' re based in Canada. They have natural gas
and electricity, and hedging option trading
oper ati ons throughout the Northeast.

M5. CSANK: I ndeed, and they have
operations in Barbados where they have -- or
they've commtted to help that island?

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: | don't see how




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

172

that's appropri ate.

MS. CSANK: Your Honor, it sinply gets
at this decarboni zation idea, but I'll strike that
questi on.

Sir, do you know where Enera is going to
be getting the gas that it will be firmy
supplying to the project?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No.

M5. CSANK: Not at all?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No.

MS. CSANK: How woul d you go about
finding out?

MR BALDWN Wiy is it rel evant where
the gas cones from M. Chairman?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah, | don't see
how that fits in. |If they have a contract to get
materials, just |like they would go to a gas
station to get gas, am|l going to ask where that
gasoline is comng fron? They have a contract to
get gas from Enera. They get gas from Enera.

M5. CSANK: So given this Council's
interest in contingencies, | would submt that
under st andi ng the source of the nain fuel that the
project is supposed to rely on for decades is

hi ghly rel evant.
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So if the Council would indulge ne just
a few questions | prom se not to go on for | ong.

MR. BALDW N  The question then has been
answered. He doesn't know.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  He doesn't know,

yeah --

MS. CSANK: This is a slightly different
question, your Honor -- sorry to interrupt. It's
not whet her he knows or not. How would he go

about finding the answer?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Way woul d he have
to find the answer, is the question | woul d pose
to you if he knows it's com ng from Enera?

MS. CSANK: Well, Enera is a conpany.

It is not a source of gas, a physical source of
gas.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And his contract
is wth the conpany.

MS. CSANK: Right, but in order to
understand the size of the risk to properly
under stand whether this project will, in fact, be
avai l abl e to supply Connecti cut custoners, the
Sierra Club maintains it's very inportant to
under stand the source of that fuel.

VMR. BALDW N: And the w tness has
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answered he doesn't know, M. Chairman. | don't
know what el se to do.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: | think the answer
is there. | really think we need to nove on.

M5. CSANK: Yes, your Honor.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

MS. CSANK: Sir, you earlier identified
shal e gas as being a great boon to New Engl and.

Do you recall that?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | don't believe
that's what | said.

MS. CSANK: What did you say about shale
gas, and why is it relevant here?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): | believe at the
time we were discussing the inpact of natural gas
costs on electricity ratepayers, and ny point was
t hat because of the shale, what's happened with
shale gas it's had a very strong price depression
effect that has benefited both natural gas
custonmers and electricity ratepayers here in New
Engl and.

MS. CSANK: Sir, have you perforned any
analysis that quantifies the costs associated wth
the pollution of that gas?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | have not
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specifically tried to quantify the risks or
danmages associated with em ssions.

M5. CSANK: So can you offer this
Council any sort of evidentiary basis for
conpari ng the supposed savings to the public as
conpared to the costs associated with that gas
suppl y?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | have not in
this proceeding offered any sort of a benefit cost
analysis |like that, no.

M5. CSANK: And for the benefit of the
record, what's the difference between shal e gas
and natural gas?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | don't believe
there's any difference. Shale gas is natural gas.

M5. CSANK: And the "shale" nodifier
refers to the physical formation from which that
gas is extracted. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Correct.

MS. CSANK: And the extraction nethod
i ncl udes horizontal drilling and hydraulic
fracturing. Correct?

MR BALDWN:. |'mgoing to object,

M. Chai r man.

Again, we're tal king about the source of
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the gas. |I'mnot sure why that's relevant to the
Siting Council's review criteria as it relates to
t hi s proceedi ng.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah -- no, |
agree. The applicant is not fracking gas out of
this. They're getting their gas presunmably
through Enmera. | would |like to focus again on the
plant, if need be Enera, but really to nove on.

You know, horizontal drilling | don't
think really applies here.

M5. CSANK: Sir, for the record, Sierra
Club objects to this argunent by distingui shed
counsel for NTE

We strenuously maintain that the source
of the gas and the em ssions associated with that
gas, and all of the other environnmental harm
associated with that gas, its source, its
extraction, its transportation are relevant to
this proceedi ng under broad statutory criteria
that i nvestigate the public interest.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: I'mgoing to
overrul e and ask Attorney Bachman to comrent on a
few t hi ngs.

MS. BACHMAN:  Thank you, M. Chairnman.

The Council's reviewcriteria for this
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application is contai ned under Connecticut General
Statutes Section 16-50P.

The anal ysis for whether or not the
project would be approved in accordance with our
criteria does not extend to any upstream costs or
actions over which the applicant has no control.

This is an application for a certificate
for an electric generating facility. The standard
is a public benefit versus any of the adverse
environnental inpacts and the costs to the
ratepayers. It really does not extend any further
than what the applicant has control over, which is
the facility.

So any upstream costs or fracking or
anything related to where they get the gas is
really irrelevant to this proceeding. They have a
contract for gas.

We need to nove on, please.

MS. CSANK: Thank you.

Sir, just for the benefit of the record,
the various benefits of this project -- | just
want to nmake sure that the record is clear on the
factors that are relevant to the realization of
t hose benefits for the public. So if you would

just hel p ne understand?
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Woul d regul ation of the gas supply
potentially -- | nean, is there any evidence in
the record of a regulatory risk analysis and its
implications for the project?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Can you clarify
what you nmean by regul atory risk anal ysi s?

MS. CSANK: |If there were regul ation
upstreamthat this Council is not | ooking at,
could that have inplications for the gas supply to
t he project?

MR BALDWN Again, | will object. Now
we're back to tal ki ng about upstream i npacts.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah, | agree.
We're back to what we just tal ked about two
m nut es ago.

And | woul d nove on from here, please.

M5. CSANK: Sir, what is the termof the
firmsupply contract?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Seven years with a
seven-year extension.

MS. CSANK: What does that nean,
seven-year extension?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That neans at the
end of the first seven years we can extend the

contract for another seven years.
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MS. CSANK: How?

THE W TNESS (Eves): By signing an
extension. The terns are negoti at ed.

M5. CSANK: So the terns could change?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No, the terms --
the terns are negotiated. So the terms of the
ext ensi on are negoti at ed.

M5. CSANK: | see. And so as we sit
here today do you have any guarantee of what gas
prices will be in seven years?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No. W have a
guarantee on the transportati on costs, but the gas
price will be based on narket.

MS. CSANK: So as we sit here today
there's no insurance for the people of Connecticut
agai nst swings in gas prices over the 30 to
50-year line of this project. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That's correct.
We're buying gas fromthe nmarket, and it's the
sane gas that anybody else that's burning gas is
payi ng at the sane prices that they're paying.

Qur facility will burn | ess than
conpeting facilities. So when gas prices are
hi gher on a per negawatt hour basis our

electricity will be providing a cost benefit.
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MS. CSANK: Wuld you agree with ne that
the project is arelatively lunpy addition to the
grid?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): What do you nean
by, [ umpy?

MS. CSANK: Typically power supply is
added increnentally. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): New capacity is
added i ncrenental ly.

M5. CSANK: And the snaller the
i ncrenent over tinme the snoother the additions
are. Correct?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): I'mnot sure I'm
quite -- could you restate it, please?

M5. CSANK: Sure. So let's take a
resource |like energy efficiency. Just bear with
me. This will be brief.

You can add energy efficiency in very
small increnments to the grid. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): You can reduce
demand t hrough energy efficiency in very smal
i ncrenents.

MS5. CSANK: And you can al so reduce it
in very large increnents. Correct?

THE WTNESS (H bbard): Not all at the
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sanme tine. | think it takes sonme tine to
i mpl enent the neasures that actually lead to
energy efficiency savings.

M5. CSANK: Ckay. Wereas these vendors
Si enmens, M tsubishi, they provide conbustion
turbi ne generators in certain preset sizes.
Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): That's generally
my understanding for -- for a gas-fired generator
like this. There are relatively standard si zes.

M5. CSANK: And there's econoni es of
scale. So these things tend to be rather |arge.
Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | would expect
t hat .

M5. CSANK: And in this instance, in
this very case the conpany is proposing a 650
megawatt nanepl ate capacity project. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That's correct.

MS. CSANK: And that's a rather |arge
lunmp to be adding all at once to the grid.
Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | wouldn't
character -- characterize it that way. 1|, you

know, that's sort of a qualitative -- it's not as
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| arge as M || stone or Seabrook, or sone other
fossil generating facilities that have been added
to the grid, but it's not as snall as increnental
energy efficiency investnents.

MS. CSANK: Has the conpany consi dered
different sizes and whether they woul d better
calibrate to custoner needs?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): The original
application did include an alternatives anal ysi s
t hat addressed a range of technologies. This
technol ogy and this size for the current project
has been sel ected as the npbst appropri ate.

MS. CSANK: And sir, you woul d agree
that the energy market has been changing at a
dramatic pace. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Could -- could
you just -- I'mnot trying to be difficult, but
what part of the energy narket?

MS. CSANK: Let's tal k about the
technol ogy. So the technol ogy changes, the
t echni cal changes of the resources available to
custoners has changed dramatically especially, I'd
say, in the | ast decade.

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | wouldn't limt

it tothat. | think for the past century there
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have been periods of significant changes in the
t echnol ogi es that are making up the grid and
contributing to neeting power system needs.

M5. CSANK: But let's talk specifically
about certain resources, solar and energy storage.
Those you woul d agree have experienced dranatic
performance and price i nprovenents over the past
decade. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | would say the
cost decline in solar and wi nd resources has been
significant, and has |l ed to significant expansion
of those resources in New Engl and and beyond New
Engl and.

Storage, | don't think there's any
reliable evidence that storage is getting close to
bei ng econom c or otherwse will play a
significant role in the grid.

MS. CSANK: Besides that testinony, do
you have any analysis in the record concerning the
econom cs of storage as applicable here?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): In this record
have not seen any econoni c anal ysis of storage.

MS. CSANK: But you did see the
testinony submtted by Sierra G ub | ast week.

Correct?
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THE W TNESS (H bbard): | read The
testinony by M. Fagan and M. --

M5. CSANK: dick?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): dick, yes.

M5. CSANK: Did you disagree with their
characterizati ons of those technol ogi es?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): O storage, yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: If I could
interrupt? That's not in evidence at this point.
| can't reference that.

M5. CSANK: Yes, your Honor.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Per haps on May 2nd
we could revisit it if need be, but not today.

M5. CSANK: | will relent on that |ine
of questi oni ng.

Sir, what about the specific technol ogy
that's bei ng proposed by the applicant here? Has
It experienced any performance i nprovenents in the
past decade?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): In ny experience
| believe we have seen conti nuous inprovenent in
t he performance, and in particular the heat rates
of -- of generating plants |like the one that's
proposed in this facility.

MS. CSANK: And heat rate i s a neasure
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of efficiency. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yes.

M5. CSANK: So the |ower the heat rate
t he higher the efficiency of a generator?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): The |ower the
heat rate the less fuel it takes to generate a
megawatt hour, yes.

M5. CSANK: And al so the | ess em ssions
that result. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Agreed, per
nmegawatt hour gener at ed.

MS. CSANK: So efficiency is a great
thing. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Efficiency is a
great thing.

M5. CSANK: And you can achi eve
efficiency both on the denmand side and the supply
side. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Agreed.

MS. CSANK: And you have no reason to --
you haven't identified any constraints on further
efficiency inprovenents on the demand side to
serve the needs of Connecticut custoners.
Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hibbard): 1'd -- | would




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

186

say no to that question. | -- as chairman of the
Massachusetts comm ssion | spent three years

devel opi ng a rapi d expansi on of energy efficiency
wthin that State, and then overseeing the utility
pl ans to adm ni ster.

And | think there are sonme significant
I npedi nents to expandi ng energy efficiency nostly
associated with the various parties that have
di fferent positions on the ratepayer inpacts
associ ated with doi ng so.

Havi ng said that, the -- the | evel of
grow h and efficiency spendi ng has been
significant, and it could be |arger.

MS. CSANK: So just to make sure that
I'mfoll owi ng what you said, and | appreciate your
experience in Massachusetts, that efficiency can
be rapidly added to the system Correct? On the
demand si de?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Again, it's the
word "rapidly” I"'mhaving trouble with. | think
there's a process in order for efficiency to
happen, ratepayer funded efficiency to happen
there's a process by which the proposed
i nvestnents need to be reviewed and approved.

And t hen once those have been approved
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it actually takes sone tine to nobilize
contractors to actually make the efficiency
i mprovenents.

So the word "rapidly” |I'm having trouble
w th, but that doesn't nean there hasn't been
significant -- and -- and fairly significant
grow h on the inpact of energy efficiency on the
grid.

M5. CSANK: When Ms. Gresock referred to
an alternatives analysis that was previously
per formed, have you updated that for the purposes
of this refiling?

THE WTNESS (Eves): | would say, no.

MS. CSANK: Is it your position that the
conpany has maxi m zed the supply side efficiency
that is achievable through this project?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | -- |
personally, you know, | don't consider nyself a
power technology engineer. So | -- | have no
basis to answer that question.

MS. CSANK: Does anyone el se on the
panel ?

THE W TNESS (Rega): Could -- could you
restate the question? |I'mtrying to understand

what you're getting at here.
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MS. CSANK: Right. And | can reiterate,
and please correct me if I'mwong, but the
predi cate here was we just established that
efficiency is a great thing. And efficiency can
be achi eved both on the supply side and the demand
si de.

And | was sinply asking if it's the
conpany's position that this project nmaxim zes
supply side efficiency?

THE WTNESS (Rega): O course, you
know, we certainly |ook at efficiency as a part of
the project. And we believe that the technol ogy
that we've selected here is anong the hi ghest
efficient units avail abl e.

MS5. CSANK: Is there docunentary
evidence to show the alternatives that were
considered in this latest iteration of review by
the conpany to reassure the Council that it is, in
fact, the nost efficient unit possible?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): The original
alternatives anal ysis had focused on selecting the
Si enens equi pnent, and we have provided
i nformati on about the efficiency of the now
sel ected M tsubi shi nachi ne denpnstrating that

there are greater efficiencies.
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MS. CSANK: But M. Hi bbard also told us
that there's an expectation of conti nuous
t echnol ogi cal i nprovenent for this type of
technol ogy. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | believe what
said is that in ny observation the efficiency of
generati ng technol ogi es has conti nuously i nproved
over tine.

MS. CSANK: And do you have any reason
to doubt that that trend would continue into the
future?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | have no reason
to doubt it, or confirmit.

M5. CSANK: So if that's true then
woul dn't a sane project two years from now,
procured in two years, wouldn't that potentially
be nore efficient than one that's procured now?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): | don't know the
answer to that question.

MS. CSANK:  You don't know because that
you didn't performany analysis on that issue.
Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | have not
perforned an anal ysis on the future efficiencies

of -- the efficiencies of future generating
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t echnol ogi es, or the pace at which efficiencies
w |l increase over tine.

M5. CSANK: Nor did the conpany anal yze
whet her greater efficiencies could be achieved by
sinply building this project out increnentally,
but not all at once. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Wsat we did
eval uate over the |ast year -- which put us in a
position to be very conpetitive in this, in this
nost recent forward capacity auction -- was an
efficiency inprovenent that Mtsubishi had -- had
devel oped for this machi ne.

So wth the efficiency iInprovenent it
gave us a better heat rate and nore output, and
put us in a much nore conpetitive position for
this, for this last auction. So we did take
advant age of those inprovenents as -- as they came
about, which were technically proven within the
| ast year.

MS. CSANK: Sir, would you m nd
answering the call of ny question, which was
whet her the conpany perforned any anal ysis of
whet her even greater efficiencies could be
achi eved via sinply delaying -- or sorry, via

increnentally building out the project?
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THE W TNESS (Eves): This nmachi ne has
only -- | mean, this facility is 630 negawatts,
650 negawatts. There's no way to build this
increnentally. So we didn't -- we didn't | ook at
building this specific facility in increnents.

MS. CSANK: But other resources can be
built out increnentally. Correct?

THE WTNESS (Eves): | -- 1 don't know.
| don't know what resources you're talking about.
This resource that we're tal king about here, it
cannot be built increnentally.

MS. CSANK: Nor did you analyze a
one-year delay as conpared to the projected
in-service date. Correct? And the efficiency
i mplications of that?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

M5. CSANK: O the em ssions
i mplications of that?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No, we -- we
didn't -- we have not evaluated that, what woul d
happen if we got del ayed anot her year?

M5. CSANK: But if the Council's
objective were to adhere to state policy, to
m nim ze environnental inpact and specifically to

decar boni ze on this anbitious slope, wouldn't it
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want to have evi dence concerni ng whet her greater
em ssions reductions could be achieved sinply by
del aying this project?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): |1'm not sure you
can cone to that conclusion. At least it's not ny
I Npression you can cone to that concl usion.

I think that fromthe nonent this plant
operates it will be delivering carbon reduction
benefits by displacing | ess efficient higher
emtting, on a per negawatt hour basis, generating
facilities.

MS. CSANK: Has the conpany perforned
benchmarki ng rel ati ve to ot her powerpl ants that
are being proposed at this tine, and their
efficiency?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): |I'mnot sure
what you nean by benchmar ki ng.

MS. CSANK: Sinply conparing. Let's
say, has it conpared its plan to other conpanies’
plans to build simlar technol ogy?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): So certainly as
a part of the air-permt review process we
underwent several tines a stringent review of the
project, the project's em ssions |levels. And DEEP

coordinated with U S EPA in terns of assuring
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t henmsel ves that the | owest |evels of the criteria
pol | utants possi ble are established here.

And so certainly that kind of
benchmar ki ng did occur, and the project was held
to very stringent standards as a result.

M5. CSANK: And that's the extent of the
anal ysis that the conpany is relying on here.
Correct? For this issue?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): That -- that is
the procedure for our air-permt review Yyes.

M5. CSANK: And the air permt, just so
that the record is clear, is really concerned wth
the em ssions rate of the facility. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): There are
em ssion rates evaluated. There is a cap on tons
per year in terns of potential to emt, and al so
i npact is evaluated for a range of pollutants as
wel | .

And | think it's inportant -- | think
there are -- are no other projects that | have
wor ked on that have nade the kind of commtnment to
reducti on of greenhouse gases that this project is
maki ng. So I think from a benchmarki ng
perspective that's an incredi ble benefit.

MS. CSANK: Just to be clear, when you
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say that no other project has nmade such a
comm tnment, you're tal king about all sorts of
projects. Correct?

THE W TNESS (G esock): Well, none of
the wind or solar projects | have worked on have
made that kind of comm tnent either, but -- but
yes, I'mreferring to the fossil projects | have
wor ked on. Yes.

MS5. CSANK: And was there any sort of
anal ysis perfornmed of the cunul ative inpacts of
t he greenhouse gases that result fromthe 30 to
50-year operation of this project?

THE W TNESS ( Gresock): No.

MS. CSANK: Do you know whet her such
analysis is feasible?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): | don't know.

MS. CSANK: You have never perforned
such anal ysi s?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): | have not.

MS. CSANK:  You have no reason to
di spute that other states review such anal ysis?

MR. BALDW N  Rel evance. Chair nan,
ot her states' reviews?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Again, it has

nothing to do with the applicant if you're talking
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about a state. So | would nove on fromthere.

M5. CSANK: Yes, your Honor.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

M5. CSANK: |'mnot sure who to direct
this next question to, but going to the anbition
of the applicant's greenhouse gas conmtnment. M
question i s whether that has been in any
docunent ed manner benchnmar ked agai nst ot her
utilities' greenhouse gas commtnents in the U S. ?

THE W TNESS ( Eves): Not that |I'm aware
of .

M5. CSANK: And | think Sierra Cub's
i nvol venent in this earlier conmtnent was
menti oned this norning.

To be clear, in the context of this
proceedi ng, the Sierra Cub has not conceded in
any way that that commtnent is sufficient for the
pur poses of the Council's review under the
statutory mandate. Correct?

THE WTNESS (Eves): | don't understand
t hat questi on.

M5. CSANK: That's all right. 1"l
strike it.

Sir, do you know if other utilities that

own and operate fossil powerplants have commtted
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to al so reduce the upstream em ssi ons associ at ed
wth their powerplants?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: I'mgoing to
interject on this one.

You go upstream-- | think it goes back
to what we tal ked about before, and not being part
of the application or what the applicant is
proposi ng to do.

M5. CSANK: Sir, respectfully the
conpany has now repeatedly asserted that it is
unique in its level of commtnment. And so | would
submt that they have opened the door for ne to
probe about just how uni que they are.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Your word
"upstreant is the one that | caught. Upstream
means beyond what the powerplant facility m ght
be, and I"'mrelating that to what we were tal king
about before with fracking and that type of thing,
which are totally not relevant to what's goi ng on
and are out of the applicant's control.

So if you want to define what you nean
by upstream nmaybe I'Il allowit.

M5. CSANK: Thank you, your Honor.

Maybe | can go about it this way very briefly.

Are you aware that Dom ni on Energy owns
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and operates gas plants?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes, | know that
Dom ni on Energy owns and operates gas pl ants.

MS. CSANK: Subject to check, do you
al so know that Dom nion Energy commtted this year
to reduce its nethane em ssions from gas
infrastructure by 50 percent over the next decade?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

M5. CSANK: Do you have any reason to
di spute that Dom ni on has nmade such a comm t nent ?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

M5. CSANK: Sir, earlier we were
di scussing at-risk units. Do you recall that
conversation, M. Hi bbard?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): VYes.

M5. CSANK: And you testified that you
cannot identify which units will retire, but
generically you believe that coal and oil units
are particularly at risk. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Correct.

M5. CSANK: You al so believe there wll
be Iots of gas online, gas generators online in
the future. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | believe that

gas-fired generation wll continue to play an
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inmportant role in power systemreliability for a
fairly long tine.

MS. CSANK: How | ong?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | don't quite
have the crystal ball, but | -- | assune that
they'll be very inportant for at |east on the

peri od of decades.

MS. CSANK: But when gas generators
operate they typically emt greenhouse gases.
Correct?

THE W TNESS ( Hi bbard): Yes.

MS. CSANK: And so insofar as
Connecti cut and several states have nade
commtnments to phase out such em ssions there's
a tension with the continued operation of gas
generators. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | agree that in
order for the New England states to neet their
current expectations and commtnents with respect
to carbon em ssions, that they wll have to, not
only electrify the transportati on and heati ng
sectors, but will have to achieve reductions in
gr eenhouse gases on a per negawatt hour basis from
the electric sector over tine.

Wiich to ne neans a reduction in the
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existing coal, oil and gas-fired fleet over tine
in the total annual negawatt hours generated by
those facilities.

MS. CSANK: But you cannot provide the
Council with any |ifecycle conparison of burning
gas for energy conpared to burning coal for
energy, for exanple. Can you?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | have not tried
to provide testinony of that nature in this case.

MS. CSANK: But you also testified that
you believe older, dirtier gas steamunits wll
retire in the foreseeable future. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | believe that
once the coal and oil-fired units are retired then
the |l ess efficient nore expensive on a vari able
cost basis gas-fired generating units will also
have chal | engi ng econoni cs.

MS. CSANK: Wy?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Because nore
efficient generating units can generate
electricity on a per negawatt hour basis at a
| oner cost. And the revenues that a generating
unit earns over the course of the year are a
function of its costs versus what it earns in the

whol esal e mar ket .
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So the less efficient units, not only
wll be dispatched |less, they will actually earn
| ess revenues for each negawatt hour they generate
as continued efficiency is reflected in whol esal e
power prices.

MS. CSANK: Do you di spute that ol der
| ess efficient units can be made nore efficient
via efficiency upgrades?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | believe that
any generating unit can nake capital investnment to
change its -- its operations. | think in order to
really capture increases in the ability to
generate electricity nore efficiently it requires
maj or capital investnments, not small capital
i nvest nent s.

MS. CSANK: So besides this testinony do
you have anything in the record that specifically
anal yzes this issue for the Council?

THE WTNESS (H bbard): | do not have
anything in the record that specifically anal yzes
t hat .

M5. CSANK: Does the firm supply
contract include any conti nencies, any outs for
the conpany if the project were deni ed?

THE W TNESS (Eves): You nean, would we
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cancel the project if we didn't have a conbustion
turbine to burn the gas in?

M5. CSANK: The pipeline, the firm
supply contract, would you cancel that contract?

THE W TNESS (Eves): |If we didn't have a
machine to burn the gas in we woul d cancel the
contract.

MS. CSANK: And without that contract
woul d Connecticut still be able to procure
addi tional gas supply for its existing gas
generat ors?

THE W TNESS (Eves): The sane way --
woul d say the sanme way they're doing it today.

MS. CSANK: Does that firm supply
contract entail any actual additional steel in the
ground, any additional infrastructure?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): You know, |
think this is areally inmportant question for the
Council, because it's -- you can't point to the
specific contract and say as a result there's an
addi ti onal conpression station or a | ooping
project, or an additional increnental pipeline.
That's not possi bl e.

But it's also not possible to say that

firmtransportation are not exactly what's needed
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in order to provide the financial incentives for
i nvestnent in new capacity. That's exactly how it
wor ks.

So can you say, can -- can the applicant
link that firmtransportation contract to a
specific piece of natural gas infrastructure in
New Engl and? The answer is no, but | think that's
not really the whole story. This is the only way
to get new infrastructure built.

M5. CSANK: So is it your position that,
in fact, as a result of this contract additi onal
infrastructure will be built to supply the region?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No, that's not
what | was saying, but |I think you will not get
new i nfrastructure w thout additional increnental
firmtransportati on conmtnents.

And it's really, you know, could | say,
does it take one contract like this? O two or
three, or four? 1 don't know the answer to that
question, and | haven't analyzed it in this
docket .

MS5. CSANK: And you're not a | awer,
sir. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No.

MS. CSANK: So let's just stipulate that
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you're not offering any |l egal conclusions to the
Council. But in your experience, given your
extensi ve experience do you dispute that an
applicant could enter into a contract that
specifically procures additional gas
infrastructure such as additional conpression and
addi ti onal | oopi ng?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): | don't see why
any entity in the nmarket for gas couldn't enter
into that sort of a contract if there was a
proj ect avail abl e.

MS. CSANK: But that is not in fact what
t he applicant has done so far as you know?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): The applicant
has entered into a firmtransportati on contract
with Enera, potential --

MS. CSANK: For a term of seven years?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): And a
potential -- and a potential extension for another
seven.

M5. CSANK: My understanding -- well,

t hat extension would potentially include different
terms. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No, that would be

under the sane terns. That -- that woul d be under
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terms that are already negotiated. So we have
seven years that when we start draw ng gas we have
seven years.

At the end of that seven-year period we
have anot her seven years under terns that are
al ready negotiated. So we have a 14-year supply.

M5. CSANK: What is the blast zone of
the storage facilities on the site?

THE W TNESS (G esock): W have not
cal cul ated that.

MS. CSANK: What is the nmakeup of the --
stri ke that.

I just wanted to clarify the record.
There was di scussion of carbon capture and
sequestrati on technol ogy as a form of greenhouse
gas reduction. | believe this was M. Eves'

t esti nony.

And | believe, sir, you testified that
the conpany is working with Mtsubishi on the
vari ous technol ogi es, but that carbon capture and
sequestrati on was not anong them

Is that correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That's correct.

MS. CSANK: And what is your basis for

your assertion that the conpany wll|l be capabl e of
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| ater inplenenting control technol ogies that are
under devel opnment by M tsubishi ?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Just our
experience, and as we've tal ked about technical --
t echnol ogi cal change over the | ast few decades, we
woul d expect that change to conti nue.

As we said earlier, we did put in -- in
our commtnent the ability to buy offsets for
carbon if those technol ogi es don't becone
commerci al ly avail abl e.

MS. CSANK: Where would those offsets be
| ocat ed?

THE W TNESS (Eves): | have no idea.

M5. CSANK: And | believe with
Ms. Fiedler we established that the offsets that
are contenplated are | ocated in New York.

Correct?

THE W TNESS (G esock): The -- those are
not contenplated offsets. Those are the required
em ssion reduction credits that have been
purchased and -- and are part of the air permt,
yes.

M5. CSANK: And those offsets concern
criteria pollutants. Correct?

THE W TNESS (G esock): Yes.
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MS. CSANK: And criteria pollutants?

THE WTNESS (Gresock): It's nitrogen,
ni trogen di oxi de.

M5. CSANK: Has the applicant quantified
the pollution reduction benefit to the communities
who are near the site?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): What -- what do
you nean by that question?

M5. CSANK: |I'msinply trying to
establi sh whether these offsets are really going
to help the | ocal people?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): By issuing the
permt, Connecticut DEEP has affirnmed that -- that
we have net the standards.

MS. CSANK: \What standards?

THE W TNESS (G esock): There are
requi rements for the em ssion reduction credits
that were established by both U S. EPA and by
Connecti cut DEEP that wi thin non-attai nnent areas
require projects like this to naintain the
of f set s.

There are a whol e series of rules that
have been established to ensure that they are
offsets that are neani ngful and enforceabl e, and

there's a whole litany of requirenents that have
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been stated in this record previously, and all of
that was affirnmed through agency review.

MS. CSANK: Thank you.

And just to clear up, the standards
we're referring to are the National Anbient Ar
Quality Standards?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): The National
Anmbient Air Quality Standards are -- are
established as a part of the federal and state
rules, but there are al so separate rul es that
govern em ssion reduction credits and
requi rements.

MS. CSANK: Okay. And sticking wth
that, the National Anbient Air Quality Standards,
are you aware that those have changed over tine
based on i nmprovi ng sci ence, understanding the
public health inplications of air pollution?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): They do change
over tine, yes.

MS. CSANK: And you're al so aware that
there's pending litigation concerning the Nati onal
Anmbient Air Quality Standard for the criteria
pol | utant for which the conpany has offset?

THE WTNESS (Gresock): I'mnot directly

followng that, but there's always litigation of
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some ki nd or anot her.

MS. CSANK: As so as we sit here today
do you have a position on the conpany's ability to
nmeet a nore protective National Anmbient Air
Quality Standard for the various --

THE W TNESS (Gresock): | know that the
proj ect underwent a stringent review. The permt
was i ssued and two subsequent nodificati ons have
been i ssued. The project has undergone that
stringent review at each step al ong the way.

MS5. CSANK: | believe in response to the
Chai rman' s questions, the conpany's position --
and | believe this was M. Eves who stated that
t he project woul d, quote, unquote, always be able
to burn gas.

What's the basis for stating that?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Qur firm gas
contract.

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Al right. |
believe that was ne. W were di scussing how t he
firmgas contract actually allows this unit to be
operati ng gas even on the col dest wi nter days --
operati ng on gas even on the col dest w nter days.

M5. CSANK: But if there were sone kind

of pipeline failure would that still be true?
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THE WTNESS (H bbard): If there were
any sort of catastrophic failure of any fuel
delivery nechani smthen that would affect the
generation of any generating unit operating on
that fuel, whether it's gas, coal, oil or
anyt hi ng.

And | think at that point in time the
states tend to step in and take action to ensure,
ensure that it doesn't |lead to any adverse health
or wel fare inpacts.

M5. CSANK: Ckay. That's a little bit
different than the question | was asking. So
under the contract, the firmsupply contract is
Emera committed/ obligated to transport the gas
t hrough non-pipe alternatives in the event of a
pi peline failure?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | don't know the
answer to that question.

THE W TNESS (Eves): No. | mean, it's
if the pipeline -- they're bringing that gas
t hrough has -- has sonme type of an issue that
interrupts the flow of gas on that pipe, they wll
not be able to deliver gas to us.

MS. CSANK: Have you perforned any

anal ysis of that contingency?
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THE W TNESS (Eves): Oher than just
| ooki ng over the years on the availability of gas
in that pipe, no.

M5. CSANK: | believe this was still the
Chairman's line that I'd like to follow up on. He
was aski ng about a New York planned plant, |
bel i eve, that was under construction that involved
zer o wast ewat er di schar ge.

Do you recall that?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

M5. CSANK: And | believe it was
M. Rega who stated that that zero-discharge
technol ogy was rul ed out on the basis of cost,
reliability and even potentially space
constraints. It that correct?

THE W TNESS (Rega): Correct.

MS. CSANK: Is that anal ysis docunented
in the record?

THE WTNESS (Rega): No, | don't believe
that i s docunented.

M5. CSANK: There al so was di scussion
around hydrogen storage and the so-call ed CFAS,
which is a chem cal safety standard adm ni stered
and pronul gated by the federal governnent.

Do you recall that?
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THE W TNESS (Rega): Yes.

MS. CSANK: And | believe your testinony
was that the project has been deened adequate
under current, those current safety standards.

Is that correct?

THE WTNESS (Gresock): W -- we stated
that the storage volunes were below the U S. EPA s
ri sk managenent plan threshol ds.

MS. CSANK: How far bel ow?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): | don't have
t hose nunbers with ne.

MS. CSANK: And are you aware of whet her
t hose standards have changed over tine and are

subj ect to change in the future?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): | haven't seen a
| ot of change in storage volune thresholds. | do
see, as -- as we all do, industry, learning from
experiences that -- that occur.

And there are, in addition to
organi zations |li ke OSHA, there are trade
or gani zati ons where power pl ant operators share
i nformati on and best practices so that the health
and safety neasures and training can be the best
that it can be at every operating facility.

MS. CSANK: Is that a yes? No? Don't
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know?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): What was the
question so that | know how to answer?

MS. CSANK: Whet her these chem cal
standards that we identified nonents ago, whether
they are subject to change?

THE WTNESS (Gresock): | don't know.

MS. CSANK: And turning next to the
topic of the | abor and project |abor agreenents, |
bel i eve some testinony expressed an openness to
entering a project |abor agreenent.

| believe this was M. Eves. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

MS. CSANK: No, it wasn't your
testi nony? O no, the conpany is not open to a
proj ect |abor agreenent?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No, that was not ny
testinony. M testinony was we have made a si gned
comm tnent to the unions that we woul d use uni on
| abor in this facility.

The various contractors that we are
wor ki ng on sel ecti ng approached how t hey contract
wth unions in different ways. One -- one way isS
a project | abor agreenent, a PLA. Because we

hadn't sel ected our contractor at the tine we




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

213

signed the agreenent with the unions. W did not
commt to a PLA, but have signed in witing a
comm tnent that we will use union | abor.

M5. CSANK: And it's binding?

THE W TNESS (Eves): It's a commtnent.

MS. CSANK: Wul d you request that it be
a condition of approval by this Council?

MR. BALDWN  (Cbjection. | don't think
this Council can require it.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: No, | was just
going to say that's not part of our review

M5. CSANK: M. Eves, you're not a
| awyer. Correct?

THE WTNESS (Eves): | amnot a
practicing lawer in the State of Connecti cut.

M5. CSANK: And so can we stipul ate that
when you were descri bing a Rhode |sland
powerplant's eligibility, or the |ikelihood that
it would reapply in the capacity auction, you are
not offering a | egal concl usion?

THE W TNESS (Eves): | was not offering
a | egal concl usion.

MS. CSANK: Nor have you perforned any
specific factual analysis of that plant's

i keli hood or ability to participate in future
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capacity auctions. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No, | have done no
analysis on that facility.

M5. CSANK: And just to circle over and
make sure | understood correctly, the offsets that
are included in the air permt, do they have any
direct benefit to the |ocal comunity?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): One of the nany
criteria for identifying acceptable offsets is
that they have a direct effect and inprovenment in
the area where the project is proposed.

MS. CSANK: And could you point us to
where in the record that direct benefit is
docunent ed?

THE W TNESS (G esock): There would have
been a recitation of the requirenents that are
established by U S. EPA and by Connecticut DEEP.

And because this -- the sources were in
| ocations that would be contributing air quality
to the project area, they -- they would, by having
their -- having those em ssions no | onger occur
t hat woul d have provided a benefit.

MS5. CSANK: And if EPA were to inprove
upon the currently enforced National Anmbient Air

Quality Standard for NOx, would the conpany be
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able to conply with it?

THE WTNESS (G esock): It wouldn't be
relevant. W have our air permt. Future
projects would be held to any change i n standards.

M5. CSANK: And you're not a | awyer.

Are you?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): | am not.

M5. CSANK: | believe it was M. Hibbard
who expl ained to us that the project would put
pressure on, quote, unquote, virtually every -- |
wll just try that again.

On open quote, virtually every, end
quote, fossil fuel plant on the system Could you
pl ease explain that further to us?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Yeah. | -- this
power pl ant woul d have anobngst the hi ghest
efficiency of all powerplants in the region.

And as we discussed with the Council
earlier, | think M. Lynch in particular, the way
that the system operator dispatches powerplants is
on the basis of increasing variable cost and the
efficiency of the unit. The heat rate of the unit
is the primary determ nant of that.

And so this unit presunmably woul d cone

in very low, if not the |lowest in the supply stack
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of fossil generating units in New England. And in
doing so, it would decrease the revenues that
other units are earning in the energy market,

ot her fossil generating units are earning in the
energy market. In addition, it would decrease the
actual nunber of hours those units would be

oper ati ng.

And so every unit that is less efficient
than this unit would be subject to the possibility
of operating |l ess and earning fewer revenues when
it does operate. And that's exactly what puts
econom c pressure on the existing assets in the
regi on.

MS. CSANK: Have you quantified all that
you just described in any way?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | have done that
type of anal ysis on nunerous occasi ons.

MS. CSANK: But that was not your job in
this case?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | have not --
have not run a production cost nodel in this case.
| have | ooked at the relative efficiency of all
the generating units in the region conpared to the
Killingly -- Killingly in this case. And again,

that's the primary determ nant of this inpact.
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MS. CSANK: And just so that we're clear
on your scope, did you |look at units that are
currently under construction or that are planned
to be constructed within the lifetime of this
pr oj ect ?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): W | ooked
only at -- | |looked only at the existing operating
units in New Engl and.

MS. CSANK: Existing when?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Currently
oper ati ng.

MS. CSANK: As we sit here today?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yes.

MS. CSANK: So you did not | ook at
plants that are currently under construction?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | did not |ook
at those in that anal ysis.

MS. CSANK: Nor did you | ook at ones
that are planned during the operational |ife of
this plant, of this project?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | -- 1 conpared
this, this project's heat rate with the heat rates
of plants that are operating today.

MS. CSANK: | believe in response to a

question about the diesel supply Ilimtations or
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di esel - based operational l[imtations, testinony
was offered that the diesel operations would
depend on gas availability.

Coul d you pl ease el aborate on the
reasons why gas would not be avail abl e?

THE WTNESS (Gresock): So there are
very specific conditions in the air permt that
restrict the conditions under which ULSD can be
fired.

M5. CSANK: May | just stop you there?

My question is, what are the various
factors or the reasons why gas woul d not be
avai | abl e?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): The only reason
| can think of is what we were speaking to
earlier, if there was sone najor contingency on
t he natural gas pipeline system Oherw se, this
unit has firmtransportation rights equivalent to
the owners of all other firmtransportation rights
on the pipeline system

MS5. CSANK: But isn't that maj or
conti ngency the, in essence, the winter security
reliability issue that we've been tal king about?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No, absolutely

not .
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MS. CSANK: How are they different?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): The w nter
energy reliability challenge that | SO has been
spending a lot of tine dealing with is one where
there's limted -- there are very few, if any,
other than this facility that have firm natural
gas transportation contracts bringing gas into New
Engl and to operate their powerpl ants.

And that's why they' ||l operate nost days
of the year using the transportati on capacity that
is currently owned by | ocal gas distribution
conpanies. And so that the powerplants can
operate nost of the year on gas, but when you get
to the coldest winter conditions they can't,
because all of that capacity is being used by the
| ocal gas distribution conpanies that have the
firmtransportation capacity.

So that has a significant declining --
decreasi ng i npact on the avail abl e nat ural
gas-fired generation in the region. This facility
woul d not be in that situation. It has a firm
transportation contract that's as equally valid as
any other local natural gas LDC

So even on the very col dest days of the

year it can get its gas.
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MS. CSANK: And just to be clear, those
ot her conpeting end users are not just other
generators, but | think as you said, the LDCs,
i.e., those who supply end users, such as
busi nesses. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): The nmjor --
woul d say that with the exception of this facility
nost of the firmnatural gas transportation
comm tnents to bring natural gas into New Engl and
are wwth the | ocal natural gas distribution
conpanies, and it's natural gas end use. So it's,
cooking in homes, heating and that's busi nesses as
wel | as residences.

MS. CSANK: What I'mtrying to
understand is -- | really struggle to understand
how you're hel ping to solve that problemif you
are not in fact contracting for additional
i nfrastructure.

You're sinply displacing other users who
woul d ot herw se get that gas in Connecticut?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): You're not
di spl aci ng other units -- other users.

Agai n, nost of the hours of the year
gas-fired powerplants can get whatever gas they

need. It's on the col dest days of the year where
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that capacity is not available. By entering into
a firmtransportation contract they are increasing
t he anmount of gas that's dedi cated that nust cone
into New Engl and on those col dest days of the
year.

In nmy view, effectively what that does
is it nmeans that increnental gas will conme in on
t he col dest day of the year, whereas it otherw se
m ght be consuned in New York. So it's in
increnental quantity of gas that wll be com ng
into New Engl and for electricity generation, not
for heating hones or businesses.

So when we tal ked earlier, when Chairnan
Silvestri was speaking earlier about that one
parti cul ar event and worked his way down to there
bei ng only four thousand sonmet hi ng negawatts t hat
could operate on gas at that point in time, this
woul d be an additional 630 -- well, probably
higher in the winter -- 630 nmegawatts of electric
generation capacity available to the regi on that
couldn't be interrupted because of constraints on
t he gas system

MS. CSANK: But New York generators
supply Connecticut custonmers. Correct?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): To a limted
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extent, but on the col dest days of the year |
don't think that can be -- that can be assured.

M5. CSANK: Do you have any anal ysis on
t hat ?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | -- | have --
Il"mcurrently working with the New York | SO, and
have anecdotal know edge that there are transfers
of electricity between New York and in New Engl and
all throughout the year, but on the very col dest
days of the year when people in New York are
trying to heat their homes and their businesses,
and they need all the gas-fired electric
generating capacity they can get, that's -- that's
exactly the scenario where there could be a
reduction or even a zeroing out of the anmount of
electricity flow ng i nto New Engl and.

MS. CSANK: So your testinony is that
for this problemthat stens fromgas reliance in
the first place, the solution is additional gas
reliant power for 30 --

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No.

M5. CSANK: -- for 50 years?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): The probl emthat
we have doesn't stemfromagas reliance. It stens

fromthe reliance on gas-fired capacity that does
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not have firmtransportation contracts. That's an
i mportant distinction.

MS. CSANK: But you have not anal yzed
t he econonm ¢ harm nor the environnmental harm
associated with gas infrastructure. |ndeed, |
have been unabl e and di sall owed from aski ng you
any other further questions on that topic.
Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): For this
proceeding | have not tried to conduct an anal ysis
that estimates what the potential risks, or
environnental or public health inpacts are of any
i nfrastructure.

MS. CSANK: And in fact, in prior
anal ysi s you have concl uded that appropriate
solutions to this problemof winter security
i ncl ude energy efficiency, demand response,
storage and a host of other sol utions not
i ncludi ng additi onal gas generators |ike that
which is being proposed in this natter.

Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No, | woul dn't
say we excluded gas-fired generation. W | ooked
at exactly this deficiency problemand we anal yzed

four types of solution sets. One was new gas
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infrastructure. Another one was a conbi nati on of
energy efficiency, denmand response and hydr opower
from Quebec.

Anot her one was to | ook at the existing
mar ket mechani sns | eading to the availability of
oil or LNG based gas. And the fourth one was
energy efficiency, dom nated just by energy
efficiency and demand response.

So we did these solutions sets and
conpared them on cost and environnental i npact
basis. It wasn't -- we didn't construct a gas
power pl ant scenari o because that's ultimtely
dictated by the status quo scenario in our
analysis, and that's -- that's in the analysis
itself. And we, in fact, when we did the
producti on cost nodeling part of that we included
new gas-fired generation being added to the region
to nmeet increnental reliability needs.

Soit's -- | know, but you asked. You
asked the question and I -- so it's unfair to
characterize that report as suggesting that
gas-fired generation with a firmtransportation
contract is sonehow excluded fromthe anal ysis.

MS. CSANK: So just to make sure that in

pl ain English we can all understand what you just
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said, | believe what you said is in the past you
were specifically analyzing solutions to the

W nter security problemand you identified four
scenari os.

One was gas infrastructure, i.e., not
gas generators. Another -- and there were three
ot her factors, none of which were expressly
choosing additional gas generation. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): No. No. The --
the gas infrastructure scenario specifically
committed that gas infrastructure for electricity
generation during the col dest wnter days. In
effect, that scenario said we're increasing the
firmtransportation quantity that's available to
gas-fired generators i n New Engl and.

MS. CSANK: Existing?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Existing and
new, because in our production cost nodeling we
were including new gas-fired capacity to build out
for increnmental demand growth, to neet increnental
demand grow h.

So that's why |I'm saying, no, we didn't
excl ude gas-fired generation that has access to
firmtransportation. |It's part of the solution

set, the pipeline infrastructure sol ution set.
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MS. CSANK: What about the three non-gas
scenari os that you studied? D d they include new
gas generators?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): VYes.

M5. CSANK: All of thenf

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yes.

MS. CSANK:  How nuch?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | don't recal
at this point intinme. It's -- it would be
gas-fired generation being added as needed to neet
growt h and denand.

MS. CSANK: And you perforned production
cost nodeling for that analysis. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yes.

M5. CSANK: And why did you? Wiy was
t hat nodel i ng rel evant ?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Because we were
| ooki ng at various ways to address the gas
defi ci ency problem and quantifying the inpact of
each of those solutions would have on ratepayers
in ternms of the upfront cost and the overall
i npact on energy prices. And in addition we're
quantifying what is the greenhouse gas em ssi on
I npact of those various sol utions.

So the -- the whole point of the
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anal ysis conpares all of the solution sets from
t he standpoi nt of ratepayer inpact and carbon
di oxi de em ssi ons.

M5. CSANK: And we can agree that the
credibility, the accuracy of nodeling depends on
the i nputs?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): |'mnot sure how
to answer that question.

M5. CSANK: Let ne thread it this way.
Modeling is an analysis that attenpts to predict
the future. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Qur analysis
contai ned a forecast of several -- of several
t hi ngs necessary for the production cost nodeling,
i ncl udi ng forecasting various fuel prices,
forecasting electricity demand grow h.

So yes, forecasting was part of that
anal ysi s.

MS. CSANK: And in forecasting, the
accuracy of forecasting depends on the accuracy
and the realization of the assunptions that
undergird the forecasting. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | -- |
understand. | wouldn't say the accuracy. | would

say that the results of any type of analysis
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depend upon what assunptions you are nmaking wth
respect to the forecasts. The accuracy actually
depends on what does happen conpared to what you
nodel ed.

MS. CSANK: And forecasting, forecasts
by the system operator, for exanple, are devel oped
on a reqgular basis. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): The system
oper ator conprehensi vely assesses the -- and in
this particular case | think what you're referring
tois the level of electricity denand over tine,
and they do it based on econon c anal ysi s,
historic -- historical data, and a conprehensive
review of the energy efficiency and renewabl e
energy resources that are -- distributed resources
that are being added to the systemas a result of
state policies.

MS. CSANK: And the reason why they
undertake such conplex analysis time and again is
because those i nputs are changi ng over tine.
Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): They -- it's a
requi rement that they do that in order to neet the
enforceable federal reliability standards, because

all of that goes into identifying what is the
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| evel of resources that need to be purchased to
meet reliability, to neet the region's reliability
needs. So that forecasting is required on an
annual basi s.

M5. CSANK: So the answer to ny question
is, yes?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): You would have
to repeat it. | obviously didn't directly say yes
because | didn't think it could be answered that
directly.

MS. CSANK: | believe we heard testinony
that state-of-the-art controls for greenhouse gas
reducti ons would not work on ol der gas plants. |
think this m ght be best directed to Ms. G esock?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): So |I'mnot sure
what you're asking. Certainly the project was
required to do a robust greenhouse gas backed
anal ysis to eval uate best avail abl e control
t echnol ogi es, and that denonstration was a part of
the air permt.

| believe M. Eves nentioned that it is
uncertain as to whet her add on devel opi ng
t echnol ogy woul d be suitable to apply to certain
types of existing facilities, and -- and |

don't -- | don't think we know t he answer to that
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questi on.

M5. CSANK: Wouldn't the sane al so be
true with regard to this project, that over tine
it would potentially be |l ess viable to put
state-of -the-art controls on it?

THE WTNESS (Gesock): | think in this
I nstance the project has nmade a very specific
commtment to stepping down it's greenhouse gas
em ssions over tine and we'll need to | ook very
carefully at the various ways in which that can be
done, whether that is operations, whether that's
add-on controls, changes in technol ogy or sone
ki nd of external offsetting.

MS. CSANK: Your Honor, if |I may just
ask for a two-m nute restroombreak so that | can
make sure that | have conpleted all ny questions?

O a five-mnute break?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Let's go for about
10 or 15 mnutes. Let's get back here for quarter

of .

(Wher eupon, a recess was taken from

4:31 p.m to 4:46 p.m)

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  All right, |adies
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and gentlenen. Thank you for the break. 1| did
need to stretch ny legs as well.

Wiy don't we continue with questions
fromthe Sierra C ub, please.

M5. CSANK: Thank you, your Honor.

So this next |ine concerns a statenent
in the January 2019 environnmental overview, and
specifically the reference therein to certain
upgrades to the pipeline system owned and oper at ed
by Eversource which would provide for twi ce the
capacity for downstream users.

THE W TNESS (G eysock): Can you provide
us where that is in the overview?

M5. CSANK: It's on page 23. Can you
pl ease explain -- well, sorry. 1'll let you get
there. Please tell me when you're there.

THE W TNESS (G esock): Ckay.

MS. CSANK: Pl ease explain what you nmean
by the system owned and operated by Eversource
that this statenent is referring to?

THE W TNESS (G eysock): [I'msorry.

Can -- now that we've found the page, can you
speak to the topic again so we can find it?

MS. CSANK: Yes, of course. So there is

a statenent at the beginning of the second full
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par agr aph concerning certain upgrades to the
exi sting pipeline system owned and operated by
Eversource. And the overview goes on to state
t hat those upgrades would provide for tw ce the
capacity for downstream users.

Are you with ne?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That Eversource is
Yankee Gas. Eversource owns Yankee Gas. So
that's -- that's Yankee Gas' pi peli ne.

MS. CSANK: Ckay. So where on that
pi pel i ne system are the upgrades occurring?

THE W TNESS (Eves): There's an existing
either four or six-inch pipe. | believe --

THE W TNESS (Rega): Six.

THE W TNESS (Eves): There's an existing
six-inch pipe. They are going to take that 6-inch
pi pe out and replace it with a 16-inch pi pe.

MS. CSANK: Wiere is the termni of that
pi pe?

THE WTNESS (Eves): It starts at
Al gonquin and will run down to Lake Road just a
little bit to the west of the facility, and then
there will be a pipe over from-- fromthat point
to our facility.

MS. CSANK: And so there's an existing




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

233

right-of-way along the entire |linear course that
you just descri bed?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

MS. CSANK: And there's existing pipe
bet ween Al gonqui n and Lake Road, you sai d?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes. Yes.

MS. CSANK: And there's existing pipe
bet ween Lake Road and the site?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No, that -- that
pi pe will be added.

M5. CSANK: And that pipe will be two
mles in | ength?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No, no. The pipe
from Al gonquin replacing the six-inch line, that's
probably two mles. And then there's maybe a
tenth of a mle fromwhere that pipe crosses Lake
Road down to our facility.

So the two mles of right-of-way have --
have the existing six-inch pipe init.

MS. CSANK: Are there residential areas
near by?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

MS. CSANK: Do you know t he denographics
of those residential areas?

MR. BALDW N Can we be nore specific as
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to what areas you're speaki ng about?

M5. CSANK: Well, let ne ask what's the
scope of --

MR BALDWN | just don't know if
you' re tal king about the areas around the gas |ine
ri ght-of-way, the area around KEC

MS. CSANK: Well, what has been anal yzed
by the conpany?

MR BALDWN. As far as the gas |line
ext ensi on?

THE W TNESS (Greysock): So in the
original application we had sone genera
i nformati on about the anticipated interconnection
areas where we had sone graphics that showed | and
use and natural resource napping, but the actual
permtting is sonething that is the responsibility
of Yankee Gas.

And so we have not | ooked very closely
at the details of their applications.

MS. CSANK: Okay. So in the context of
this matter the conpany is putting forward
anal ysis concerning the site itself. Correct?

THE W TNESS (G eysock): That's correct.

M5. CSANK:  And what in relation to the

site itself have you analyzed in terns of the
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surroundi ng communities? Wat's the geographic
scope that's been anal yzed?

THE W TNESS (G eysock): So again, in
the original application there was a fair anount
of information about the surroundi ng | and uses and
zoni ng, and denographi c characteristics of -- of
t he surroundi ngs.

MS. CSANK: Has an update been perforned
for that analysis for the purposes of this matter?

THE W TNESS (G eysock): That has not
been updated except to note that where Killingly
was previously an environnental justice conmmunity,
it's no longer listed as one of those distressed
communities and no |l onger is under the
environnental justice program

M5. CSANK: Do you know the basis for
t he delisting?

THE W TNESS (Greysock): | do not.

MS. CSANK: Do you know t he scope of the
del i sting?

THE W TNESS (G eysock): | do not.

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

M5. CSANK: What are the nature of the
pi pel i ne upgrades to which we were referring are

earlier inrelation to what's referenced on page
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23 of the environnental overview?

THE W TNESS (Eves): The upgrades are
going to be to replace the 6-inch line with a
16-i nch |ine.

MS. CSANK: Not hi ng beyond that ?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

MS. CSANK: |Is there additional
conpressi on associated wth increasing the
pi pel i ne capacity?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

MS. CSANK: And when will those upgrades
be conpl et ed?

THE W TNESS (Eves): This question was
asked earlier, and | don't renenber the specific
date that we have in the agreenment with the
engi neering agreenent that we have in place with
Yankee Gas Eversource.

But it should be, | believe, md 2021 is
the date that we have, but | would have to check
t hat .

MS. CSANK: What regul atory approval s
are required?

THE W TNESS (Eves): | don't know.

MS. CSANK: What is the status of thenf

THE WTNESS (Eves): | don't know.
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MS. CSANK: |s anyone el se paying for
t hent?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Under our
engi neering servi ce agreenent we are payi ng
Eversource Yankee for the work they are doi ng on
our behal f.

MS. CSANK: |s anyone el se paying for

t hent?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

MS. CSANK: How nmuch additional capacity
in cubic feet per day will those upgrades result
in?

THE WTNESS (Eves): | don't know the
answer to that and |'ve tal ked to Yankee about
that pretty extensively. And that is a
confidential nunmber that they would like to
mai ntain for thensel ves.

MS. CSANK: So that confidential anmount
has not been provided in discovery. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That's correct.

M5. CSANK: So what basis does this
counsel have to verify that there is any
addi ti onal capacity that's contenpl at ed?

THE WTNESS (Eves): | don't know.

MR BALDAN. M. Chairman, | wll
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rem nd counsel. | know she wasn't here in the
prior proceedi ngs, but there was an extensive
amount of discussion as it relates to this gas
line extension and the limted role that this
project teamand this Council will play in that
pr ocess.

It's a separate process, a separate
permtting process that Yankee Gas wi |l undert ake.
There's a contract that is a part of the record
now t hat tal ks about our agreenent with Yankee Gas
and what it will entail, but |I'mnot sure why
t hese 1 ssues beyond that are rel evant.

MS. CSANK: If | may respond to that
briefly, sir?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Pl ease.

MS5. CSANK: M. Chairman, ny coll eague
M. Berman who regrets not being able to be
present today who was part of those prior
di scussions specifically instructed ne to ask this
questi on.

So at | east he believed that it was not
sufficiently addressed by that prior exchange.

And so insofar as the conpany has put forward
t hese upgrades and i ndeed nakes it part of its

application materials, we would maintain that this
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line is entirely appropriate to ask.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  The |ine woul d be
Yankee/ Eversource. Am | correct on that, M.
Eves?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes, Yankee and
Eversource are the sane conpany. So Eversource
owns Yankee Gas. So we can use Yankee Gas and
Eversource i nterchangeably here, but yes, the |line
w ||l be owned by Yankee Eversource.

THE W TNESS (G eysock): And | guess |
woul d note that the section referenced in the
envi ronnental overviewis one that is discussing
speci fic changes to individual sections that were
in the original application, and it's speaking to
t he soci oeconom c secti on.

And the reference to these upgrades is
just intended to reflect the discussions the
proj ect has continued to have with the Town which
acknowl edges that there are certain upgrades that
are for the benefit of the project, but that which
al so could result in sone additional benefit to
the Town relative to future econom c devel opnent
or what have you.

So the intent of it being reflected here

is not to inply that we are approving this change
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as a part of this proceeding, but to be
descriptive.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Does t hat answer
your question, Counsel or?

M5. CSANK: I|I'mafraid |l'malittle nore
confused than | was before, but 1'll just continue
in the interests of tine.

So to be clear, wll those upgrades, and
however they were just characterized by
Ms. Gresock, result in increnmental gas capacity
additions to the region of New Engl and?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

MS. CSANK: Next, let's please refer to
volunme 1, the original 2016 application, page 17.

And |"mspecifically referring to
| anguage that begins, KEC is |ocated south of the
tradi tional pipeline constraints that occur
further north on the New Engl and gas supply system
around the major netropolitan and | oad centers,
and it goes on. So that entire sentence is what
|"mreferring to in this.

VMR. BALDW N: M. Chairnman, while
Ms. Gresock pulls out her resource information
referred to, | feel conpelled to at | east rem nd

everyone here this is a limted purpose hearing.
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This hearing is on the chain of
ci rcunstances that the Council heard di scussions
goi ng back to the original application, the gas
line, the constraints of the gas |ine sonewhere
else in New England -- | think is not focused on
t hose changed conditi ons.

We m ght be nore efficient in our tine
if we focused on the changed conditions. | think
the Chair has given Sierra Club a lot of l|atitude
in that regards. Many tines we strayed fromthose
changed conditions, sonetines nore than others.

So |l think if we can focus on what we're
here for, the limted purpose for what we're here
for we mght be nore efficient.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Counsel or ?

M5. MLLER If | mght respond on
behal f of nmy clients which are Not Anot her
Power pl ant and t he Wyndham Land Trust ?

I would agree with the attenpt at
efficiency and to deal wth the changed
condi tions, although | would submt that any
progress that's been nmade towards permtting of
the gas |ine woul d be sonmething that we just would
li ke to know given that that has happened in the

two years since. So | know that for nyself | do
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have a very |limted anmount of questioning just on
where that is and where we are in terns of that.

And | believe it probably stands, but we
di d have di scussion early on about the
segnentation of the project. And |I would assune
even though this is a new hearing, the discussions
t hat happened then, the decision that was nmade and
any appealability of it would still stand. That
is everyone el se's under st andi ng.

So we don't have to nmake the sane
argunents again regardi ng the segnentation, but I
actually direct that to Attorney Bachman. Are we
at this point still in the sane position that we
were before with regard to the segnentati on i ssue?

MS. BACHVAN. | believe that we are.

M5. MLLER Ckay. Fromwhat | recall |
think it was the Connecticut Fund for the
Envi ronnent who made a notion that was deni ed, and
that is where that issue stands.

I know this is a continued -- kind of a
conti nued hearing. So | have not made that notion
again, again in the interests of efficiency with
the proceedings. So | just wanted to note that.

But in terns of, | think, the question

that we -- that ny clients have with regards to
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the gas line, it would be limted to what has
happened in the past two years with regard to the
gas | i ne.

MR BALDWN That's perfectly
acceptable, Attorney Mntel MIller.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | agree. Thank
you.

MS. CSANK: So the question that was
pendi ng was referencing again page 17 of volune 1
of the original 2016 application. And ny question
is whether -- what the conpany is proposing now in
this natter is additional to what it proposed
originally in 20167?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes, it is.

M5. CSANK: Please explain howit is
different?

THE W TNESS (Eves): OCh, I'msorry.
t hought you said are we -- is it the sane as we
proposed in '16. Wat we are offering nowis the
same as what we offered in '16.

M5. CSANK: Al right. Thank you.

My next question is for M. Hi bbard.
Are you famliar with Robert Ethier?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yes, Bob Ethier
at | SO New Engl and.
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MS. CSANK: Can you tell us his title?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): | believe he's
vice president for -- not market design, market
oper ati ons.

MS. CSANK: Mar ket operations?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Market
oper ati ons, yeah.

MS. CSANK: [|'lIl hand you an article
t hat was published | ast nonth transcribing a
recent interviewwth M. Ethier, if M. Chairnman
allows ne or ny coll eague to approach the w tness?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Rel evance,
Counsel or ?

MS. CSANK: This goes to certain
statenents that M. Hi bbard has made in his
testi nony and making sure the record is clear on
t he basis of that testinony.

MR BALDWN It would have been nice to
have this article in advance of the hearing,
M. Chai r man.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Agr eed.

MR BALDWN  And for that reason |
object. |I'mnot sure. | haven't seen the
articl e.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: It's also not in
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t he record, Counselor, too. So --

MR BALDWN M. Hi bbard's comments in
ot her proceedi ngs may or nmay not be relevant, but
| object to it comng in at this point.

They had anpl e opportunity to submt
this information into the record and give us the
opportunity, rather than trying to spring it on us
at the hearing.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER. | agree. W thout
it being in the record right now we cannot use it
at this tine.

MS. CSANK: Your Honor, if |I may just
very briefly?

| understand the ruling, but just for
the record the purpose of this docunent was not
for the truth of the nmatter asserted. It's a
rat her brief docunent to give M. Hi bbard an
opportunity to expand on the testinony that he has
provided and to clarify sone of the statenments
he's nade.

If it's still Your Honor's ruling that
we cannot exam ne the witness on this docunent,
then | would like to at | east preserve that
obj ection for the record.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah. Again, the
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docunent is not adm ssible at this point. [|'m not
sure what the rel evance is based on what you're
| ooking for M. Hibbard to expand upon.

If you had a question of what he m ght
have been tal ki ng about earlier or his prior
testi nony, that you needed a further explanation,
that | could allow

MS. CSANK:  Your Honor, this concerns
the winter security issue which we've been
di scussi ng t oday.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Then pl ease ask
that question, but | don't want to keep goi ng back
to the sane issues that we have di scussed before
because we really should have w apped that up
earlier -- but if you have that question on w nter
reliability please ask it.

M5. CSANK: And may | use the docunent
to examne the witness? O would you prefer | not
do so?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: (Shaki ng head in
t he negati ve.)

MS. CSANK: Ckay. So subject to check,
M. Hibbard, do you dispute that the concern that
t he New Engl and system operator has expressed wth

respect to wnter security is an energy shortage




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

247

I ssue?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | know that
that's the phrase they have used i n nany
docunent s.

MS. CSANK: And do you have any reason
to dispute that M. Ethier has specifically stated
that, although they have | ooked at pipelines as a
potential solution, they have effectively rul ed
out pipelines as part of the sol ution.

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | amaware from
things that | have read that -- |I'mnot sure about
Bob Ethier, but certainly the CEO Gordon van Welie
has -- has essentially said that -- and I'm
paraphrasing. So | may not be getting this
exactly right, but that they no | onger count on
addi tional pipeline infrastructure being
constructed as a way of addressing the w nter
reliability issue.

MR. BALDW N  And do you know t he reason
why t hey have di scounted that as a sol ution?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): MW -- ny
expectation is that -- is because there have been,
nunber one, a lot of difficulty in siting new
pi peline infrastructure i n New Engl and.

And nunber two, efforts to try to get
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electric ratepayers to pay for it have failed. So
it's sort of out of the jurisdiction of the power
system And there, there hasn't been a | ot of
progress in getting new infrastructure built. So
| think it's just a reflection on the fact that
sone projects have been proposed and not
construct ed.

And so in terns of 1SO s responsibility
as the entity responsi ble for power system
reliability, they're no | onger counting on new
pi pelines. And so they're trying to figure out
other ways to naintain wnter fuel security. That
would be ny interpretation of whether it's Bob or
Gor don.

M5. CSANK: Thank you. And indeed
t hose, those other ways that are now bei ng
cont enpl ated by the system operator include
inmports of electricity from Canada and of fshore
w nd. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No.

M5. CSANK:  Why not ?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | think what
their focus is, is devel opi ng market nechanisns to
provi de the correct financial incentives for

ensuring wnter security. They are not -- they
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are not a proponent of any type of project or any
fuel source or anything along those |ines.

M5. CSANK: So you dispute that they're
consi dering offshore wind and electricity inports
from Canada as potential solutions?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | believe they
eval uate all resources on the system but they
don't consider solutions. So the only thing
wthin their purviewis to design markets to
provide the right financial incentives to nmaintain
reliability.

MS. CSANK: So it would help if we
define solutions. So | just want to nake sure |
under stand what you're disputing. So can you
explain that further?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Sure. 1SO
doesn't consider any resources what soever. Al
they do is design the whol esale narkets in a way
that investors will provide -- wll invest in
resources that can solve the reliability chall enge
they're trying to solve through a narket design.

And so for exanple, | was nentioning
earlier that there are interi mconpensati on
mechanisns. It's called for in the next few years

where you if can denonstrate fuel security you can
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get paid additional revenues.

In the neantine, 1SOis trying to
devel op | onger-term nmar ket desi gns that woul d
provi de the sane sort of incentives to have fuel
security during cold winter conditions, and it
ranges from-- in the past it has ranged from
i ncl udi ng perfornmance i ncentives and perfornmance
penalties in the capacity market, which stil
exists. It's included increasing the | evel of
reserves on the systemduring wi nter conditions,
increasing the pricing for reserves.

There are a lot of different nmarket
desi gns that are geared towards addressing the
W nter security problem but 1SOitself is
resource devel oper fuel neutral. They can only
create those financial incentives.

M5. CSANK: And sir, you are in a
sonewhat different position than the system
operator. Have you consi dered those ot her
resources and their potential applicability to
this winter security issue?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): I'msorry. This
is hydro and offshore w nd?

MS. CSANK: Yes, sir.

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | have certainly
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t hought about it.

MS. CSANK: And they are potenti al
sol uti ons?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): You know, ny
personal view, | have | ooked at the contracts that
are proposed for approval in Massachusetts for
power from Hydro- Quebec and | don't think it

necessarily provides that |evel of reliability. |

know there are -- and this is nmy understandi ng.
I"'mnot a lawer. 1've only | ooked at
the contracts out of interest, but this, ny -- ny

review of themindicates that while there are
daily energy delivery requirenents there are ways

in which Hydro- Quebec could say on a given day, |

cannot neet those requirenents today and I'Il make
it up later. That's ny -- the way of expl ai ning
it.

And so in ny view -- and | was invol ved

in discussing this issue as a regulator in the
past, and -- and when we did our report we were

di scussing earlier the thing that we included as a
caveat was transm ssion from Canada can't hel p us
in the winter unless it's absolutely guaranteed to
be avail able on the col dest days of the year.

And Iin this case when | | ook at those
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contracts there are winter delivery requirenents,
but Hydro- Quebec which is a w nter peaking system
coul d back out on a given day. Now again, |I'm not
a lawer. | nay have that wong, but if that were
t he case those are absolutely not a solution to
the winter security problem

O fshore wind, to the extent it's
avai | abl e can reduce our need to generate
electricity fromother resources, but there's
al ways that chance that on those col dest w nter
days the wind is not available, or is avail abl e at
a lower -- an essential capacity factor than
maxi mum

So do | believe it can provide -- that
can provide a contribution? Both of them yes.

Do | think that they're the sane | evel of
guarantee as a firmgas transportation contract,
oil sitting in a storage tank or nucl ear
generation? No. | don't. | don't think it's
equi val ent .

M5. CSANK: Ckay. And just so that
we're clear we can agree that you did not perform
that analysis for this matter as winter security
relates to Connecticut. Correct?

Yes, no, don't know?
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THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No. No. |'m
t hi nki ng through ny testinony and trying to see.
| obviously have gone through this thought
process, and |'ve done it in the context of
working for clients on the winter security issue
w t hi n New Engl and.

Soit's at the front of ny mnd and
where -- was | thinking about that going through
my m nd when | was devel oping testinony for this
parti cul ar case? Probably, but I can't think
sitting here that in ny testinony | specifically
anal yzed that in particular and commented on it in
t he testinony.

MS. CSANK: Nor did you quantify the

reliability benefit that you're claimng this

permt offers Connecticut. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | -- 1 think the
reliability benefits of a powerplant like this are
obvi ous as a function of design. | did not try to

say, here quantitatively is what the reliability
benefit is.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Lynch has a
foll ow up questi on.

MR LYNCH: M. Hi bbard, would a

liquefied natural gas facility in the area help
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alleviate that w nter problenf

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): M. Lynch, | --
| think, let nme -- and I know we discussed this a
little bit last tine. So let ne take a shot at
rephrasi ng what we tal ked about | ast tine.

A liquefied natural gas facility |ike
the one at Everett or at Canaport in Canada, or
of fshore provided there's a contract with firm
transportation to a powerplant, can provide that
| evel of security.

My understanding is that the smaller
liquefied natural gas facilities that are
construct -- that exist and that are being
constructed are designed to hel p neet designed aid
demand for the | ocal natural gas distribution
conpani es.

So that they could not be counted on to
deliver gas to a powerplant for w nter energy
security. There they're generally there to
mai ntain pressure on natural gas distribution
systens and provi de a peaking resource for natural
gas, for heating and busi nesses, not for
power pl ant s.

And when | was on the conmm ssion in

Massachusetts effectively that wasn't -- those
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were peaking facilities for natural gas demand for
heating, and it woul d have been frowned upon to
consi der them as being a resource for powerpl ant
operations during the winter.

MR LYNCH: That's what | thought. |
just wanted to get a clarification. And |I know
there's a big problemw th transportation as far
as liquefied natural gas, getting it into the --
especially in New Engl and.

Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Counsel or, you can
conti nue.

MS. CSANK: Thank you, your Honor.

So nor have you anal yzed, M. Hi bbard,
in any quantitative way the reliability benefits
W th respect to specifically this winter security
issue for this matter and how resources such as
of fshore w nd and hydro inports from el sewhere
conpare to the proposed project.

Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): That's correct,
as you have stated it, but quantitatively |I -- as
| think I had testified earlier, a firmnatural
gas contract allowng for the operation of 630

megawatts on natural gas in the region would be an
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increnental benefit to the region equal to 630
megawatts on a cold w nter day.

MS. CSANK: Absent sone kind of
catastrophic pipeline failure that prohibits gas
fromreaching the project. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Greysock): On any given
day if one of the major pipelines comng into New
Engl and has a catastrophic failure |I think al
bets are off, but that does not -- that does not
relate to the reliability and fuel security val ue
of this facility conpared to other generating
facilities in New Engl and.

MS. CSANK:  Well, those other resources,
whet her they' ' re inports or sited within New
Engl and, if they're non-gas then they're not
subject to that sane catastrophic pipeline failure
vul nerability. Are they?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): Yes. Wll, let
me -- let ne anend ny |last answer. As | nentioned
| think this norning that in that catastrophic
pi peline failure, don't forget that the dual -fue
capability of the facility, and ability to store
oil and replenish it at a rate that allows themto
continue operation | think is exactly that type of

protection against a pipeline failure.
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The problem we would have if demand were
hi gh and one of the pipelines were -- were | ost
could be | essened by generating resources that
don't consune the gas. On the other hand, | think
that's a problem of significant magnitude.

MS. CSANK: But neither you nor Yankee,
nor Eversource have provided any anal ysis on the
record of howlong it would take to restore a
pi peline's operations after such a catastrophic
failure.

Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): That's correct.

MS. CSANK: Sir, do you know how nmany
conbi ned cycl e gas plants Connecticut has added in
t he past two years?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Not off the top
of ny head.

MS. CSANK: Are you aware of the
Towanti c plant?

THE WTNESS (H bbard): | amfamliar
with the Towantic plant, yes.

MS. CSANK: Subject to check, would you
agree that that cane online in 2018?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Subject to

check, 1'lIl agree with that.
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MS. CSANK: And that is an 805 negawatt
facility. Correct, subject to check?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): [1'Il take it.

MS5. CSANK: Are you aware, sir, that the
Bri dgeport Harbor Station 5 is anong those new
conbi ned cycle plants that cane online in the | ast
two years?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): That sounds
famliar.

MS. CSANK: Subject to check, would you
accept that that facility is scheduled to cone
online in the next two nonths?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Sure, and |I'm
you know, |'m happy to go through and confirm
these things in witing if hel pful.

M5. CSANK: |Is that a proffer of a
late-filed exhibit?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): Sorry, |I'"'mnot a
| awyer. Yeah, | answered the question.

"' maccepting it subject to check.

M5. CSANK: That's fine for these
pur poses. Thank you.

Has addi ng such gas plants increased
wnter reliability in New England, sir?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): To answer that
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question, Counselor, | would want to | ook at

the -- whether or not those units had firm natural
gas transportation contracts and/ or whet her or not
t hey had dual -fuel capability.

My expectation is that they both have
dual -fuel capability, which is potentially hel pful
under wi nter energy security chall enges.

MS. CSANK: And do those plants support
i ntegration of new renewabl e generation in the
regi on?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Again, | would
need to look at it, but ny expectation is as
natural gas plants that likely can cycle fairly
easily and frequently, that they woul d support the
integration of variable generation.

MS5. CSANK: So that was a yes?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): It should be
obvi ous, yes.

MS. CSANK: Thank you, sir. And the
applicant has elected to lock in its clearing
price in the FCA-13 for the full all owable period
of seven years. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): That's ny
under st andi ng.

MS. CSANK: And that's further
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identified in interrogatory nunber 19, just for
t he record.

Does the applicant believe that capacity
prices will remain at or bel ow $3. 80 per kil owatt
a nonth for the next 7 years?

THE WTNESS (H bbard): | -- | have
not -- | personally on behalf of the applicant
have not | ooked into that.

M5. CSANK: M. Eves, why did the
appl i cant choose to lock in that price?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That gives us seven
years of forecastable revenues. This market has
been rather volatile in the auction. W thought
this was our best way to lock in the seven years
at a price that we know.

MS. CSANK: Besides the predictability
or certainty of your revenue, was there any ot her
reason?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

MS. CSANK: And you would know if there
wer e?

THE W TNESS (Eves): | would think so.

MS. CSANK: The applicant al so expects
t hat several thousand negawatts of existing fossil

fuel fired facilities are likely to retire in the
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very near future. Correct?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): | certainly
believe that, at |least to those, the existing coal
and oil units that are econonmically chall enged are
likely to retire, and in addition potentially
ot her units.

MS. CSANK: | f thousands of negawatts
are likely to retire immnently, wouldn't this be
anticipated to i ncrease capacity prices in New
Engl and in the next seven years?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | wouldn't be
able to answer that w thout constructing a nodel
to cone up with a forecast that -- that | think
represents how it would affect capacity market
prices.

M5. CSANK: And again you didn't perform
such nodeling analysis for this matter. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Not for this
matter, no.

MS. CSANK: Nor have any of the other
conpany's w tnesses. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes, that is
correct. None of the w tnesses here have
conducted that, however PA anal ysis did conduct

that in our -- in the first round of our heari ngs.
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MS. CSANK: And that was based on inputs
that are now over two years ol d?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Two and a hal f,
three years.

M5. CSANK: Isn't it true that other
resources are also anticipated to cone online that
will help offset -- strike that.

Isn't it true that other resources are
al so anticipated to cone online that would further
change capacity prices in New England in the next
seven years?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Wthout, you
know, I"'mtenpted to ask which resources in
particul ar you have in m nd. But provided they
are full capacity nmarket resources as opposed to
st at e-sponsored resources, then | -- then |
believe that at any point in tinme capacity nmarket
prices will be determ ned by both the demand curve
and the supply of resources, and the offers that
those resources make in the capacity market.

You can't | ook at a particular resource
and know what they're going to offer and cone to a
concl usi on whether or not it neans the clearing
price in the market will be different than it

ot herwi se woul d, but obviously it's entirely
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determ ned by that denmand curve and the supply
offers of all resources.

MS5. CSANK: So as we sit here today you
do not dispute that that supply curve may change
based on the offshore w nd being contracted for by
Connecti cut, Rhode |sland and Massachusetts.
Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | prefer not to
answer that because | don't -- haven't | ooked at
the extent to which those resources would be
st at e-sponsored resources subject to mtigation,
and/ or subject to participating in the market only
through the -- the -- what is an adjunct to the
capacity market. CASPR it's call ed.

So |l don't -- so |l think it's difficult
to answer that question w thout know ng nore about
how t hose resources would be funded through
ratepayers and ultimately how that woul d affect
what offers they would make in the capacity
mar ket .

MS. CSANK: Thank you for the
expl anati on.

So in short, you don't know?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Well, |

certainly know how | would cone to an opi ni on on
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that if -- if | were asked to.

MS. CSANK: But as we sit here today you
do not know t he answer because you have not
perfornmed that analysis. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | have not
perfornmed that analysis in this case.

MS. CSANK: And simlarly, you have not
perfornmed any anal ysis of how hydroel ectric
generation that would be wheeled in via the C ean
Energy Connecticut |ine would inpact capacity
prices. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | would give
exactly the sane answer. |t depends entirely upon
their fundi ng through ratepayers and how t hat
affects the way in which they were -- whether, and
the way in which they would participate in the
capacity narket.

MS. CSANK: Thank you, sir.

Ret urni ng back to Enera just very
briefly. Enmera does not own the Al gonquin
Pi peline. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Enera, as |
understand it, has portfolios of supply and
transportati on assets throughout the Northeast. |

do not know whet her or not to what extent their
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assets include transportation rights on Al gonqui n.

They are not the owner and operator
of -- of the unit, but | don't know the answer to
t he questi on about what -- what conprises their
portfolio of transportation assets.

MS. CSANK: Do you know if Emera
presently sells gas into New Engl and?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | certainly know
they will in three years if this project is
approved. M/ expectation would be that they are
active in the New Engl and narket, and that's al so
my under st andi ng.

Do | know of whether -- do | know of
specific commobdity sale contracts to entities in
New Engl and sitting here? No.

M5. CSANK: So when we earlier discussed
the possibility that absent the project Enera
could instead sell gas to New York, does the
appl i cant have any analysis to support that clainf

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | have not tried
to forecast what Enera would do in terns of its
participation in the natural gas market if
Killingly did not go forward. | have not | ooked
into that.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Can | ask
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rel evance on that, Counselor?

M5. CSANK: Yes, your Honor. It goes to
this continued, and as characterized by the
W tness, critical issue of their clainmed w nter
security benefit of this project. And whether
it's in fact additive in any way as conpared to
what the existing resources and infrastructure
are.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  |s your concern
Enera can't provide gas? |Is that what you're

trying to get at?

MS. CSANK: No, your Honor. It's rather
the nature of -- and I don't want to get too far
and testify nyself. So perhaps | wll just |eave

it at that, and say that this line goes to the
W nter security issue.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah. "' mjust
trying to figure out where we're going. That's
why | ' m aski ng the question.

MS. CSANK: [|'msorry, Your Honor, that
| can't better explain. As | stated earlier, sone
of this exam nation is inforned by ny co-counsel.
And so I'mactually turning to a new |line.

M. Hi bbard, have you perforned any

anal ysis on custoner vulnerability to gas price
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fluctuations over the period of tine that the
project is supposed to operate?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Do you have any
particular custoners in m nd? Do you nean,
natural gas LDC custoners in New Engl and?

MS. CSANK: Yes, sir.

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | have recently
had occasion to | ook at potential variation in gas
prices as a function of demand as part of a
confidential project, but not for this project.

MS. CSANK: Subject to check, would you
agree that recent news reports have identified
t hat New Engl and power costs have hit a four-year
hi gh due to New Engl and's reliance on gas for
power ?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | wouldn't be
surprised if that's been witten in an article
recently.

THE W TNESS (Thi beault): Well, why
woul dn't you be surprised?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Because ny
understanding is that natural gas prices fluctuate
as a function of the severity of the wnter
natural gas prices in new England. And we've had

arelatively severe wwnter fromthat perspective.
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It's not easy to pinit exactly to
speci fic peak days or peak cold snap periods, but
| know that virtually all of the year prices are
suppressed because of the availability of gas and
transportation.

And really when you | ook at, how does
one year's annual cost of gas conpare to anot her
year? It's alnost entirely driven by the
volatility and the fluctuati on during severe
W nt er peri ods.

M5. CSANK: And you woul d al so agree
that, subject to check, the average price of
electricity increased 28 percent in New England in
2018 as conpared to the previous year while the
average price of gas in New Engl and i ncreased
30 percent in that sane period?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): 1'll agree that
it looks like you' re reading that from sonet hi ng,
but | don't know those nunbers in particul ar.

MS. CSANK: So yes, you agree subject to
check?

MR. BALDW N. The question was subj ect
to check. You want to tell us what you're reading
from and maybe we can confirmit?

MS. CSANK: Yeah, | would gladly hand
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the wtness an article. | just got the inpression

that that would rai se objections. | was trying to
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THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): You know, 1°']
accept subject to check that if the source of that
information is, for exanple, the | SO New Engl and
reports, the market nonitoring reports.

They tend to use accurate data on the

price of natural -- well, their own estimtes of
the price of natural gas and conpare in -- at the
sanme tinme | ook at -- they have the data on what

the price of electricity is.

Sol -- 1 believe that what you're
reporting is nost |likely accurate, and if it's
ultimate -- the ultinate source is | SO New

Engl and, that's probably -- that's probably
correct.

MS. CSANK:  Your Honor, should the
Council want to have it for its reference, the
docunent | amreferring to is a news report that
is barely over a page. And we have copies to
provide, but only if the Council is interested.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Unfortunately,
Counselor, we nornmally don't take in news reports

for exhibits -- but I do want to ask. You
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mentioned wnter reliability was your

focus before, and I'mstruggling again with the
price of natural gas and the price of electricity,
how you're trying to fit that in.

If you could explain that to ne it would
be great?

MS. CSANK:  Your Honor, | think it's
better explained by the wtnesses, but just very
briefly nmost things can happen at a cost. And so
there's a very close relationship between what has
devel oped to neet reliability and what prices the
devel opers can obtain in the narket.

And so that's why | would offer the
relati onship.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Per haps you can
formul ate a question nore specific to what you
just told ne.

MS. CSANK: Yes, your Honor. |'l]
endeavor to do so.

M. Hi bbard, adding the project to New
Engl and' s energy m x woul d rel ease the power
systens reliance on gas. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | think it
would -- I think the answer to that question is

no, if what you're referring to is the risks
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associated with exposure to gas-fired generation
during cold wi nter peri ods.

If the question you're asking is, wll
operation of this unit increase the total annual
consunption of gas for electricity generation
conpared to a scenari o where everything el se was
equal , but this powerplant didn't exist, | don't
know t he answer.

It could be | ess because it will be
di splacing at least in part gas-fired units that
operate less efficiently -- efficiently. So |
don't know what effect it would have on New
Engl and' s annual consunmption of gas, but | do know
it would not increase our susceptibility to
reliability risks during cold winter conditions.

M5. CSANK: What's the basis of that
| atter opinion?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): A firmnatura
gas contract.

M5. CSANK: That's it?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): That's -- yes,
that's it.

MS. CSANK: Thank you.

What is the anticipated capacity factor

of the plant in 20257




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

272

THE W TNESS (Eves): That's sonething
we'll have to check on. | know we subm tted an
answer to one of the interrogatories to that, that
| think addressed the first -- first year capacity
factor. Let nme see if | can find it in here.

MS. CSANK: Wil e you | ook, maybe I
shoul d just ask -- and step back -- a nore basic
question, which is whether the conmpany has in fact
nodel ed a capacity factor using a production cost
nodel for future years?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes, we did and
that was part of our previous hearings.

MS. CSANK: So it was that original
anal ysis perforned for the 2016 proceedi ng?

THE W TNESS (Eves): Yes.

M5. CSANK: And there's been no
subsequent update. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): That's correct.

MS. CSANK: Gkay. Moving on. So maybe
| can spare you fromhaving to rifle through it.

THE W TNESS (Eves): Let ne kind of
clarify that a little bit. There's been no
quantitative update.

We have sat down with M. Hi bbard here

and did a nore, | would say, subjective update to
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t he production cost nodeling results that we had
from our previous case.

M5. CSANK: And so it's not the
conpany's position that such quantitative
nodel - based analysis is not feasible. You just
did not doit. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Eves): W think that what

has taken pl ace between 2000 -- between when we
opened t he docket and now are -- the changes have
been so clear. There's no read for -- no need for

addi ti onal nodel i ng.

MS. CSANK: What changes are so clear?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | -- the
di scussion we have had is -- really relates to
what we've di scussed several tines | think
t hroughout this proceeding, which is that the new
project is larger and nore efficient.

So hol di ng everything el se equal
conpared to the analysis that was done at the | ast
point in tinme, those changes would have in a
production cost nodel two effects. It would
i ncrease generation fromthe facility and
reduce -- and increase -- and also | ower the price
per nmegawatt hour generated by the facility as a

function of fuel cost.
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So the only effect on a production cost
nodel woul d be further displacenent of nore
expensi ve resources. So the, you know, ny
judgment | ooking at that is that if we hold
everything el se equal, the change that's at issue
in this case could only do greater benefits.

A production cost analysis -- which is
conplicated and would potentially inundate the
procedures here. It would only generate results
that would inprove the project's inpact froma
rat epayer and economn c standpoi nt.

MS. CSANK: What about the new gas
pl ants in Connecticut that we spoke about?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): By far the
bi ggest inpact of this facility will be on
existing less efficient generating facilities,
both in terns of hours of operation and over the
| onger run retirenent of those facilities.

The -- the units that will always be --
or nostly be inframargi nal and the di spatch of
power plants in New England wll include this
facility and any recent efficient conbined cycle
facility. The inpact on production costs is
really the inpact on the nore expensive | ess

efficient facilities that are further out Iin the
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suppl y stack.

M5. CSANK: So sir, the basis of the
opi ni on that you just stated is your experience,
and it's not actually any docunented anal ysis for
t he Council or anyone else to i ndependently
review. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | did not
do production costs nodeling as part of ny

testi nony here, but in discussions the concl usion

that | cane to in thinking about this is that it's
really -- holding all else equal, there's really
only one direction you -- you would get out of a

production cost nodel conpared to the previous
facility, and that would be to increase its -- its
generation and di spl acenent of nore expensive
resources, and |lower the price whenever it's on

t he mar gi n.

MS. CSANK: But all else is not equal,
sir. Correct? Because there have in fact been
changes to the system since that production
nodel i ng was perforned in 2016. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): There certainly
have been changes to the system on both the | oad
side and the resource side.

MS. CSANK: So you haven't analyzed it?
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THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No, |'ve thought
about it. And I -- have |I run the nodel? No,
but in -- based on ny analysis | don't think it
woul d change the results other than to increase
t he econoni c benefit, and increase the ratepayer
savi ngs associated with this facility.

MS. CSANK: But you perforned no
anal ysis of gas price risk from custoners now
relying on nore gas capacity for 30 to 55
addi tional years that they do not rely on today?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Again, this was
all in conparison to the analysis that was done
for the facility last tine.

MS. CSANK: Okay. So | would like to
turn next to the 2017/2018 wi nter cold snap -- and
this continues to be a question, or a line,
rather, for you M, Hi bbard.

I would |like to refer you to the
applicant's sponsor to intervenor interrogatory
nunber 15. Please tell ne when you're there.

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): GCkay. |I'm
t here.

MS. CSANK: For your cal cul ati on of
carbon di oxi de em ssions savi ngs you assuned a

hundred percent capacity factor for the project




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

277

and an output |evel of 647 negawatts. Correct?
THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): 1'I1 accept that
subj ect to check.
M5. CSANK: At that output |evel --
rather that output |evel corresponds to the
pl ant's operation under | SO conditions of
59 degrees Fahrenheit, or 14.7 psi baronetric

pressure, and at 60 percent relative humdity.

Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | believe it
was -- | asked the conpany for that information.
So --

THE WTNESS (Rega): 1'lIl agree to that,

subj ect to check.

M5. CSANK: Wiy did you use any out put
under | SO conditions?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | believe that's
where we were able to estimate what the CO2
em ssion rate would be for the facility. And --
and in terns of the capacity the assunption here
was that the unit under these conditions would be
operating at full capacity.

MS. CSANK: But those conditions are not
reflective of actual conditions during the cold

snap. Correct?
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THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | would be
surprised if -- if the weather conditions during
the cold snap exactly matched these w nter
speci ficati ons.

MS. CSANK: You assuned oil was the
mar gi nal fuel during all 336 hours nodel ed.
Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): The assumption |
made for the purposes of doing this proxy
cal cul ation was that what Killingly woul d be
di spl acing would be oil -fired generati on.

Recall at the time what | SO New Engl and
was doing as oil was being di mnished throughout
the region as they started posturing generation in
order to maintain reliability. So I thought it
was a reasonabl e assunption that if you increased
gas-fired generation fromKillingly, by and | arge
what woul d be reduced in order to reserve to
mai ntain oil in the tanks during these conditions
woul d be oil-fired generation.

So it -- it's an estimate. It's a proxy
calculation to say, here's the potential carbon
benefit of this unit operating during that cold
snap.

MS. CSANK: Did you verify that
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assunpti on?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): In what way?

M5. CSANK: Did you see if it reflected
actual s?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | -- | was -- |
was postulating a scenario where Killingly did
exi st during that period in tine.

MS. CSANK: So the answer i s no?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | don't
understand the question. It wasn't -- | couldn't
verify it because Killingly didn't exist at the
tinme.

MS. CSANK: Killingly aside, all of the
other -- strike that.

You assuned that gas being delivered to
t he project would not otherw se be delivered to a
power pl ant in New Engl and. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Are you
referring to this particul ar anal ysis?

MS. CSANK: Yes, sir.

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Yes, ny
assunption was, this would be increnental
gas-fired generation in New Engl and di spl ace --

di splacing oil generation in part because at the

time what we do knowis all the gas-fired
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generation that could operate was operating.

MS. CSANK: And how did you verify
whet her during the 336 hours that assunption was
reasonabl e?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Again, | --

did not verify it through any sort of nodeling

or -- or otherw se any specific analysis. This
was indicative. This was an indicative
calculation to say if Killingly existed here's the
potenti al carbon di oxide reducti on benefits.

| hope | did not represent it as -- as
actually what woul d happen based upon producti on
costs, nodeling or sone other type of nodeling.
And in part that wouldn't even necessarily be nore
accur ate because of the posturing of units that
was happeni ng during this cold snap which isn't
reflective of econom c dispatch, which is what a
production cost nodel is actually nodeling.

MS. CSANK: So you're not guaranteei ng
t hese resul ts?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | don't believe
| ' ve suggested these are absol utely guarant eed
results for a future winter, if that's the
questi on.

MS. CSANK: And you used your revised
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CO2 em ssion rate provided by the conpany.
Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yes.

M5. CSANK: Do you know how t hat
em ssion rate was derived?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): It was based on
the air-permt val ues.

MS. CSANK: And do you know how t hat
em ssion rate conpares to the em ssion rate that
the applicant has used el sewhere in its
application naterial s?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | do not.

MS. CSANK: And you put your Killingly
em ssion rate in tons of carbon di oxide
equi val ents. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): \Whatever the --
the basis for the permt emssion rate is, is
the -- are the units.

MS. CSANK: Did you account for the
gr eenhouse gas i npacts beyond direct stack
em ssi ons?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Again, as when
t hi nki ng through this analysis ny assunption is
that there are al so upstream net hane em ssi ons

associated with the delivery of other fuels that
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wer e bei ng di spl aced.

Did | specifically try to calculate
the difference in upstream eni ssions of using this
facility versus figuring out where the oil was
extracted, whether it was tied oil, or sonewhere
el se, and what's the nethane that's released in
t he production and transportation of oil? | did
not try to go through that anal ysis.

THE W TNESS (Gresock): Can | make a

correction to ny response? | had stated that
the -- the CO2 em ssions values were fromthe
permt, but in fact I'"'m | ooking nore closely at

the notes here. And in this instance for this
response it was associated with full output of the
unit under -- under w nter conditions.

MS. CSANK: Coul d you pl ease explain the
significance of that clarification?

THE W TNESS (Gresock): So the
air-permt value would be under the | SO conditions
previously referenced, which is the custom

MS. CSANK: Thank you.

So understandi ng that you did not
performa quantitative analysis of anything beyond
the direct stack em ssions, as we sit here today

do you have any opinion on their relative
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significance as conpared to the results of your
anal ysis that you did perfornf

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Again, | --
don't have any quantitative answer, but | -- | do
want to reflect on the fact that if this is
di spl acing other fossil fuel generation it
woul dn't be appropriate to quantify only the
upstream em ssions of this facility.

W woul d want to quantify the upstream
em ssions of the sources it was displacing. And |
have no reason to believe those will be greater or
| ess than this one with the exception that -- and
this is not the scenario here.

If this were displacing | ess efficient
gas-fired generation then I woul d expect the
upstream em ssions of that |ess efficient
gas-fired generation to be higher than this,
because it's essentially nore gas bei ng burned for
t he sane purpose, the sane quantity of negawatt
hour s.

M5. CSANK: Ckay. And now turning to
the 2019 cold snap and |iquefied natural gas. And
" mgoing to be referring to a publication by the
Conservati on Law Foundation entitled, Frigid

Tenperatures, Not a Problemin New Engl and.
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If I may, | would like to approach the
W tness and provide this publication to hinf
O herwi se | can proceed anot her way.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: That goes back to
what we tal ked about before with other exhibits
t hat haven't been accepted into the record.

So the short answer is no.

MS. CSANK: So subject to check, during
the 2019 cold snap, the 2019 cold snap was
i npacted by the availability of |iquefied natural
gas which I'll just continue to refer to as
I iquefied gas tankers that were noored off of
Bost on Har bor.

Do you di spute that?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | -- | am aware
there was a tanker on the Accel erate buoy in
Bost on Harbor. And ny understandi ng, although I
haven't independently verified this, is that they
were injecting gas at various tines.

MS. CSANK: So you agree that the
avai lability of additional |iquified gas inpacts
the systemreliability and the prices during a
cold snap?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | wouldn't

di stinguish liquefied gas fromany other gas in
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that respect. |Increasing the quantity of gas
flowmng into New England is going to affect both
prices and the reliability chall enge, hol di ng
everyt hing el se equal

| certainly do believe that the
exi stence of LNG facilities at the eastern end of
t he New Engl and pi peline system -- and when
they're injecting gas it's very hel pful to the
fuel security reliability chall enges in New
Engl and.

MS. CSANK: But you would agree that a
critical difference between gas that's |iquefied
versus gas that's not is that that the |iquefied

gas can be stored. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | wouldn't --
agree that that's different -- well, the -- there
is storage for liquefied gas. | wouldn't say that

necessarily nmakes it nore reliable than a firm
transportati on contract because that gas obviously
needs to get to the burner tip of the powerpl ant
over pipelines.

And so unless -- with the exception of
what you have brought up several tines, a
catastrophi c event on the pipeline system | would

equate a firm firmtransportation contract for a
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power pl ant to a powerplant having a firm
transportation contract froman LNG facility to
its burner tip. | would say that those are
essentially the sane in terns of assistance with
wnter reliability.

MS. CSANK: Since you brought it up,
sir, are you famliar -- well, that you brought up
catastrophi c events on pipelines again. Are you
famliar, sir, with the pipeline Hazardous
Material and Safety Adm nistration?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): I'mfamliar
wth what they are, yes.

MS. CSANK: And you know that that's a
federal agency that's under the U S. Departnent of
Transportati on. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): VYes.

M5. CSANK: And they regqulate --

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Wwell, 1'I1 take
your word for it that it's under the DOT.

MS. CSANK: And you, subject to check,
woul d al so agree that that agency collects
self-reported data on pipeline failures across
this country. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): 111 accept

that. | haven't independently verified that.
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MS. CSANK: And the data, subject to
check, shows that pipelines built before the 1940s
fail at rates conparable to pipelines that have
been built in recent years. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Are you
referring to interstate pipelines, or |ocal
natural gas distribution conpany pipeline systens?

MS. CSANK: All, sir.

THE W TNESS (H bbard): OCh, | think the
answer is extrenely different for the two.

MS. CSANK: Pl ease expl ai n?

THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): WIlIl, the |oca
natural gas distribution system pipeline systens
are configured in very different ways than the
interstate pipeline system and probably using very
different materials.

So | would -- to answer your question, |
woul d want to know specifically what you're
referring to and -- and ny expectation would be
that the answer is different if you're | ooking at
di stribution systens, versus interstate pipeline
syst ens.

MS. CSANK: Do you have any docunentary
evidence to provide this Council on specifically

this issue as it relates to this project?
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THE WTNESS (Hi bbard): I'm-- |I'm not
sure what the issue is. | do not have the --
M5. CSANK: Is the vulnerability of the

pi pel i ne system on which this project would

rely -- its vulnerability to failures?
THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | have not
revi ewed any PHVBA data or -- for this, for this

proj ect, and have no reason to have done so.

M5. CSANK: Do you know i f anyone el se
on t he panel has?

THE W TNESS ( H bbard): | don't. I
suspect not.

MS. CSANK: M. Eves?

THE W TNESS (Eves): No.

M5. CSANK: M. Hibbard, is it your
testinony that the project is uniquely able to
reduce greenhouse gas em ssions during winter cold
snaps?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No.

MS. CSANK: Pl ease expl ai n?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): My under st andi ng
of your question. You were asking if it's ny
testinony that this facility is uniquely able to
reduce greenhouse gas em ssions. That's not ny

t esti nony.
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MS. CSANK: So for exanple, the w nd
resources that are planned for the systemare al so
abl e to reduce greenhouse gas em ssions during
w nter cold snaps. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | think that
depends on their availability, but if we wanted to
conpare if a wnd facility were able to generate
the sane negawatt hours during the same tine
period it would -- and I did a sort of a proxy
approximation that | did in nmy calculation. It
woul d al so be able to reduce greenhouse gases.

MS. CSANK: And you do not dispute that
w nd resources could during the winter cold snap
nmeet custoner demand?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | can -- what
woul d say about that is if a wnd facility is
generating and adding to the grid it can certainly
help contribute to neeting reliable system
operations during w nter peaks.

What | can't say is that that would
al ways be the case, because there coul d be weat her
condi tions where the contribution of w nd
facilities is not there -- and that's -- but
that's the sort of -- that's the sort of concern

that -- that M. Eves was speaki ng about earlier
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Wth respect to vari abl e generation.
But | think the answer to your question
is, yes. If a wind generating facility is

operating it can contribute to winter reliability.

MS. CSANK: Thank you, sir. If you'l
i ndul ge ne, just one last |line of questions.
Sir, you authored in 2015 -- rather, you

co-aut hored a study for the Massachusetts Attorney
Ceneral's Ofice entitled, Power System
Reliability in New Engl and, Meeting Electric
Resource Needs and an Era of G owi ng Dependence on
Nat ural Gas.

Do you recall that study?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): | recall that
study, and that's the one we were discussing
earlier this afternoon.

MS5. CSANK: And that study attenpted to
answer several questions, the first of which was,
coul d the regi on experi ence power system quote,
unquot e, deficiencies during peak -- excuse ne,
during peak wi nter demand when the electric system
may not be able to neet el ectric denmand.

Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Yes, that's

correct.
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MS. CSANK: | n addition, the study
attenpted to address if any such deficiencies are
identified what is the full suite of practical
options for maintai ning power systemreliability,
particularly during winter nonths, including but
not limted to electric ratepayer funding for gas
infrastructure. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Natural gas
i nfrastructure, yes.

M5. CSANK: O fracked gas
infrastructure?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): No, | didn't
say fracked gas. | said natural gas
i nfrastructure.

MS. CSANK: But you have perforned no
anal ysis on the type of extraction techni ques that
are used to get the gas that's conveyed on this
infrastructure. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): That's correct.

MS. CSANK:  You al so | ooked at the cost
to electric ratepayers associated with these
options and the extent to which the options hel ped
achi eve or inpede New Engl and states' THG goal s
and obligations. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | |ooked at what
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woul d be the relative cost to electric ratepayers
associated with the options both to i nplenent the
options and as a result of how they affect

whol esal e el ectricity prices.

And then to what extent do vari ous
options hel p achi eve or inpede states' obligations
and goals wth respect to greenhouse gas
em ssi ons.

M5. CSANK: And you found that under the
basecase anal ysis power systemreliability can and
wi ||l be maintained over time with or w thout
additional new interstate gas pipeline capacity.
Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Under the
conditions we were nodeling at that point in tine
and the resources that were avail able, that was
t he concl usions we cane to -- the concl usion we
cane to under basecase conditions.

MS. CSANK: But under stress
sensitivities you found that power system
reliability deficiencies energe by the wi nter of
2024/' 25. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Not stress
sensitivities, stressed system conditions.

MS. CSANK: Wiat's the difference?
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THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Well, our
anal ysis there was we weren't runni ng
sensitivities of systemconditions. W did the
basecase, and then we did a stressed system
condi tion case, which was nore |like the conditions
that exist now, but it was involving limtations
on oil supply and one or two ot her things.

But the -- we didn't call it a
sensitivity. W did two cases. W did the
basecase and the stress system case, and the
stress systemcase is nore like the -- the wnter
cold snap reliability concerns that | SO has when
it's discussing this issue.

MS. CSANK: And when you say the
conditions are nore |i ke what they are now,
relative to what reference case or what baseline?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Relative to when
we did the anal ysis.

MS. CSANK: Thank you.

And you consi dered a range of sol utions
sets including the addition of dual -fuel
capabilities, existing facilities and contracting
for liquefied gas. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yes, that was

one of the solutions -- that was the status quo,
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essentially.

MS. CSANK: But you found that those
solutions failed to offer outcomes consistent with
the climte change programs and goals of the New
Engl and states. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Yes.

MS. CSANK: You al so consi dered addi ng
new gas pipeline capacity. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): That addi ng new
gas infrastructure -- and I just want to be cl ear
what this was, because it relates to the purpose
of the report.

It was assum ng electric ratepayers paid
for new pipeline infrastructure. So the electric
rat epayers paid the cost of that investnent and
paid -- as a result that capacity was dedi cated
for the operation of gas only units within New
Engl and.

So it was essentially a scenario that
represents firmtransportation for gas-fired
transportation in New Engl and.

M5. CSANK: |I'mnot sure |I'mfollow ng
how your anal ysis that ruled out additional gas on
the basis that it failed to offer outcones

consistent with climte change prograns and goal s
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is influenced by who pays for the additional
pi pel i nes.

THE W TNESS (H bbard): The primry
pur pose of the study -- well, let ne back up. And
' msure that the council menbers are actually
aware of this.

At the tine we did this study there was
active discussion in the Massachusetts | egislature
for having electric ratepayers pay for natural gas
i nfrastructure on behalf of conpetitive market
power generators. That was the active debate that
was going on at the tinme, both at the regul atory
| evel and the |l egislative |evel.

So the primary purpose of this was to
say, okay. Let's figure out where there would be
deficiencies on the system and then figure out
vari ous ways you can elimnate those deficiencies.
One of them was the construction of a new natural
gas pipeline into Massachusetts and the capacity
of which woul d be dedicated for electricity
gener ati on.

The other -- so that was the basic
pur pose of the analysis, to conpare these
solutions sets fromthat standpoint. W also were

interested in saying, okay. WlIl, there are other
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i npacts to be considered including, what are the
gr eenhouse gas emn ssions associated wth each
option? Not that it would prevent the states from
nmeeti ng greenhouse gas goals, but it would affect
the costs of doing so. So in our analysis

that's -- that's why we structured it to | ook at
that as wel .

MS. CSANK: Thank you for that
clarification, sir.

In that study you al so considered a
solution set involving a conbination of energy
efficiency, denmand response and renewabl e ener gy
resources. Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): That sounds
right.

M5. CSANK: And you found that a
conbi nati on of those resources represents the best

solution fromthe perspective of ratepayer costs.

Correct?

It's page 5 -- or it wll be, rather.
Sorry.

THE W TNESS (H bbard): GCkay. Yeah, I'm
at the -- so, yes. W l|looked at -- | nean, the

total, effectively we | ooked at six scenarios. O

the six one of themwas the status quo. It didn't
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affect ratepayer costs, because it's the status
qguo.

One was paying for new transm ssion to
Canada. That was nore expensive for ratepayers.
The rest of themwere less -- were -- created
rat epayer specifics. The one that was nost
beneficial for ratepayers was the EE/ DR scenari o.

MS. CSANK: And EE and DR woul d st and
for Energy Efficiency Demand Response. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Energy
efficiency and denand response, yes.

MS. CSANK: And the custoners who woul d
be achi eving the nost savi ngs under that scenari o,
under that study would include custoners in
Connecticut. Correct?

THE W TNESS (H bbard): Probably so --
no, hang on.

W -- there was an inclusion. [|'l]
accept that that's the case.

MS. CSANK: Thank you, sir.

And further, you found that EE or energy
efficiency conbined with firminports of
distillate | ow carbon resources on new or existing
transm ssion |lines provides the greatest benefits

fromthe standpoint of greenhouse gas eni ssions.
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Correct?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): Correct, wth
the caveat that if you read the report you'll see
that this scenario requires that energy be
del i verabl e 8, 760 hours per year on the
transm ssion line from Canada. And as we were
di scussing earlier, it's not clear to ne that
that's the case with the current projects.

So in order for it to be a winter
reliable -- reliability solution that was a
condi tion of that scenario.

MS. CSANK: So thank you. Wth that
caveat your answer is, yes?

THE W TNESS (Hi bbard): | think I
started with yes. Ddn't 17?

MS. CSANK: Very good. No further
questions. Thank you so nuch.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you,
Counselor. You actually finished right on tine.
The garage is going to close at 6:30 and | didn't
want to interject, but let me wap this up.

The Council announces that it wll
conti nue the evidentiary session of this hearing
at its office at 10 Franklin Square in New

Britain, on Thursday, May 2, 2019, at 11 a.m in
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heari ng room one.

Pl ease note that anyone who has not
become a party or intervener but who desires to
make his or her views known to the Council may
file witten statenents with the Council until the
public comment record cl oses.

Copies of the transcripts of this
hearing will be filed at the Killingly, Putnam and
Ponfret Town d erks' offices.

I hereby declare this hearing adjourned.
Thank you all for your participation. Drive

safely and enj oy the weekend.

(Wher eupon the above proceedi ngs were

concl uded at 6:06 p.m)
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CERTI FI CATE

| hereby certify that the foregoing 299
pages are a conplete and accurate conputer-ai ded
transcription of ny original verbatimnotes taken
of the Regular Hearing in Re: DOCKET NO. 4708B,
MOTI ON TO REOPEN AN APPLI CATI ON FROM NTE
CONNECTI CUT, LLC, FOR A CERTI FI CATE OF
ENVI RONMENTAL COWVPATI BI LI TY AND PUBLI C NEED FOR
THE CONSTRUCTI ON, MAI NTENANCE, AND OPERATI ON OF A
550- MEGAWATT DUAL- FUEL COWVBI NED CYCLE ELECTRI C
GENERATI NG FACI LI TY AND ASSOCI ATED ELECTRI CAL
| NTERCONNECTI ON SW TCHYARD LOCATED AT 180 AND 189
LAKE ROAD, KILLI NGY, CONNECTI CUT, which was held
before ROBERT SI LVESTRI, The Hearing O ficer, at
Connecticut Siting Council, 10 Franklin Square,
New Britain, Connecticut, Thursday, April 18,
2019.

Robert G Di xon, CVR-M 857

Not ary Public

BCT Reporting, LLC

55 Whiting Street, Suite 1A
Plainville, CT 06062

My Conmm ssion Expires: 6/30/2020
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